
 

 
 

 
 

AGENDA PAPERS FOR 
 

EXECUTIVE MEETING 
 

Date: Monday, 20 June 2022 
 

Time:  6.30 p.m. 
 

Place:  Committee Rooms 2 and 3, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford 
M32 0TH 

A link to the meeting broadcast can be found at: 

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bK 
 

A G E N D A   PART I Pages  
 

1.  ATTENDANCES   

 
To note attendances, including officers, and any apologies for absence. 

 

 

2.  QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC   

 

A maximum of 15 minutes will be allocated to public questions submitted in 
writing to Democratic Services (democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk) by 4 
p.m. on the working day prior to the meeting. Questions must be relevant to 

items appearing on the agenda and will be submitted in the order in which 
they were received. 

 

 

3.  DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   

 

Members to give notice of any interest and the nature of that interest relating 
to any item on the agenda in accordance with the adopted Code of Conduct. 

 

 

4.  MINUTES   

 

To receive and, if so determined, to approve as a correct record the Minutes 
of the meeting held on 21st March 2022. 

 

1 - 10 

5.  MATTERS FROM COUNCIL OR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEES (IF ANY)   

 
To consider any matters referred by the Council or by the Overview and 

Scrutiny Committees. 

 

Public Document Pack

https://www.youtube.com/channel/UCjwbIOW5x0NSe38sgFU8bKg
mailto:democratic.services@trafford.gov.uk


Executive - Monday, 20 June 2022 

   
 

 

 

(a)   Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Visits - Scrutiny Task and Finish 
Group Report   

To consider a report of the Executive Members for Housing and 
Neighbourhoods, Environmental Services and Economy and 
Regeneration. 

 

11 - 22 

6.  DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES   

 
To consider a report of the Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing and 
Equalities. 

 

23 - 28 

7.  LEVELLING UP FUND ROUND 2 BIDS   

 
To consider a report of the Executive Member for Economy and 
Regeneration. 

 

29 - 104 

8.  COUNCIL TAX DISCRETIONARY SCHEMES - PROPOSAL TO CONSULT 

ON CHANGES   

 
To consider a report of the Executive Member for Finance and Governance 

and the Director of Finance and Systems. 
 

105 - 110 

9.  BUDGET MONITORING 2021/22 - PERIOD 12 YEAR END OUTTURN 
(APRIL 2021 TO MARCH 2022)   

 

To consider a report of the Executive Member for Finance and Governance 
and the Director of Finance and Systems. 
 

111 - 172 

10.  CORPORATE PLAN 2021/22 QUARTER 4 AND ANNUAL REPORT   

 

To consider a report of the Leader of the Council. 
 

173 - 218 

11.  URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)   

 
Any other item or items which by reason of:- 

 
(a) Regulation 11 of the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) 

(Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations 2012, the 

Chairman of the meeting, with the agreement of the relevant Overview 
and Scrutiny Committee Chairman, is of the opinion should be 

considered at this meeting as a matter of urgency as it relates to a key 
decision; or 

 

(b) special circumstances (to be specified) the Chairman of the meeting is of 
the opinion should be considered at this meeting as a matter of urgency. 

 
 
 

 
 

 



Executive - Monday, 20 June 2022 

   
 

 

12.  EXCLUSION RESOLUTION (IF REQUIRED)   

 
Motion   (Which may be amended as Members think fit): 

 
 That the public be excluded from this meeting during consideration of 

the remaining items on the agenda, because of the likelihood of 

disclosure of “exempt information” which falls within one or more 
descriptive category or categories of the Local Government Act 1972, 

Schedule 12A, as amended by The Local Government (Access to 
Information) (Variation) Order 2006, and specified on the agenda item 
or report relating to each such item respectively. 

 

 

 

 
SARA TODD 

Chief Executive 

 

COUNCILLOR ANDREW WESTERN 

Leader of the Council 

 

 
Membership of the Committee 
 

Councillors A. Western (Chair), C. Hynes (Deputy Leader), S. Adshead, K.G. Carter, 
J. Harding, E. Patel, T. Ross, J. Slater, A.J. Williams and J.A. Wright. 
 

Further Information 
For help, advice and information about this meeting please contact: 

 
Jo Maloney, Governance Officer 
Email: joseph.maloney@trafford.gov.uk  

 
This agenda was issued on Friday 10th June 2022 by the Legal & Democratic Services 

Section, Trafford Council, Trafford Town Hall, Talbot Road, Stretford M32 0TH. 
 
1. 

 
 

 



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
1 

EXECUTIVE 
 

21 MARCH 2022 
 

PRESENT  

 
Leader of the Council (Councillor A. Western) (in the Chair), 

Executive Member for Children’s Services (Counci llor C. Hynes), 
Executive Member for Adult Social Care (Councillor J. Harding), 
Executive Member for Culture and Leisure (Councillor L. Patel), 

Executive Member for Environmental and Regulatory Services (Councillor S. 
Adshead), 

Executive Member for Finance and Governance (Councillor T. Ross). 
 
Also present: Councillors Blackburn, Boyes, Butt, K. Carter, Evans, Holden, 

Jerrome, Morgan and Myers.  

 

Officers in attendance:  

 
Chief Executive (Ms. S. Todd), 

Corporate Director, Strategy and Resources (Ms. S. Saleh), 
Corporate Director, Governance and Community Strategy (Ms. J. Le Fevre), 

Corporate Director, Adult Services (Ms. D. Eaton), 
Director of Finance and Systems (Mr. G. Bentley), 
Deputy Director of Development (Mr. S. Tranter), 

Head of Leisure (Mr. J. Lees), 
Governance Officer (Mr. J.M.J. Maloney). 
 
APOLOGIES 

 

Apologies for absence were received from Councillors M. Freeman, J. Slater, 
G. Whitham and J.A. Wright; and from Councillor D. Acton. 
 

107. QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC  

 

It was noted that no questions had been received for referral to the current 
meeting. 
 

108. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  

 

The Leader of the Council declared a personal interest in the item regarding 
Stamford Quarter and Stretford Mall Lease Reviews (Minute 114 below) in relation 
to his position as Chair of the Trafford:Bruntwood JV Partnership. 

 
109. MINUTES  

 
RESOLVED – That the Minutes of the Budget Meeting and Meeting held on 
16th and 28th February 2022 respectively be approved as correct records. 

 
 

 

Page 1

Agenda Item 4



 
 

 

 
2 

110. MATTERS FROM COUNCIL OR OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 
(IF ANY)  

 
The single item for consideration related to the Scrutiny Review Outcomes Report, 
as set out in the following Minute. 

 
111. SCRUTINY REVIEW OUTCOMES REPORT  

 
In the absence of the Chair of Scrutiny, the Executive Member briefly introduced a 
report setting out the conclusions and recommendations of report setting out a 

summary of the work undertaken by the Scrutiny Review Panel, which also 
reflected the review undertaken by the Centre for Governance and Scrutiny. The 

report’s conclusion was that that Scrutiny function at Trafford was effective, with 
proposed changes relating to process and procedure, rather than fundamental 
issues. It was noted that the proposals were to be referred to Council for 

consideration. 
 

 RESOLVED - 
 
(1)  That the work of the Scrutiny Review Panel, and the recommendation to the 

Executive and to Council made by the Scrutiny Committee, be noted. 
 

(2)  That the proposals as detailed in the report be agreed. 
 
(3)  That approval of the proposals be recommended to Council. 

 
112. LEISURE STRATEGY REVIEW - PART I  

 
The Executive Member for Culture and Leisure submitted a report which provided 
an update on the leisure investment strategy and associated refurbishment 

options for Altrincham, Sale and Stretford Leisure Centres. It sought approval to 
proceed to the next stage in the refurbishment process, RIBA stage 3 for Sale 

Leisure Centre. This would provide a greater level of cost confidence before 
seeking Executive approval to progress to planning for Sale Leisure Centre. 
 

Members were advised of feedback from consultations undertaken to date, and 
that further reports would be made to the Executive in coming months. An 

opportunity was provided for Members to raise questions, and it was noted that 
details of refurbishment costs and related issues would be considered further in 
Part II of the agenda. 

 
 RESOLVED - 

 
(1)  That, following the successful completion of RIBA stage 2 for Sale Leisure 

Centre, and an independent review of the income and expenditure, 

approval be given to the continuation with the proposed capital investment 
into the design of the refurbishment up to the end of RIBA Stage 3 at a cost 

of up to £300k. 
 

Page 2



  3 
 

Executive (21.3.22) 
 
 

(2)  That it be noted that the outcomes of the RIBA Stage 3 report for 
Altrincham Leisure Centre will be presented to the Executive in July 2022. 

 
(3)  That it be noted that, in parallel a full business case review will be 

undertaken for Stretford Leisure Centre and will be presented to the July 

2022 Executive for approval to proceed to RIBA Stage 3. 
 

 
113. GMCA BROWNFIELD GRANT - SALE MAGISTRATES COURT  

 

The Executive Member for Housing and Regeneration submitted a report which 
noted that the Council had been allocated grant funding by the Greater 

Manchester Combined Authority (GMCA) from the Brownfield Housing Fund to 
support the delivery of Sale Magistrates Court development site. The report 
sought approval to enter into a grant agreement with the GMCA to secure grant 

funds of £1,260,000 to support delivery of 84 new homes in accordance with the 
Scheme. The Leader of the Council noted that an urgent decision was required to 

allow the funding to be accessed. 
 
 RESOLVED - 

 
(1)  That it be approved that the Council enter into a grant agreement with the 

Greater Manchester Combined Authority in order to access grant funding 
from the Brownfield Housing Fund to support the delivery of the Scheme. 

 

(2)  That authority be delegated to the Corporate Director for Place, in 
consultation with the Corporate Director of Governance and Community 

Strategy and Director of Finance and Systems, to agree the terms and 
conditions of the grant agreement. 

 

(3)  That authority be delegated to the Corporate Director of Governance and 
Community Strategy to enter into the grant agreement required to finalise 

the transaction. 
 
(4)  That, for the reasons set out in the report, this decision be deemed urgent 

and not subject to the call in process. 
 

 
 

114. STAMFORD QUARTER AND STRETFORD MALL LEASE REVIEWS  

 
[NOTE: The Leader of the Council declared a personal interest in this item in 

relation to his position as Chair of the Trafford:Bruntwood JV Partnership.] 
 
The Executive Member for Housing and Regeneration submitted a report which 

sought approval for a change in the current lease arrangements to provide an 
improved scheme to the Council and to facilitate investment in the assets. 

Questions were raised, and answered, regarding the detailed nature of the 
transaction; and it was noted that further financial details would be discussed in 
Part II of the agenda. 

 Page 3



 
 

 

 
4 

 RESOLVED - 
 

(1)  That the outline terms in relation to the changes to the lease arrangements 
be approved, as set out in the report considered in Part 2 of the agenda. 

 

(2)  That authority be delegated to the Corporate Director of Place, in 
consultation with the Director of Finance and Systems and the Corporate 

Director of Governance and Community Strategy to agree final terms for 
the leases. 

 

(3)  That authority be delegated to the Corporate Director for Governance and 
Community Strategy to enter into legal agreements as required to 

implement these recommendations. 
 
 

115. WGIS LIFTING BRIDGE LEGAL AGREEMENT  

 

The Executive Member for Housing and Regeneration submitted a report which, 
following negotiations between Trafford Borough Council, Salford City Council and 
Peel L&P, sought approval to an agreement to the principles agreed between the 

three parties in relation to joint cost sharing the maintenance of WGIS lifting 
bridge. Questions were raised on issues relating to security and enforcement in 

relation to the agreement; it was noted that the current agreement was in principle, 
and that there would be opportunities to provide for such concerns in any 
subsequent formal agreement. 

 
 RESOLVED - 

 
(1)  That the principles outlined in paragraph 3.2 of the report be approved with 

regard to the joint sharing of costs of maintenance of the WGIS lifting 

bridge. 
 

(2)  That authority be delegated to the Corporate Director of Place, in 
consultation with the Director for Finance and Systems and the Corporate 
Director for Governance and Community Strategy to agree final terms for 

the funding agreement. 
 

(3)  That authority be delegated to the Corporate Director for Governance and 
Community Strategy to enter into legal agreements as required to 
implement these recommendations. 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Page 4



  5 
 

Executive (21.3.22) 
 
 

116. FUTURE GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS FOR HEALTH AND SOCIAL 
CARE  

 
The Leader of the Council introduced a report of the Executive Member for Health, 
Wellbeing and Equalities which set out details of governance arrangements for the 

Trafford system including: Locality Board (One System Board), Trafford Provider 
Collaborative Board, Trafford Clinical and Practitioner Senate and other relevant 

groups, forums and boards. The report also provided details of current contractual 
arrangements in respect of health and social care and noted that a further report 
on this agenda set out proposals to secure a mechanism which would enable the 

Council to manage joint working with health, and other partners, following the 
development of the Greater Manchester Integrated Care System (ICS) and 

disestablishment of Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) on 30 June 
2022. 
 

RESOLVED – That the current progress and planned actions to establish 
future local governance arrangements for the Trafford health and social 

care system be noted. 
 

117. FUTURE COMMISSIONING AND FINANCIAL ARRANGEMENTS FOR HEALTH 

AND SOCIAL CARE  

 

The Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing and Equalities submitted a report 
which provided details of current contractual arrangements in respect of health 
and social care and proposals to secure a mechanism which will enable the 

Council to manage joint working with health, and other partners following the 
development of the Greater Manchester Integrated Care System (ICS) and 

disestablishment of Trafford Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG) on 30 June 
2022. It was noted that the proposal provided an opportunity for the Council to 
review a range of existing agreements, and to provide for changes to procurement 

legislation. 
 

 RESOLVED - 
 
(1)  That the proposal be approved to enter into a single section 75 agreement 

for two years to secure joint commissioning arrangements for locality-based 
services between Trafford Council and the NHS GM Integrated Care Board 

(“GM ICB”) underpinned by an aligned budget. 
 
(2)  That the proposal be approved to continue the current contractual 

arrangements to deliver Community Health Services through the GM ICB 
as detailed in the report. 

 
(3)  That authority be delegated to the Corporate Director of Adult Services, in 

consultation with the Corporate Director of Governance and Community 

Strategy and the Director of Finance, to agree the final financial amounts 
and services in scope and to agree the terms and conditions of and to enter 

into any relevant legal documentation as required pursuant to these 
recommendations. 

 

 Page 5



 
 

 

 
6 

118. CARE ACT 2014 URGENT MEASURES DECISION FRAMEWORK  

 

The Executive Member for Adult Social Care submitted a report proposing the 
temporary extension of a contingency framework enabling the Council to reach 
speedy decisions in relation to the implementation of agreed urgent measures if 

the consequences of the COVID-19 pandemic reached a critical point. The 
measures enabled the Council to streamline assessment arrangements and 

prioritise care so that the most urgent and acute needs were met, and would put 
into place responsive plans to manage current and future demands. It was hoped 
that circumstances would not arise which might require implementation of the 

framework, but that it was prudent to have such a contingency in place, in case 
the need did arise. 

 
 RESOLVED -  
 

(1)  That the review summary as detailed in the report be noted. 
 

(2)  That the decision making framework and associated criteria, as set out in 
the report and in Appendix B, be approved to be used to determine future 
decisions on the implementation of urgent measures. 

 
(3)  That the potential urgent measures as detailed in the report be approved in 

principle. 
 
(4)  That authority be delegated to the Corporate Director of Adult Social Care, 

in consultation with the Corporate Director for Governance and Community 
Strategy and the Executive Member for Adult Social Care, to determine, in 

accordance with the said decision making framework and criteria, those 
cases where there is a strategic or an operational need to implement any or 
all of the urgent measures. 

 
(5)  That it be noted that the Executive Member for Adult Social Care will make 

a report to the Executive and to the Scrutiny Committee detailing any 
decisions made to implement the urgent measures. 

 

(6)  That it be noted that the approvals in points 2, 3 and 4 of this decision will 
apply for a period of three months from the date of the decision and may be 

extended beyond that period if formally approved following a review based 
on an assessment of need. 

 
119. CONTRACT PROCEDURE RULES (CPRS)  

 

The Executive Member for Finance & Governance submitted a report which 
provided details of a review of the current Contract procedure Rules (CPRs) and 
proposed the adoption of a new set of CPRs by each of the STAR Authorities. The 

review had been undertaken in response to operational developments and 
legislative changes. In line with the usual procedure for changes to be made to the 

Council’s Constitution, the report had been considered by Scrutiny and Standards 
Committees, and was now presented for a formal recommendation to be made to 
Council. 

Page 6



  7 
 

Executive (21.3.22) 
 
 

 
 RESOLVED - 

 
(1)  That the content of the report be noted. 
 

(2)  That it be noted that, that in accordance with the approval process for 
constitutional amendments as set out in the Council’s constitution: 

 At the meeting of the Standards Committee to be held on the 14 March 
2022 and at a meeting of the Scrutiny Committee to be held on 16th March 

2022, a report recommending the amended CPRs will be presented and 

 In line with the Council’s constitution, the Standards Committee and 
Scrutiny Committee will consider the amended CPRs and if approved, will 

recommend them for adoption by the Council. 
 

(3)  That, subject to approval from Standards Committee and Scrutiny 
Committee, adoption of the proposed CPRs be recommended to Council. 

 

 
120. REPORT ON COMPLAINTS DETERMINED BY THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT 

AND SOCIAL CARE OMBUDSMAN 2020/21  

 
The Executive Member for Finance and Governance submitted a report which 

responded to the Council’s statutory duty to report to Members on adverse 
outcomes of complaints formally investigated by the Local Government & Social 

Care Ombudsman. The report set out the background to this duty, and provided 
Members with a summary of complaints determined in 2020/21. In response to a 
question, Members were advised of the financial process for managing the 

outcomes of any recommendations by the Ombudsman. 
 

 RESOLVED - That the content of the report be noted. 
 
 

121. BUDGET MONITORING 2021/22 - PERIOD 10 (APRIL 2021 TO JANUARY 
2022)  

 
The Executive Member for Finance and Governance and the Director of Finance 
and Systems submitted a report which informed Members of the current 2021/22 

forecast outturn figures relating to both Revenue and Capital budgets. It also 
summarised the latest forecast position for Council Tax and Business Rates within 

the Collection Fund. In introducing the report, the Executive Member highlighted 
the principal causes of the net positive variances which had occurred since the 
previous report. In response to a question, it was noted that the timing of the 2021-

22 pay agreement had rendered it impossible to incorporate back pay prior to April 
2022. 

 
RESOLVED – That the updated positions on the revenue budget, collection 
fund and capital programme be noted. 

 
 

 
 Page 7



 
 

 

 
8 

 
 

122. CORPORATE PLAN 2021/22 QUARTER 2 & 3 REPORT  

 
The Executive Member for COVID-19 Recovery and Reform submitted a report 

which provided a summary of performance against the Council’s Corporate Plan, 
2021/22, covering the period 1 July to 31 December 2021. In introducing the 

report, the Leader of the Council drew attention to a number of key achievements 
presented in the update, which had been secured against a background of a 
challenging year. An opportunity was provided for Members to raise questions on 

the report’s content. These concentrated on progress to date, and future plans, in 
respect of the introduction of electric vehicle charging points. A summary update 

was provided, and it was agreed that further detailed information would be 
provided in writing outside the meeting. 
 

RESOLVED – That the content of the Corporate Plan Quarter 2 & 3 Report 
be noted. 

 
 

123. URGENT BUSINESS (IF ANY)  

 
(a) Ms. Jane Le Fevre 

 
[NOTE: The Chair agreed to allow consideration of this item as Urgent Business in 
order to permit timely information to be provided to Members.] 

 
The Leader of the Council advised that this was to be the last meeting of the 

Executive attended by Ms. Jane Le Fevre in her capacity as Corporate Director of 
Governance and Community Strategy and Monitoring Officer. On behalf of 
Members of the Council, the Leader wished to record thanks to Ms. Le Fevre for 

her many years of dedicated service in support of the Council. 
 

 
124. EXCLUSION RESOLUTION  

 

RESOLVED - That the public be excluded from this meeting during 
consideration of the remaining items on the agenda, because of the 

likelihood of disclosure of “exempt information” which falls within one or 
more descriptive category or categories of the Local Government Act 1972, 
Schedule 12A, as amended by The Local Government (Access to 

Information) (Variation) Order 2006, and specified on the agenda item or 
report relating to each such item respectively. 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 8



  9 
 

Executive (21.3.22) 
 
 

125. LEISURE STRATEGY REVIEW - PART II  

 

In connection with the associated paper considered in Part I of the agenda, the 
Executive Member for Culture and Leisure submitted a report which provided 
confidential financial details relating to an update on the leisure investment 

strategy and associated refurbishment options for Sale Leisure Centre. It was 
noted that a further report would be presented to the Executive in due course, 

setting out details of the options appraisal. In response to detailed queries, it was 
indicated that, should the need arise, the Executive Member and officers would be 
content to meet separately to discuss with Members any outstanding issues on 

this matter. All formal resolutions pertaining to this item are set out in the relevant 
Minute above. 

 
126. STAMFORD QUARTER AND STRETFORD MALL LEASE REVIEW  

 

[NOTE: The Leader of the Council declared a personal interest in this item in 
relation to his position as Chair of the Trafford:Bruntwood JV Partnership.] 

 
In connection with the associated paper considered in Part I of the agenda, the 
Executive Member for Housing and Regeneration submitted a report which 

provided confidential financial details relating to the lease reviews for Stamford 
Quarter and Stretford Mall. All formal resolutions pertaining to this item are set out 

in the relevant Minute above. 
 
 

The meeting commenced at 6.30 p.m. and finished at 7.30 p.m. 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
 

1 

 
TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 
Report to:   Executive  

Date:    20th June 2022 
Report for:    Decision 
 Report of:  Executive Members for Housing and Neighbourhoods, 

Environmental Services and Economy and Regeneration 

  

 
Report Title 
 

 
Scrutiny Committee – Gypsy & Travellers Task & Finish Group 

 

 
Summary 

 

 

The Scrutiny Committee has considered the issue of visits by Gypsy, Roma and 
Traveller people in Trafford following a number of temporary encampments in the 
Summer of 2021. A Task and Finish Group was established and reported its findings 

in March 2022 (see Appendix 1). This report sets out a proposed response to the 
recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee 
 

 
Recommendation(s) 

 

 

It is recommended that that the Executive: 
(i) Notes the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee Task & Finish 

Group 

 
(ii) That in response to the recommendations of the Task & Finish 

Group, directs the Corporate Director, Place to: 
 
a. Investigate in more detail the siting of temporary toilet provision 

at encampments 
b. Investigate suitable consultees on Gypsy, Roma and Traveller 

issues within the Local Plan 
c. Explore the feasibility of providing a Temporary Stopping Place 

within the Borough and provide a further report on the matter by 

December 2022 
 

   

Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 

Adrian Fisher Director of Growth & Regulatory Services – Adrian.fisher@trafford.gov.uk 
 

Background Papers: None. 
 

Page 11

Agenda Item 5a



 

 
 

2 

Implications: 
 

Relationship to Policy 
Framework/Corporate Priorities 

Suitable accommodation or facilities for Gypsy, Roma 
and Traveller people supports the objective Reducing 
Health Inequalities. A range of evidence suggests that 
these communities generally suffer worse health 
outcomes when compared to the settled population. 

Relationship to GM Policy or 
Strategy Framework  

The 2018 Greater Manchester Gypsy and Traveller 
and Travelling Showperson Accommodation 
Assessment Update 2018 provides a strategic context 
for identifying Gypsy, Roma and Traveller needs. 

Financial  There is a cost to the provision of bins – although this 
is more cost effective than incurring clean-up costs 
after visits are completed. However, it still represents 
an overall cost burden for which there is no current 
budget provision. 
Costs associated with the provision of sites or facilities 
will vary considerably according to location and 
circumstances. A negotiated stopping place might cost 
in the tens of thousands – a more sophisticated 
temporary site is the hundreds of thousands – and a 
permanent residential or transit site at least £1-2 
million. Rent is normally payable for the use of such 
facilities. The incurring of additional costs would need 
to be addressed through the Medium Term Financial 
Plan process, with consequent savings or funding 
identified to avoid adding to the Council’s financial 
budget pressure. 
 

Legal Implications: The Council addresses unauthorised encampments 
under Sections 77-78 Criminal Justice and Public 
Order Act 1994. The Police possess powers under 
sections 61 of the same Act. 

Equality/Diversity Implications Gypsy, Roma and some Traveller people are 
protected against discrimination under the 

Equality Act 2010 in England (Travelling Show 
People and ‘New Age’ Travellers do not enjoy 

protection). Section 149 of the Act provides that 
public authorities, when exercising their functions, 
must have due regard to the need to eliminate 

discrimination, advance equality of opportunity 
and foster good relations between persons with 

protected characteristics and those that do not 
share them. Where exercising public functions 
such as the provision of education and health 

services, public authorities are required to have 
due regard to this equality duty. 

 

Sustainability Implications The Provision of suitable accommodation 
supports the ‘social’ element of sustainable 
development. 

 

Carbon Reduction None directly arising  
 

Page 12



 

 
 

3 

Resource Implications e.g. Staffing 
/ ICT / Assets 

Each visit by Gypsy, Roma and Traveller people 
requires significant input from Council staff, notably 
amongst Environmental Health, Environmental 
services and where necessary Adults and Children’s 
services.  
Providing suitable temporary accommodation is also a 
complex and resource intensive activity. 

Risk Management Implications   Unauthorised incursions on to public or private land 
can pose risks for the public or individuals through the 
deposition of refuse or lack of adequate sanitation 

Health & Wellbeing Implications Providing suitable accommodation promotes better 
health amongst people who are travelling through a 
locality – by providing better sanitation, clean water 
and refuse facilities 

Health and Safety Implications The cleaning up of sites following encampments 
may have implications for health & safety 

 

 
 

1.0 Background 

1.1 The Scrutiny Committee on 16 March considered the Interim Report of the Gypsy, 
Roma, and Traveller Visits Task and Finish Group. This group was established in 

November 2021 following a summer of several unauthorised encampments by 
visiting gypsies and travellers. 

1.2 The Report sets out the key conclusions from a training session for Councillors as 

well as some of the issues faced by Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Communities in the 
United Kingdom. The Report also makes a series of recommendations to the 

Executive; according this report now responds to each of those recommendations. 

 
2.0 Matters Raised and Response 

 

Recommendation One:  Purchase a set of mobile facilities (including bins and toilets) with 

Trafford Council branding for rapid deployment on any area of land that the Gypsy, Roma 
and Traveller community are temporarily visiting.  
 

2.1 The deployment of euro bins / waste bins is already in place for temporary visits via 
Amey. Upon notification of the encampment this is actioned and collection and clean-

up of litter and waste then follows. Some encampments utilise the bins but recent 
experience demonstrates that some sites still require clean ups as the bins have not 
been used by all of the travellers. 

2.2 The provision of Toilets is a more complex issue – it is more difficult in terms of 
storage, collection and clean up.  Toilet facilities would need a specialist contractor to 

handle and deal with the waste – with consequential costs arising. It is 
recommended that the siting of temporary toilets is investigated in more detail.   

 

 
Recommendation two: In accordance with Section 10 of the Planning Policy for Traveller 

Sites 2015 the Council identify specific sites within Trafford for use by the Gypsy, Roma 
and Traveller communities for the next 5 years, to be included in the Local Plan. 

Page 13



 

 
 

4 

 

2.3 In 2018 the GMCA commissioned an update of the Greater Manchester Gypsy & 

Travellers Accommodation Assessment. This provides a strategic overview of the 
need for pitches across the City region – and concluded that there was a need for 44 

residential pitches and 59 Transit pitches at that time across Greater Manchester 

2.4 It is a key role of the Local Plan to ensure that the housing needs of the Borough are 
fully met – and this includes accommodation for Gypsies, Roma and Travellers. As 

part of the preparation of the Local Plan, the Council undertakes a full Housing 
Needs assessment – a subset of which is Gypsy & Travellers Accommodation 

Assessment – this will consider the need for residential pitches (a permanent base 
for a group) and also for transit pitches – to accommodate those who are passing 
through the Borough. 

2.5 The need to identify sites is dependent on the results of the assessment – which will 
take a long-term view of the issue. Should a need be found then it will be the task of 

the Local Plan to identify and allocate a suitable site(s) to meet that need. Permanent 
sites are frequently in private hands but can be provided via a Local Authority or 
Registered Housing Provider; Transit sites are most commonly run by (or on behalf 

of) a Local Authority. 

2.6 Accordingly, this recommendation will be met by existing programmed activity. 

 
Recommendation three: Ensure that Ward Councillors are contacted as soon as a Gypsy, 
Roma, and Traveller community visit is known about and ensure they are kept up to date on 

action being taken.  
 

2.7 Officers from Regulatory Services already ensure that ward councillors are contacted 
as soon there is a traveller encampment on Council land in their ward, and they are 
also regularly kept up to date on action being taken.  

2.8 Accordingly, this recommendation is met by current practice on the issue. 

 

Recommendation Four: Take a proactive approach to communications around Gypsy, 
Roma, and Traveller community visits via positive messaging through local and social 
media.  

 

2.9 There will be the opportunity to provide positive messaging in connection with the 

Local Plan and provision of suitable sites. The ability to provide positive media on 
visiting encampments will depend significantly on the location and circumstances of 
such visits. 

 
Recommendation Five: Arrange for Gypsy and Traveller Cultural Awareness Training to be 

rolled out to Councillors, staff, and partners. 
 

2.10 The Scrutiny Committee has already arranged cultural awareness training via a 

specialist provider. It is recommended that further cultural awareness training be 
integrated into the Council’s overall approach to equality and diversity. 

 

Page 14

https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/GMCAFiles/PFE/Supporting%20documents/06%20Places%20for%20Homes/06.01.01%20Greater%20Manchester%20Gypsy%20and%20Traveller%20and%20Travelling%20Showperson%20Accommodation%20Assessment.pdf
https://www.greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/GMCAFiles/PFE/Supporting%20documents/06%20Places%20for%20Homes/06.01.01%20Greater%20Manchester%20Gypsy%20and%20Traveller%20and%20Travelling%20Showperson%20Accommodation%20Assessment.pdf


 

 
 

5 

Recommendation six: Ensure that either local representatives of the Gypsy, Roma, and 
Traveller community or the Charity Friends, Families, and Travellers are consulted on any 

plans affecting Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller communities in Trafford.  
 

2.11 The Local Plan consultation database has historically contacted and consulted The 
Showmen’s Guild of Great Britain. 

2.12 The Strategic Planning and Growth Team is currently contacting the Friends, 

Families and Travellers charity and The Traveller Movement to establish whether 
they and/or their members wish to be contacted and consulted on future plans 

regarding the identification and allocation of additional pitches within the borough. 

 
Recommendation seven: Assess the feasibility of implementing a negotiated stopping 

policy within Trafford for Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller communities and to produce a report 
detailing the findings for the Scrutiny Committee to consider by the end of 2022.  

 

2.13 A negotiated Stopping Policy usually allows gypsies and travellers passing through 
an area to resort temporarily to an unofficial site, usually in Council ownership. This 

could be disused land or an underused section of highway where basic temporary 
facilities are provided. A limit of 28 days is frequently set for any stays in these 

facilities. 

2.14 The benefit of such a policy is that it provides somewhere for visiting gypsies and 
travellers to stay, without inconveniencing users of other land (for example playfields 

or parks). The difficulty often arises in seeking to identify any suitable site for this 
use. 

2.15 It is suggested that the matter be explored further and a report be submitted to The 
Executive and Scrutiny Committee by December 2022 in line with the Committee’s 
recommendation. 

 
Recommendation Eight. Explore and clarify Trafford’s response to the Police, Crime, 

Sentencing and Courts Bill in relation to unauthorised encampments 
 

2.16 Under the Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill, the Government is legislating to 

create a new offence for England and Wales, and an accompanying power for the 
police to seize property (including vehicles), where individuals reside or intend to 

reside on land with a vehicle without permission. The offence will be committed if a 
person who resides or intends to reside with a vehicle on land fails to leave the land 
or remove their property without reasonable excuse when asked to do so by the 

occupier of the land, their representative or a constable and they have caused, or are 
likely to cause, significant damage, disruption, or distress (including anti -social 

behaviour). 

2.17 A person guilty of this offence will be liable on summary conviction to imprisonment 
for a term not exceeding three months or a fine not exceeding level 4 on the 

standard scale (currently £2,500), or both. 

2.18 The Bill also amends the Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994 (“the 1994 Act”) 

to broaden the list of harms that can be subject to the direction to leave under 

Page 15

https://showmensguild.co.uk/
https://showmensguild.co.uk/
https://www.gypsy-traveller.org/
https://www.gypsy-traveller.org/
https://travellermovement.org.uk/


 

 
 

6 

section 61(1)(a) (these replicate the damage, disruption and distress included in the 
new offence but will not be “significant”) and increase the period in which persons 

directed away from land must not return from three months to 12 months. 
Amendments to the 1994 Act will, in addition, allow police to direct trespassers away 

from roads. 

2.19 Currently, Section 61-62 of the 1994 Act provides the police with two powers to 
remove unauthorised encampments where: 

 The unauthorised campers have caused damage to the land or property on the 
land (except highways). 

 They have used threatening, abusive or insulting words or behaviour to the 
occupier, a member of the occupiers’ family, or their employee or agent. 

 There are six or more vehicles on the land. 

 

2.20 The 1994 Act also gives local authorities powers to evict unauthorised encampments 

under sections 77 and 78 of the Act. These powers are not affected by the proposals 
in the Bill. 

2.21 Once enacted, the Bill will create a new criminal offence for intentional trespass, and 
will extend the powers the police have to direct trespassers to leave land. 

2.22 The Government’s view is that criminalisation of intentional residence on land without 

consent, and the extension of existing powers in the 1994 Act, will provide police with 
sufficient powers to effectively and efficiently enforce against a range of harms 

caused by some unauthorised encampments. The offence and strengthened police 
powers could also deter unauthorised encampments from being set up in the first 
instance. 

2.23 The Act received received Royal Assent on 28 April 2022. The Council did not 
comment on the Bill during its provisional stages. 

2.24 The Act will now complement the approach taken by the Council when visits are 
made to public land. Currently The Environmental Health Team have delegated 
powers to deal with illegal traveller encampments on Council land. Officers from 

Regulatory Services must first carry out a site visit to confirm the location of the 
encampment and clarify whether it is Council owned land. They then carry out 

another visit accompanied by the Police, for a site assessment and welfare enquires 
to be made.  

2.25 If there are no welfare needs, officers then seek approval from the Corporate 

Director to initiate legal action to remove the travellers under section 77 of the 
Criminal Justice and Public Order Act 1994. A revisit to the site with the Police will 

then be made to issue the travellers with a legal notice, giving them 24 hours to 
leave the site. If the travellers are still on site after this period, officers would then 
need to apply for a Court Order from Manchester Magistrates Court which will give 

the Council the legal powers to evict the travellers.   

2.26 The whole process under Section 77 can take 7 days, however, if the Police utilise 

their powers under Section 61 of the Act, they can move them within 24 hours. 

Page 16



 

 
 

7 

2.27  Recently Environmental Health have added a further option of using a bailiff 
company to evict the travellers. Private Bailiff Companies utilise common law to 

move encampments and this can be executed within 24 hours for immediate 
removal. Private Bailiffs are a more costly option for evictions, and therefore the use 

of the Section 77 powers will be the normal, default process that will be followed in 
the majority of cases, with Private Bailiffs only being used in exceptional 
circumstances. For example, in cases where Environmental Health resources are 

stretched, where there is a group of travellers moving from site to site within the 
borough and a quick eviction may discourage this, or where there is an urgent need 

to move the travellers from a site (for example, the encampment will prevent an 
organised event taking place on Council land) and the Police are not willing to use 
their Section 61 powers. With the new powers of the Act the police may be better 

able to move visiting groups off land, where appropriate, without the Council having 
to step in. 

 

Other Options 
 

The Executive could choose not to explore the issues in more detail. 
 
Consultation 
 

 

No Consultation required to produce this report.  Consultation will be undertaken as part of 
the Local Plan as set out in the report 
 

 
Reasons for Recommendation 
 

To fully respond to the recommendations of the Scrutiny Committee 
 
Urgency of Decision    

 

Not applicable 
 
APPENDIX 1 – attached. 

 
Key Decision (as defined in the Constitution):   No 

If Key Decision, has 28-day notice been given?   N/A 

 
Finance Officer Clearance - PC 

Legal Officer Clearance TR 
 

[CORPORATE] DIRECTOR’S SIGNATURE  

(electronic) ……  
To confirm that the Financial and Legal Implications have been considered and the 

Executive Member has cleared the report. 
 
 

Page 17



This page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 
Report to:   The Executive 
Date:    20th June 2022 

Report for:    Decision 
Report of:  Chair of the Scrutiny Committee 
 

Report Title  
 

 
Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Visits Task and Finish Group interim report 
 

 
Summary 

 

 
The Task and Finish Group was agreed by the Scrutiny Committee in November 

2021 following a presentation by the Executive Member for Environmental and 
Regulatory Services relating to Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller community visits 

over the summer in September 2021. The Task and Finish Group was set up to 
investigate what Trafford Council could do to improve relations with the Gypsy, 
Roma, and Traveller communities. The Task and Finish Group looked to 

connect with a representative from the Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller communities 
and found the Charity Friends, Families, and Travellers, who provided a training 

session for Members on the 24th of February 2022. During the session several 
suggestions of how Trafford could improve relations with Gypsy, Roma, and 
Traveller communities were made.  

 
The group also gathered Ward Councillors experiences of Gypsy, Roma, and 

Traveller visits to their Wards.   
 
This interim report makes recommendations to the Executive and outlines how 

the Task and Finish Group intends to proceed.  

 

Recommendation(s) 
 

 

That the Executive; 
1. Note the report, 

2. Consider the recommendations in section 4 of the report and provide a 
response to the Scrutiny Committee. 

 

 
   

Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:  Alexander Murray   

Extension: x4250 
 

Background Papers: None  
 
 

 
 

Page 19



 
 

 
1. Background Information 

 
Following a set of visits during summer Councillor Dagnall requested that Gypsy, 
Roma, and Traveller visits be considered by the Scrutiny Committee at their meeting 

in September 2022. The Executive Member for Environmental and Regulatory 
Services and the Director of Growth and Regulatory Services delivered a presentation 

at the September meeting outlining the Councils approach, the impact visits over the 
summer had, the upcoming changes in legislation, and the next steps under 
consideration.  At the Committee’s next meeting in November Councillor Axford 

requested a Task and Finish group be established to look at what else could be done 
to support Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller visits to. The Committee agreed to establish a 

Task and Finish group and Councillors Acton, Axford, Dagnall, and Jerrome 
volunteered to be members of the group. 
 

2. Gypsy and Traveller Cultural Awareness Training 
 

At the first meeting of the group, it was agreed that they required input from a 
representative of the Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller communities to provide their 
perspective on relations between those communities and the Council. Councillor 

Axford contacted the Charity Friends, Families, and Travellers who work to end racism 
and discrimination against Gypsy, Roma and Traveller people and to protect the right 

to pursue a nomadic way of life.  
 
Friends, Families, and Travellers offered a training course on Gypsy and Traveller 

Cultural Awareness Training and a session was held on Thursday 24th of March 2022. 
The training was well attended and those who attended found the information provided 

very useful.  
 
The training highlighted difficulties Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Communities faced in 

accessing services such as education and health services and the barriers and 
conflicts generated by a lack of cultural understanding. The task and finish group feel 

that the training session could go some way to addressing those issues both within the 
Council and their partners.   
 

A section of the training focused specifically on the upcoming changes to the law once 
the Police, Crime, Sentencing and Courts Bill (PCSC Bill) comes into force. It was 

made clear to the attendees that those changes would have a large impact on the 
Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Communities. The trainers pointed out that the most 
concerning element of the bill was the level of interpretation available to each area, 

which will make it difficult for Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Communities to know the 
law in each area. They suggested that the best thing local authorities can do is to have 

an agreed approach to the new laws and to work with other local authorities so that 
the rules are as consistent across as wide an area as possible.  
 

At the end of the training session the trainer answered a series of questions posed by 
attendees in advance. Many of which asked for suggestions of actions Trafford 

Council could take to improve relations with Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller 
Communities.  
 

Below are a list of suggested actions;  

 Have land available for Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Communities to use 

Page 20



 Access national funding or work with housing trusts who support these 
communities. 

 Utilise welfare visits to direct Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Communities to 
areas they can stay for a prolonged period and access any services they need. 

 To open communication channels with Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller 
Communities by approaching those who do visit the area. 

 To have communication with the wider community about Gypsy, Roma, and 
Traveller visits to frame the discussion positively. 

 To have facilities in place with the authority’s logo on to provide needed support 
and display the Council are aware and give validity to the site. 

 To implement negotiated stopping with verbal and/or written agreements in 

place, if possible (gave Leeds City Council as a good example). 
 

Following the training the Task and Finish group agreed several of the suggestions 
could form recommendations and the group would continue to work on the other 
areas, particularly around the PCSC Bill.  

 
Friends, Families, and Travellers informed the Task and Finish group that they have 

been awarded funding to offer free training sessions to local authorities and other 
organisations from April 2022. The Task and Finish Group feel that the Council should 
take advantage of the opportunity.  

 
 
3. Ward Councillors Views 
 

Councillor Dagnall sent an email to Trafford Ward Councillors to ask for their 

experiences with Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Communities. A range of responses 
were received and a number of suggestions were made. Many expressed that they 

were happy for Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Communities to visit the area but noted 
some hostility towards them from members of the community. All feedback noted 
there needed to be a way to reduce the impact and clean-up costs of the visits and 

several suggestions were made of how this could be achieved. The main suggestion 
that stood out to the Committee was that communications between officers working 

with the Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Communities and Ward Councillors needed to 
improve.  
 
4. Recommendations 

 

That the Scrutiny Committee recommend the Executive: 
1. Purchase a set of mobile facilities (including bins and toilets) with Trafford 

Council branding for rapid deployment on any area of land that the Gypsy, 

Roma and Traveller community are temporarily visiting.  
2. In accordance with Section 10 of the Planning Policy for Traveller Sites 2015. 

The Council Identify specific sites within Trafford for use by the Gypsy, Roma 
and Traveller communities for the next 5 years, to be included in the Local 
Plan. 

3. Ensure that Ward Councillors are contacted as soon as a Gypsy, Roma, and 
Traveller community visit is known about and ensure they are kept up to date 

on action being taken. 
4. Take a proactive approach to communications around Gypsy, Roma, and 

Traveller community visits via positive messaging through local and social 

media. 
5. Arrange for Gypsy and Traveller Cultural Awareness Training to be rolled out to 

Councillors, staff, and partners. 
Page 21



6. Ensure that either local representatives of the Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller 
community or the Charity Friends, Families, and Travellers are consulted on 

any plans affecting Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller communities in Trafford. 
7. Assess the feasibility of implementing a negotiated stopping policy within 

Trafford for Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller communities and to produce a report 
detailing the findings for the Scrutiny Committee to consider by the end of 2022.  

8. Explore and clarify Trafford’s response to the Police, Crime, Sentencing and 

Courts Bill in relation to unauthorised encampments. 

Page 22



 1 

 
TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

Report to:   Executive 
Date:    20th June 2022 

Report for:    Decision 
Report of:  Executive Member for Health, Wellbeing and Equalities  
  

 
Report Title 

 

 
Drug and Alcohol Services 

 

 

Summary 
 

Trafford Council, together with Salford and Bolton local authorities, previously 

jointly commissioned a 5-year Lead Provider model substance misuse 
contract with Greater Manchester Mental Health (GMMH) NHS Foundation 

Trust. The current contract term commenced in January 2018 and expires in 
January 2023.  
 

It is proposed that the term of the current contract with GMMH for Drug and 
Alcohol services is extended for a further period of two years and two months 

to 31 March 2025 

 
Recommendation(s) 

 

 

It is recommended that the Executive approve the proposal to extend the 
current substance misuse contract for a further period as detailed in the 
report. 

 

   

Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 
Name:  Jilla Burgess-Allen, Consultant in Public Health    

Email/mob: Jilla.burgess-allen@trafford.gov.uk  07974 605734   
 

Background Papers: None 

Page 23

Agenda Item 6

mailto:Jilla.burgess-allen@trafford.gov.uk


 2 

 
 
 
 

 
Implications: 
 

Relationship to Policy 
Framework/Corporate Priorities 

Poverty reduction - by ensuring individuals access substance 
misuse treatment, this increases the likelihood of sustained, long-
term recovery.   
Reducing health inequalities – those with substance misuse issues 
suffer much poorer health outcomes than the general population. 
 

Relationship to GM Policy or 

Strategy Framework  

Greater Manchester Drug & Alcohol Strategy greater-
manchester-drug-and-alcohol-strategy.pdf (greatermanchester-
ca.gov.uk) 

Financial  The annual cost of the contract is £1,985,689 and the 
extension for 2 years and 2 months would be £4,302,326 

which will be met from within the public health budget.  
 
 

Legal Implications: Legal advice has been provided in respect of contract 

modification requirements. 

Equality/Diversity Implications Not applicable 

Sustainability Implications Not applicable 

Carbon Reduction Not applicable 

Resource Implications e.g. Staffing 
/ ICT / Assets 

Some of the additional funding will pay for increased in drug 
& alcohol work force across the system, including increased 
commissioning support and system coordination.  

Risk Management Implications   Entering into a procurement process at this time carries the 

risks below: 

 It would be highly disruptive to our planning for the 
system improvements with our provider if we have 

to build in a recommissioning process 

 Missed opportunity for the Council to embed 
legislative changes brought about by the Provider 
Selection Regime into its procurement strategy 

going forward. 

 A recommissioning process would also be highly 
disruptive to the service at a time when we need to 

focus on work ing together to implement the new 
Drugs Strategy 

 

Health & Wellbeing Implications We have an opportunity to significantly improve the substance 
misuse treatment and recovery system in Trafford, improving 
service capacity & quality, improving health outcomes, and 
reducing Trafford’s drug and alcohol related deaths. 

Health and Safety Implications Not applicable 

 
1.0 Background 
 

1.1 Current contract 

 
Trafford Council, together with Salford and Bolton local authorities, have jointly 

commissioned a 5-year Lead Provider model substance misuse contract with Greater 
Manchester Mental Health (GMMH) NHS Foundation Trust. Salford Council is the lead 
contracting party. The current contract term commenced in January 2018 and expires in 

January 2023.  
 

The brand name for the service is ‘Achieve’.  Within this contract, GMMH as lead provider 
have a number of nominated sub-contractors, specialising in specific areas of expertise.   

Page 24

https://greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/media/2507/greater-manchester-drug-and-alcohol-strategy.pdf
https://greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/media/2507/greater-manchester-drug-and-alcohol-strategy.pdf
https://greatermanchester-ca.gov.uk/media/2507/greater-manchester-drug-and-alcohol-strategy.pdf


 3 

 
The cluster-wide recovery service brings together NHS and third sector providers to offer 

support, treatment and advice to adults and young people to enable them to improve the 
quality of their lives.  The partners are Early Break (providing young people and family 

treatment, support and advice), Great Places Housing, THOMAS Recovery Housing, The 
Big Life Group (assertive outreach, promptly re-engaging those who drop out of treatment 
and encouraging those who require treatment) and Intuitive Thinking Skills (classroom-

based resilience course, aimed at giving substance misusers required coping skills to 
remain substance-free, for good), Breaking free online, Salford CVS and Salford Royal 

Foundation Trust.  
 
1.2 The services provided by the partnership include: 

 
• Clinical help to support the physical aspects of addiction such as opiate substitute 

medication 
• Access to inpatient and community detoxification 
• Health promotion and health screening, e.g. smoking cessation, dental care, physical 

health assessment 
• Drop in and structured sessions 

• Brief interventions 
• Family interventions 
• Psychosocial interventions 

• Therapeutic activities 
• Harm reduction, needle exchange provision and safe injecting advice.  

• Group work and service user groups  
• Access to vaccinations 
• Testing for blood-borne viruses 

• Overdose training and naloxone prescribing 
• Access to a Consultant Psychiatrist for mental health and medical reviews 

• Cognitive Behaviour Therapy (CBT) 
• Development and mentoring support for service users and carers 
• Holistic recovery service, involving families and carers 

• Advice and support with education, training and employment opportunities 
• Support with development of physical and virtual recovery networks and links to 

mutual aid organisations 
 
1.3 Strategy context 

 
In response to Dame Carol Black’s review of drugs, which makes it clear that the drug 

treatment and recovery system in England is not able to operate to the standard needed to 
address current challenges, the Government published its 10 Year Drugs Strategy ‘From 
Harm to Hope’ in December of last year. It aims to reduce crime and both the supply and 

demand for drugs by enhancing drug and alcohol treatment. 
 

Part 2 of the Dame Carol Black review focused on prevention, treatment and recovery from 
drug addiction and advocated the need for a whole system approach to tackling this issue.  
Among its 32 recommendations was the establishment of a new cross-government unit 

which would link health, treatment and recovery, employment, housing and the criminal 
justice system.  Dedicated funding with performance metrics would seek to build capacity 

within the system, with local authorities required to develop partnerships with housing and 
employment support and criminal justice partners.  There was a focus on rebuilding 
workforce through competency frameworks and occupational standards, with improvements 

sought for those with dual diagnosis needs (often denied MH treatment, until they are 
abstinent).   

Page 25



 4 

 
The Trafford system is well placed to deliver against these recommendations, as it has 

harm reduction at its core, underpinned by effective care planning.  Additional capacity is 
set to improve criminal justice outcomes, via more manageable caseloads, and an 

opportunity to increase investment in more complex users, via increased inpatient provision 
and improved access to residential rehabilitation.  To effectively deliver against the 
Government’s Drugs Strategy we will need a whole system approach to prevention, 

treatment, and recovery.  
 
1.4 Current Contract Value 

 
The total contract value for 3 Councils is £8,679,877 per year (total contract value 

£43,399,385 over 5 years for the 3 authorities). Trafford’s portion of this is £1,985,689 per 
year, met from within the public health budget. Salford Council acts as lead commissioner 

for the cluster. 
 
1.5 Additional Government funding 

 

In 2021/22 The government announced an additional £80 million to fund drug treatment in 

2021/22, as part of a £148 million funding package for reducing crime. Local Authorities 
received additional ‘universal funding’ in the form of a Section 31 grant from Office for 
Health Improvement and Disparities (OHID).  The funding was new money for 1 year to 

enhance drug treatment, focused on reducing drug-related crime and the rise in drug-
related deaths.  Trafford received a total of £201,000 universal grant funding. 

 
The Government has recently announced that they will be extending this funding.  Trafford, 
along with all other England Local Authorities, will be receiving additional funds 

(Supplemental Substance Misuse Treatment and Recovery Grant) via OHID over at least 
the next three years to support the implementation of the treatment and recovery elements 

of the Government’s 10 Year Drugs Strategy published in December 2021. 
 
As well as offering every local authority at least as much additional funding as last year in 

2022/23, the government intends to build on this in a phased way through enhanced 
funding for up to 50 areas starting in 2022/23, with another 50 areas receiving enhanced 

funding in 2023/24 and the remaining areas, including Trafford, starting in 2024/25.  
 
We have now been given confirmed allocations for the next three years. It is hoped that the 

additional funding will continue beyond 24/25, but due to the 3-year spending review cycle 
this remains uncertain. 

 
1.6 Changes to procurement regulations 

 

The Provider Selection Regime (PSR) will be a new set of rules replacing the existing 
procurement rules for arranging healthcare services in England. The new rules will be 

introduced by regulations made under the Health and Care Bill (currently before Parliament) 
and will apply to the commissioning of drug and alcohol services. 
 

The aim of the PSR is to make it easier to integrate services and enhance collaboration, 
and to remove the rigidity associated with the current procurement rules, and the related 

bureaucracy and cost. The regime is intended to make it straightforward for systems to 
continue with existing service provision where the arrangements are working well and there 
is no value for the patients, taxpayers, and population in seeking an alternative provider. 

And, where there is a need to consider making changes to service provision, it will provide 

Page 26



 5 

a sensible, transparent, and proportionate process for decision-making that includes the 
option of competitive tendering as a tool decision-makers can use. 

 
2.0 Extension Proposal 

 
It is proposed that the term of the current contract with GMMH for Drug and Alcohol 
services is extended for a further period of two years and two months to 31 March 2025. 

 
The contract value is £1,985,689, so a two year and two month extension would have a 

budgeted cost of £4,302,326 and would be met from within the public health budget. 
 
 
2.1 Rationale for contract extension 
 

There are a number of factors at play which together create a strong case for extending the 
current contract and these are summarised below: 

1. Going to market now would mean passing over any potential opportunities which the 

introduction of PSR could present, leaving us tied in to a contract for years to come. 
It would therefore be imprudent to embark upon a procurement process at this time. 

2. We are required to submit plans for how we intend to spend our additional three 
years funding in April 2022, and while the plans will be high level for years two and 
three at this stage, we need to be in a position to undertake that planning with our 

service provider, to some extent jointly with cluster partners. It would be highly 
disruptive to our planning if we have to build in a recommissioning process. 

3. A recommissioning process would also be highly disruptive to the service at a time 
when we need to focus on working together to implement the new Drugs Strategy 
appropriately to meet the needs of Trafford’s population.  

4. The way our cluster contract has been designed is innovative. The award to GMMH 
followed a full tender exercise, with a detailed new specification which clearly 

outlined the outcomes commissioners expected, but afforded the incoming provider 
the flexibility to decide how best to pursue these.  The focus of the Trafford system is 
on universal harm reduction, providing both psychosocial and pharmacological 

support, for example, the provision of Naloxone to reverse effects of an opioid 
overdose, and thereby reduce drug-related deaths.  Care planning and risk 

stratification help to manage service user complexity in treatment and ensure 
caseloads are manageable.   

5. Performance is good and consistently above the national average. GMMH have a 

CQC rating of ‘outstanding’ for its substance misuse service.  Trafford continues to 
be a high performing drug and alcohol system within Greater Manchester (GM) as 

evidenced by the data metrics available in the National Drug Treatment Monitoring 
System (NDTMS). 

6. The service has progressed massively over the term of the contract by forming 

effective partnerships with Council teams such as safeguarding and homeless 
prevention teams.  This has strengthened existing arrangements and added value to 

Trafford’s approach to managing complex individuals.  Recently, Trafford Achieve 
have worked to increase support with Community Sentence Treatment requirements 
(CSTR) and Out of Court disposals.  Work with the National Probation Service has 

seen co-location being adopted, which improves partnership working.   
7. The Big Life group, via their Assertive Outreach provision, have worked alongside 

Recovery Co-ordinators to complete welfare checks and give wellbeing advice.  
Homeless figures for Trafford are minimal, which evidences the benefits of increased 
multi-agency input to the existing Council approach. 

8. Early Break (Young People’s Service) have established a substance misuse 
professionals meeting, which seeks to identify any new emerging trends in drug use 

Page 27



 6 

and best practice in working with Young People with substance misuse needs.  Early 
Break have also participated in street outreach with Young People, by partnering 

with Big Life and has established ongoing links with Trafford schools, to promote 
awareness of substance misuse. 

9. Furthermore, the service has maintained a good level of performance in spite of the 
challenges created by the Covid-19 pandemic. 

10. An advantage of having an NHS provider is their ability to provide good clinical 

oversight. As the complexity of clients in treatment increases (as we have seen over 
the past two years) along with the level of both physical and mental co-morbidities, 

the need for excellent clinical oversight becomes greater. 
11. As GMMH are also the Trafford adult mental health provider, this permits a more 

seamless provision for dual diagnosis cases and improved pathways with mental 

health services. 
12. GMMH have developed excellent relationships with system partners and with 

commissioners, enabling effective collaboration and whole-system responsiveness. 
The cluster contract is also an excellent example of a partnership between the NHS 
and voluntary sector providers. 

 
 

Other Options 
. 

 

The alternative option would be to embark on a procurement process which would carry the 
risks set out above, and would carry the disbenefits outlined in the rationale above. 

 
Consultation 

 

There are no public consultation requirements in respect of this report. 
 
Reasons for Recommendation 
 

An extension of the current contractual arrangement will: 

 Provide consistency of service delivery until 2025; 

 Enable the Council to secure grant funds in respect of these services; and 

 Provide an opportunity for the Council to embed legislative changes brought about 
by the Provider Selection Regime into its procurement strategy going forward. 

 
 
 
Key Decision: Yes 
If Key Decision, has 28-day notice been given?   Yes 

 
 
Finance Officer Clearance (type in initials)………HZ……… 

Legal Officer Clearance DS 

 
 

[CORPORATE] DIRECTOR’S SIGNATURE (electronic)… Director of Public Health…………… 

To confirm that the Financial and Legal Implications have been considered and the Executive 
Member has cleared the report. 
 
 

  
 

Page 28



 1 

 
TRAFFORD COUNCIL  

 
Report to:   Executive 

Date:    20 June 2022 
Report for:    Decision 
Report of:  Executive Member for Economy and Regeneration 

  

 

Report Title 
 

 

Levelling Up Round 2 Bids 
 

 
Summary 
 

The Levelling Up Fund (LUF) Round 2 was announced in the 2022 Spring 

Statement and is similar to the Round 1 scheme whereby it is designed to 

invest in infrastructure that improves everyday life across the UK. The £4.8 

billion fund will support town centre and high street regeneration, local 

transport projects, and cultural and heritage assets. 

 

The report sets out the three areas that are proposed to be put forward as bids 

for LUF Round 2. 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

It is recommended that the Executive: 
 

(i) Approves that three bids are submitted for LUF Round 2 as set out in 
section 2 of the report. 

 

(ii) Delegates authority to the Corporate Director for Place, in consultation with 
the Executive Member for Economy and Regeneration, to develop and submit 

three bids to the Levelling Up Round 2 Fund as set out in section 2 of the 
report. 
 

(iii) Delegates authority to the Corporate Director for Place to accept grant 
offers the Council receives in the event any of the bids are successful. 

 
(iv) Authorises the Director of Legal and Governance to finalise and enter into 
all legal agreements required to implement the above decisions. 

 
 

  
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 29

Agenda Item 7



 2 

 
  

 
Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 

 
Stephen James (Head of Growth, Communities and Housing)  
Oliver Shimell (Inclusive Economy and Communities Manager)  

 
Appendices  

 
Appendix A – Watling Gate Architects briefing document and feasibility drawings  
Appendix B – Draft Sale Public Realm and Movement Strategy Review 

 
Background Papers: None 

 
  

Page 30



 3 

 

Implications: 
 

Relationship to Policy 

Framework/Corporate Priorities 

Supporting applications to the Levelling Up Round 2 Fund 

supports the Corporate Priorities of Reducing health 
inequalities, Supporting people out of poverty, Addressing our 
climate crisis.  

Relationship to GM Policy or 

Strategy Framework  

Delivery of the projects, if successful, will support the growth 

ambitions articulated within the Paces for Everyone Plan and 
the GM Strategy.  The projects will be delivered in the context 
of the GM 2040 Transport Strategy, GM Congestion Plan, 

and Made to Move walk ing and cycling plan to identify 
improvements tack ling traffic congestion, promote 
sustainable modes of travel and better integrate transport and 

new developments. 

Financial  The Council has received capacity funding for Round 2 of 
£125k and has used this funding to develop bids in 
preparation for the Round 2 scheme opening. The bids make 

reference to match funding and it is anticipated that this will 
be provided using budgets already approved by the Council, 
and including existing aligned partner funding. 

Legal Implications: It is noted that if the Council were to be successful with any 

of the bids that there would likely be a form of grant 
agreement that would require signing on the terms and 
conditions that the grant was being provided on. 

 

Equality/Diversity Implications None as a consequence of this report 
 

Sustainability Implications None as a consequence of this report 
 

Carbon Reduction Each of the proposed areas which are to be submitted as bids 

to the Levelling Up Fund will have elements which support the 
reduction of carbon as key elements. 

Resource Implications e.g. Staffing 
/ ICT / Assets 

Existing resources have been identified to support the overall 
delivery of the projects should the Council be successful in its 

bids although it is recognised that additional resources may 
be required to project manage a number of the schemes 
required as part of the projects or to provide specialist 

support.   

Risk Management Implications   The delivery of the projects, if successful, will be supported 
by a risk  plan setting out the key risks to delivery and 
proposed mitigation measures. 

Health & Wellbeing Implications Each of the proposed areas which are to be submitted as bids 

to the Levelling Up Fund will have elements of health and 
wellbeing as key components to the bids. 

Health and Safety Implications None as a consequence of this report. 

 
 

1.0 Background 

 

1.1 LUF Round 2 was announced in the 2022 Spring Statement and is similar to the 

Round 1 scheme whereby it is designed to invest in infrastructure that improves 

everyday life across the UK. The £4.8 billion fund will support town centre and high 

street regeneration, local transport projects, and cultural and heritage assets. Due to 

the tight time constraints in submitting a bid for the first round of funding and the 

requirement for detailed information and Treasury Green book compliant costings; it 

was agreed that Trafford would not submit bids for the first round. However, being as 

Trafford has been designated as a Category 1 area in the Levelling Up Fund Index of 

Priority Places, the Council received capacity funding of £125k to develop bids for 

Round 2. The second round of the Fund focuses on the same three investment 

Page 31



 4 

themes as the first round: local transport projects that make a genuine difference to 

local areas; town centre and high street regeneration; and support for maintaining 

and expanding the UK’s world-leading portfolio of cultural and heritage assets. 

 

1.2 The prospectus attached to LUF Round 2 sets out the government’s guidelines for 

the Fund and states that it is open to projects that can demonstrate spend in 2022-

23 and that all funding is to be spent by 31 March 2025; and by 2025-26 on an 

exceptional basis. The Fund will focus investment in smaller scale, local projects that 

require less than £20 million of funding. The closing date for bids for LUF Round 2 is 

noon on the 6 July 2022. Utlising the capacity funding received from government, 

three commissions are underway to provide the information necessary to submit bids 

for LUF Round 2 covering Partington Regeneration, Connecting Culture and 

Transforming Sale Town Centre.  

 

1.3 Due to the bid submission timeframe, it is not possible to attach the bids as part of 

this report since they are in final review stage. However, section 2 below provides an 

overview of each proposed bid and their focus. 

 
2.0 Proposed Bids for LUF Round 2 

 

2.1 Three bids are being developed to meet government guidance and Corporate 
Priorities. In addition, the bids comply with the government guidance in that LA’s can 

submit one bid for every MP whose constituency lies wholly within their boundary 
and bids can be supported by an MP where their constituency lies in more than one 
local authority boundary. Bids need to be in the form of HMT ‘Green Book’ compliant 

business cases, which will require clear and robust evidence of how each proposed 
investment has been fully option assessed and will deliver quantifiable and 

measurable economic, social and environmental benefits. This is a key area which 
the consultant commissions are focusing on. 

 

2.2 The proposed three bids for LUF Round 2 are: 
 

(i) Regenerating Partington 

 
 The focus for this project is to create a broad health and wellbeing offer that 

connects with the local community and provides a coherent collection of services 
that reflect the needs of local residents while complementing existing assets.  An 
offer that delivers community led and owned programmes supporting health and 

wellbeing outcomes. This approach is aligned to Levelling Up outcomes but also 
equally aligned to Trafford’s Corporate Priorities including reducing health 

inequalities and supporting people out of poverty, and addressing our climate crisis. 
It’s also tightly aligned to Trafford’s Sport and Physical Activity Strategy, Trafford 
Moving, Trafford’s Playing Pitch Strategy, and our independently written Leisure 

Investment Strategy know as a Strategic Outcomes Planning Model.  
   

As part of the bid, indicative projects and actions are likely to include: 
  

 Contributions towards the refurbishment of Partington Sports Village, 

creating a health and wellbeing hub that delivers community led and 

owned programmes supporting health and wellbeing outcomes with 

sustainability and climate agenda considered within design. Combining an 

outreach and centre based approach to connect local communities and 

Page 32



 5 

change behaviours and culture to better link the assets with the 
communities it’s targeting.  

 A focus on resurfacing the current 3g football pitch on Broadoak School / 

Partington Sports Village and providing an additional pitch – Identified as 

part of Trafford’s Playing Pitch Strategy this would meet local and borough 

demand and bridge the gap in a lack of 3g pitches in the borough. Works 

would include resurfacing the current pitch as well as creating another full 
sized pitch.  

 Cross Lane changing room refurbishment - The Cross Lane changing 

facility was originally considered as part of the Local Football Facility Plans 

(LFFP).  However, when funding for the LFFP was reduced works were 
unable to proceed.  

 Moss Lane Centre - To implement renovation and maintenance works to 

the centre to make it fit for purpose to enable Manchester Boys and Girls 

Club to run the community youth facility, and expand its operation to 

include services which would help local young people into sustainable 

employment.  It would also aid in Moss Lane becoming a Duke of 

Edinburgh Award centre.  

 In addition to the areas of focus above, it will be ensured that there is a 

strong link to the skills agenda to support the local community running 
through any bid made to the Levelling Up Fund.  

The estimated bid amount for this project is currently in the region of c£13.5m to 

c£16m. 

 
(ii) Connecting Culture – the spaces between the places 

 

 The focus of this bid is to link the cultural, arts, heritage and green networks that 
Trafford has; the historical parks that are the ‘spine’ of Trafford from the south with 

the ancient deer parks of Dunham Massey, through to the world’s first industrial park 
in the north. From the libraries to an award winning Arts venue, and the restoration of 
a cultural asset which would provide a research, exhibition and community space for 

archives service. The bid will enhance and develop the cultural offer of the borough 
to benefit local residents and attract visitors, and promote active travel with 

associated health and wellbeing benefits.  
 
 The Connecting Culture bid has close links to the Levelling Up Investment Theme of 

Cultural investment which has a focus on maintaining, regenerating, or creatively 
repurposing existing cultural, creative, heritage and sporting assets, or creating new 

assets that serve those purposes including theatres, museums, galleries, production 
facilities, libraries, visitor attractions (and associated green spaces), sports and 
athletics facilities, heritage buildings and sites, and assets that support the visitor 

economy. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Page 33



 6 

Key projects include: 
 

 Restoration of Watling Gate within Newton Park which will become a 

dedicated space for Local Studies providing archive, research, exhibition 

and community space. In addition to bringing a listed building back into 

use, the dedicated space for Trafford Local Studies will provide much 

improved access for community groups, societies, residents and visitors to 

research and discover Trafford’s rich heritage. The Architect’s briefing 
document and feasibility drawings are attached as Appendix A. 

 Improvements to the public areas within Sale Waterside to link Waterside 

(Arts Centre) and Sale Library to create an improved cultural hub in Sale. 

These improvements will create more opportunities for people to access 

art and culture as either participants and/or audience members, both of 

which provide wellbeing benefits. Additionally, there will be greater 

opportunities for skills development in a range of areas associated with 
exhibition and event production. 

 Creation of a Trafford Heritage Trail connecting parks and cemeteries 

which includes a provisional list put forward as - Gorse Hill, Victoria, 

Longford, Worthington and Newton Parks, Walkden Gardens, Sale & 

Brooklands Cemetery, Stretford Cemetery, Longford Park (HLF Bid), 

Watling Gate, Urmston Cemetery, Davy Hulme Park, John Leigh Park, 

Denzell Gardens and Stamford Park. This will include improvements to all 

and the installation of interpretation boards providing heritage information 

and links to online exhibitions. The trail will complement other active travel 
schemes for the borough. 

The estimated bid amount for this project is currently in the region of c£10m. 

 

(iii) Transforming Sale Town Centre 
 

The focus of this bid is to deliver comprehensive public realm and highways / active 
travel improvements building on the 2018 Sale Public Realm and Movement 
Strategy. The Strategy was reviewed in late 2021 following on from the Covid 

pandemic to ensure that the ambitions within the Strategy still remained as the 
highest priorities to the residents and businesses of Sale. In addition, as part of any 

Levelling Up Funding application, it is critical that the Council is able to demonstrate 
that a comprehensive approach has been taken to stakeholder engagement and that 
what is proposed as part of any bid has the support of the local community. Attached 

as Appendix B is the current Draft Sale Public Realm and Movement Strategy 
Review. 

 
The Sale bid has close links to the Levelling Up Investment Theme of Regeneration 
and Town Centre Investment, which is described as building on the Towns Fund 

framework to upgrade eyesore buildings and dated infrastructure; acquire and 
regenerate brownfield sites; invest in secure community infrastructure and crime 

reduction; and bring public services and safe, accessible community spaces into 
town and city centres. There is also a close link with the Transport Investment 
Theme. 

 
 

 

Page 34



 7 

Specific public realm improvements will be targeted at: 
 

 School Road  

 Town Hall Junction 

 Northenden Road 

 Waterside Plaza 

 Sibson Road 

 Springfield Road 

 Ashfield Road 

 Hayfield/Hereford Street 

     
 In addition, complementing the above public realm improvement initiatives with other 

key sites in the town i.e. Stanley Square, Sale Leisure Centre and Sale Magistrates 

Court are currently being reviewed subject to costs/funding bid limit as possible 
complementary activity to a Sale bid. The estimated bid amount for this project is 

currently in the region of c£17.5m to c£20m. 
 
3.0 Match Funding 

 

3.1 Within the guidance, local match funding of up to 10% is encouraged but there is no 

indication that it is an essential requirement.  However, match funding will be fully 

taken into account as part of the current bid development process and actual match 

funding values are currently being assessed. For each proposed bid, there is 

potential match funding which includes finance from the Council through delivery of 

the current approved capital programme and funding though the private sector and 

other external funding bodies. 

  

3.2 With regards to Regenerating Partington, there are a number elements of the 

potential scheme around the leisure facilities that, if included, could attract a number 

of external funding opportunities. Early conversations have been had with these 

bodies making them aware of the potential planned scheme to gain early assurances 

that funds may be available. For Connecting Culture, there are already a number of 

schemes though the Council’s Parks and Greenspaces capital programme where 

works are being undertaken that can be identified as match funding. There are 

resources currently committed to Watling Gate to ensure that the site is safe and 

secure which could be used to fund initial works as part of the wider bid. In addition, 

there is significant investment underway as part of Active Travel works through the 

borough, with works being undertaken to link element of these elements to the 

potential route be considered as part of the proposed scheme. 

 

3.3 In terms of Transforming Sale Town Centre, finances are already assigned through 

the capital programme for improvements at Sale Leisure Centre as part of the 

council’s approved Leisure Strategy. As part of the bid, consideration may also be 

given to putting forward improvements as part of the Sale Magistrates site.   

 
4.0 Consultation 
 

4.1 Through the development of the three bids that are intended to be submitted for the 
second round of the Levelling Up Fund, a range of engagement processes and 

approaches have been utilised to ensure there was stakeholder input into the 
schemes. It should be noted that evidence of stakeholder engagement will also be a 
factor that will be considered when the bids are assessed. 

Page 35



 8 

 
4.2 The bid focused on regenerating Partington has been informed by work undertaken 

on a Local Delivery Pilot which included consultation with key stakeholders around 
sport, physical activity, health and wellbeing and barriers to engagement. A 

consultation exercise was also held between the 18 April and the 23 May which was 
then supplemented through a borough wide public consultation exercise which has 
been programmed to run from the 23 May until the 17 June. The outcome of this 

consultation will help inform the LUF bid as well as Trafford Moving, the Council’s 
Sport and Physical Activity Strategy. In addition, a local stakeholder consultation 

exercise has taken place with key local groups such as the Parish Council, voluntary 
groups along with youth and sports providers. There are also plans to engage with 
the Positive Partington Group and a site visit has taken place with the Friends of 

Crosslane.  
 

 4.3 With regards Connecting Culture, initial consultation has taken place with the former 
Friends of Watling Gate on the 28 March and a meeting was held on 10 March for 
Members of the five surrounding Wards. Comments were broadly supportive and are 

being used to shape the bid. In addition, a public consultation period is planned for 
two weeks with users and stakeholders of Local Studies, Sale Library and 

Waterside. This will take place in the week commencing the 6 June both online using 
Citizen Space and in each location. Engagement is also planned with the relevant 
Friends of Parks groups in early June 2022. 

 
4.4 In terms of Transforming Sale Town Centre, a public consultation process was 

undertaken to understand the current community concerns and issues, and to gauge 
support for the Strategy and its projects. The public consultation event took place in 
December 2021 and an on-line web site was also set up. Sale town centre ward 

members, and adjacent ward members, were also briefed and involved in the 
consultation. Over 180 responses were received. 

 
5.0 MPs Role 
 

5.1 Under the government guidance, MPs will play a key role in lending their support to 
individual bids. An MP will be able to demonstrate their support for a bid if it is wholly 

within their constituency. If a constituency crosses the administrative area of two 
local authorities, each local authority can submit a bid for that constituency. However 
it should be noted that MPs can provide formal priority support to only one bid, but 

can provide general support to one or more bids.  
 

5.2 Each MP who covers the proposed bid areas has been contacted and updated on 
the three proposed bids and been offered a briefing. Each MP will be offered a 
further briefing and sent a letter of support to sign for the three bids. This will be 

issued following the June Executive. 
  

6.0 Risk Considerations 

 

6.1 In putting forward the bids there are a number of risks that have to be considered 
such as failing to develop the bids in a timely manner, insufficient consultation and 

the potential lack of match funding being available. These risks have been mitigated 
by commissioning consultants  to develop the bids well in advance of the submission 
deadline, establishing internal groups to lead on each bid reporting to a strategic 

working group,  early consultation to assist in developing the bids; and close liaison 
with Finance to identify match funding.  

 

Page 36



 9 

7.0 Other Options 
 

7.1 The three proposed bids have been considered as key to meeting Corporate 
Priorities and local need, and in meeting the government’s themes and guidance for 

LUF Round 2. As a result of the good fit with the funding’s criteria and limited time 
available to develop the bids, other options have not been considered.  

 
Reasons for Recommendation 
 

The recommendations are aimed at securing funding to deliver key projects that meet the 
Corporate Priorities of the Council and if successful, will realise significant additional funding 
for the borough to benefit of residents, businesses and visitors.  

 
Key Decision (as defined in the Constitution):   Yes  

If Key Decision, has 28-day notice been given?   Yes 

 
 

Finance Officer Clearance   PC  

Legal Officer Clearance TR 

 
 

[CORPORATE] DIRECTOR’S SIGNATURE (electronic)… ……………………… 

To confirm that the Financial and Legal Implications have been considered and the Executive Member 
has cleared the report. 
 

 

Page 37



This page is intentionally left blank



1

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

WATLING GATE 
LOCAL STUDIES 
AND ARCHIVES 

March 2022

BRIEFING DOCUMENT  AND 
FEASIBILITY DRAWINGS

TRAFFORD BOROUGH COUNCIL

Prepared by,

 On behalf of,

OMIArchitects

P
age 39



2

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

1.0 Introduction

2.0 Background

3.0 Analysis and Opportunity

4.0 Landscape Opportunities

5.0 Relationship Diagrams

6.0 Feasibility Layout

CONTENTS

P
age 40



1

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

1.0 INTRODUCTION

This document has been prepared by OMI Architects 
on behalf of Trafford Borough Council to assist in 
initial briefing disscussions with Trafford Council Local 
Studies and Archives Department. The aim is for these 
discussions to inform a new feasibility report assessing 
the viability of the Local Studies asnd Archives team 
occupying the building, and the implications of restoring 
the building from it’s current state of repair.   

OMI Architects were appointed in January 2017 to 
undertake an options appraisal/ feasibility study into 
the restoration and redevelopment of Watling Gate, a 
grade II listed former residential property, which was 
formerly used as a children’s nursery for approximately 
60 years until its closure in 2003, and is situated in 
Newton Park, West Timperley.

This report examined the feasibility for the conversion 
of Watling Gate to create a ‘Community Hub’ 
incorporating a children’s day nursery for 0-3 years 
age group, a community café, a bakery and providing 
meeting spaces for community groups and display 
space for art and heritage exhibits.

FIG. 1: ORIGINAL DINING ROOM - PHOTO CIRCA 2017

P
age 41



2

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

BACKGROUND

Watling Gate was designed by Lt. Col. Newton after 
he visited numerous country houses in the surrounding 
area of Cheshire.  The house was apparently designed 
in conjunction with a local architect named Bayley and 
it was constructed by Robert Carlyle of Manchester 
at a cost of £2,500 in 1905.  The house follows the 
Edwin Lutyens school of architecture, an approach 
that inventively incorporates elements of traditional 
architectural styles into modern designs. Lt. Col. 
Newton was an antiquarian who much admired historic 
architecture and the local architecture of Cheshire and 
wanted to re-create some of these elements in his new 
home.  A perfect example of this is the open hall or 
‘house place’ of Watling Gate, an architectural feature 
that has been in existence since the Anglo-Saxon 
Period.  An article from The Studio, published in 1910, 
describes the property thus:

 “Simplicity is the keynote of the design, and homely 
comfort with an entire absence of Bijou residence 
‘prettiness’ has been the aim of the architects from first 
to last.  Based upon the general lines suggested by 
many an old Cheshire homestead, the plain colour 
wash walls, and soft toned, grey flag-slates of the 
roof combine to produce a home which harmonizes 
admirably with its landscape environment”   
 
(Source: Watling Gate Conservation Statement, page 
10. Kathryn Sather and Associates, October 2009.)

The house and surrounding gardens were bequeathed 
to Altrincham Council on Newton’s death in 1937 and 
used as an art gallery and museum. Subsequently, 
the building operated as a nursery for over 60 years 
until it fell vacant in 2003. Although the conversions 
resulted in some internal alterations, the plan of the 
building has not undergone any substantial changes 
and many of the original timber features and detailing 
had been retained. However, left unoccupied the 
building has been subject to theft, vandalism and water 
ingress, which have led to partial collapses. Currently 
the building is in a dilapidated state with many of the 
original features at risk. 

2.0 BACKGROUND

WATLING GATE IN IT’S HEYDAY

P
age 42



3

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

ANALYSIS-SITE WIDE

The building is situated in a central position within 
Newton park. The park is well maintained and consists 
of open lawned areas with a good mix of mature 
deciduous trees which line the principle routes. The park 
is bounded on two sides by the backs of residential 
properties and on one side by a primary school (Park 
Road Academy). A small children’s play area inhabits 
the edge of the park adjacent to the school and is 
well used. Sinderland Brook runs along the northern 
boundary of the site.

There are a number of pedestrian/cycle access points 
into the park (including the waymarked cycle route 
which runs along the northern edge) and because of 
this the park is used as a thoroughfare by local residents 
increasing the footfall that passes Watling Gate. 

Vehicle access is provided by way of Frieston Road 
on the eastern boundary and Leys Road to the south 
(closest to the building). Leys Road terminates at the 
park but there is no turning head to allow vehicles to 
turn around. 

A plot of land to the south of the Watling Gate building 
is partially separated by trees and whilst technically 
it forms part of the park it is not well defined. We 
understand that this is a separate building plot that was 
bequeathed by Lt Col. Newton along with the Watling 
Gate house and gardens and there remains potential 
for this to be sold off to contribute funds towards 
adapting Watling Gate for a new use.

The principal view of the house is from the end of Leys 
Road as you enter the park, however a small hedged 
garden to the south of the house that has become 
overgrown now obscures this view.  A formal hedged 
garden to the immediate northwest of the house also 
obscures views of the house from the open aspect of the 
park.

3.0 ANALYSIS AND OPPORTUNITY

PLAYGROUND

PARK ROAD ACADEMY

SUN PATH

BUILDING PLOT

V
EH

IC
U

LA
R
 E

N
TR

A
N

C
E 

(L
E
Y

S
 R

O
A

D
)

ENTRANCE

ENTRANCE

ENTRANCE

S  I  N  D  E  R  L  A  N  D    B  R  O  O  K

VIEW 

OBSCURED

VIEW 

OBSCURED

INSECURE

ROUTEINSECURE

ROUTE

O P E N   A S P E C T

CYCLE ROUTE

CYCLE ROUTE

NO

TURNING 

HEAD

R E S I D E N T I A L

R E S I D E N T I A L

R
 E

 S
 I
 D

 E
 N

 T
 I
 A

 L

R
 E

 S
 I
 D

 E
 N

 T
 I
 A

 L

WATLING GATE COMMUNITY HUB

TIMPERLEY

CONTEXT ANALYSIS DIAGRAM

SCALE   NTS @ A3
1392   MAY '17

31, Blackfriars Road, Salford, Manchester M3 7AQ

t     44(0)161 832 3242

f     44(0)161 832 3623

e    info@omiarchitects.com

w   www.omiarchitects.com

OMIARCHITECTS

FIG. 3: CONTEXT ANALYSIS DIAGRAM

P
age 43



4

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

Potential landscape improvements could include;

• External paving to the perimeter of the building
• External cycle storage
• External refuse storage area to the rear of the 

building
• Improving/ replacing the vehicle barrier at the 

entrance to the park from Leys Road. (bollards may 
be a more appropriate option)

• Renovation of the small garden space to the 
immediate south of the house including the removal 
of high hedges that obscure the view of the house

• Extending the driveway to create more hard 
surfacing for café seating/ deliveries

OMIFIG. 19: LANDSCAPE PROPOSALS

4.0 LANDSCAPE OPPORTUNITIES

P
age 44



5

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

5.0 RELATIONSHIP DIAGRAMS

P
age 45



6

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

Watling Gate

NTSJAN 22

www.omiarchitects.com

1392 - @A3

TMBC LOCAL STUDIES AND ARCHIVES - EXISTING DIAGRAM

3 3 0sq m

LOCAL STUDIES
AND ARCHIVE

READING ROOM

5 0sq m

LARGE ARCHIVE
STORE

2 0sq m

SMALL

ARCHIVE

STORE

75sq m

NEW ARCHIVE
STORE 2022

5 0sq m

MUSEUM STORE

PUBLIC WC'S

75sq m

MEDIUM ARCHIVE
STORE

ARCHIVE

VIEWING

TABLES

STAFF OFFICE,

NO KITCHEN\

BREAKOUT

SPACE

RECEPTON

ENTRANCE

APPROXIMATE AREAS:

- PUBLIC READING ROOM: 300m2 

-  STAFF SPACES: 30m2 

-  ARCHIVE SPACES (INCLUDING NEW 2022 STORE): 270m2 

-  TOTAL: 600m2 

T M B C  L O C A L  S T U D I E S  A N D  A R C H I V E S  

D I A G R A M  S H O W I N G  E X I S T I N G  L O C A L  S T U D I E S  A N D  A R C H I V E  F A C I L I T I E S  A T  S A L E  

W A T E R S I D E

P
age 46



7

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

Watling Gate

NTSJAN 22

www.omiarchitects.com

1392 -- @A3

TMBC LOCAL STUDIES AND ARCHIVES - IDEAL BRIEF DIAGRAM

VISITING
RESEARCHER

SPACE

EXHIBITION
SPACE

ARCHIVE STORES

3 0 0sq m

2 0 0sq m

LOCAL STUDIES AND ARCHIVE
READING ROOM

8 0sq m

EXTERNAL
EXHIBITION

SPACE

STAFF KITCHEN /
BREAKOUT

STAFF WC'S

DOCUMENT
VIEWING SPACE

DIGITISATION
SPACE

STAFF OFFICE

PUBLIC

WC'S

CAFE

5 0sq m

8 0sq m

EVENT
SPACEWELCOME

RECEPTION

ARCHIVE
VIEWING

TABLES

T M B C  L O C A L  S T U D I E S  A N D  A R C H I V E S

D I A G R A M  S H O W I N G  I D E A L I S E D  B R I E F  F O R  L O C A L  S T U D I E S  A N D  A R C H I V E  

F A C I L I T I E S

- PUBLIC ARCHIVE READING ROOM: 200m2

-  VIEWING TABLES: 15m2 

-  STAFF SPACES: 100m2 

-  ARCHIVE STORAGE: 300m2 

-  EVENT AND EXHIBITION SPACE: 160m2

-  CAFE/SERVERY: 50m2

-  TOTAL: 825m2 

(225M2  ADDITIONAL AREA COMPARED TO 

EXISTING FACILITIES)

AREAS:

P
age 47



8

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

Watling Gate

NTSJAN 22.

www.omiarchitects.com

1392 --- @A3

TMBC LOCAL STUDIES AND ARCHIVES - PROPOSED DIAGRAM

ENTRANCE

LOCAL STUDIES AND
ARCHIVE READING ROOM

10 0sq m

VISITING
RESEARCHER

SPACE
STAFF OFFICE

ARCHIVE
VIEWING

TABLES
PUBLIC
WC'S

WELCOME

RECEPTION

FLEXIBLE EVENT /

EXHIBITION

SPACE

8 0sq m

DOCUMENT
VIEWING /

DIGITISATION
SPACE

CAFE /

SERVERY

3 5sq m

STAFF WC'S

ENTRANCE

2 3sq m
13sq m 13sq m

25sq m

EXTERNAL
EXHIBITION

SPACE

ARCHIVE
STORE

3 0sq m

ARCHIVE
STORE

ARCHIVE
STORE

5 0sq m

ARCHIVE
STORE

MEETING
ROOM

25sq m

STAFF WC'S

STAFF KITCHEN /
BREAKOUT

X

ENTRANCE

T M B C  L O C A L  S T U D I E S  A N D  A R C H I V E S   

D I A G R A M  S H O W I N G  P R O P O S E D  L O C A L  S T U D I E S  A N D  A R C H I V E  F A C I L I T I E S  A T  

W A T L I N G  G A T E

- PUBLIC ARCHIVE READING ROOM: 100m2

-  VIEWING TABLES: 15m2 

-  STAFF SPACES: 100m2 

- FLEXIBLE MEETING SPACE: 25M2

-  ARCHIVE STORAGE: 80 m2 

-  FLXIBLE EVENT AND EXHIBITION SPACE: 80m2

-  CAFE/SERVERY: 35m2

-  TOTAL: 435 m2 

(165m2  SHORTFALL ON EXISTING FACILITIES)

(390m2  SHORTFALL ON IDEAL BRIEF FACILITIES)

AREAS:

P
age 48



9

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

6.0 FEASIBILITY LAYOUT

P
age 49



10

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

WATLING GATE

100JAN 22

www.omiarchitects.com

1392 L100 @A3

PROPOSED GROUND FLOOR PLAN
T M B C  L O C A L  S T U D I E S  A N D  A R C H I V E S   |   G R O U N D  F L O O R  P L A N

1 : 1 0 0  @  A 3

1
0

 N
O

. 
R

IS
E

R
S
 

@
 1

7
0

m
m

m

9
 N

O
. 

R
IS

E
R

S
 

@
 1

7
0

m
m

m

CAFE

35 sqm

DOCUMENT VIEWING /

DIGITALISATION

25 sqm

VISITING RESEARCHER

13 sqm

LOCAL STUDIES AND

ARCHIVE READING ROOM

100 sqm

STAFF OFFICES

23 sqm

ARCHIVE VIEWING TABLES

13 sqm

FLEXIBLE EXHIBITION

SPACE

50 sqm

PUBLIC

ENTRANCE

PUBLIC

ENTRANCE

wc

wc

PUBLIC

ENTRANCE

SERVERY

STORE

RECEPTION

PERMANENT EXHIBITION

SPACE

30 sqm

P
age 50



11

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

WATLING GATE

100JAN 22

www.omiarchitects.com

1392 L101 @A3

PROPOSED FIRST FLOOR PLAN

1
0

 N
O

. 
R

IS
E

R
S
 

@
 1

7
0

m
m

m

1
1
.7
1

1
1
.0
4

STAFF BREAKOUT AREA

25 sqm

ARCHIVE STORAGE

30 sqm

FLEXIBLE MEETING ROOM

25 sqm

ARCHIVE STORAGE

50 sqm

VOID

wcwc

T M B C  L O C A L  S T U D I E S  A N D  A R C H I V E S   |   F I R S T  F L O O R  P L A N

1 : 1 0 0  @  A 3

P
age 51



12

WATLING GATE BRIEFING DOCUMENT

WATLING GATE

100JAN 22

www.omiarchitects.com

1392 L102 @A3

PROPOSED BASEMENT PLAN

ARCHIVE STORE

50 sqm

ARCHIVE STORE

45 sqm

PLANT / STORE

40 sqm

T M B C  L O C A L  S T U D I E S  A N D  A R C H I V E S   |   B A S E M E N T  P L A N

1 : 1 0 0  @  A 3

P
age 52



P
age 53



T
his page is intentionally left blank



A Fantastic 
Town Centre
STRATEGY REVIEW

Page 55



DOCUMENT CONTROL
FILE NAME

2 8 5 7 - I D - 0 0 2 - 0 1

PREPARED BY (INITIALS)

L K

 CHECKED BY (INITIALS)

J W  L H 

TRANSPORT

C I V I C 
E N G I N E E R S

DATE

A P R I L  2 0 2 2

COST

S I M O N 
F E N TO N 
PA R T N E R S H I P

 

2

Page 56



INTRODUCTION
1. REVIEW OF PREVIOUS STRATEGY   7  

 
2. PUBLIC CONSULTATION EVENT    13

• METHOD OF ENGAGEMENT    14
• CONSULTATION RESPONSE - COVERAGE  15
• CONSULTATION RESPONSE - KEY FINDINGS 16
• CONSULTATION ANALYSIS - THE PROJECTS 18

3. RECOMMENDED KEY CHANGES   22
4. DEFINING PRIORITIES     26
5. COST PLAN SUMMARY     29

APPENDIX  - 
A - CONSULTATION ANALYSIS
B - CONSULTATION COMMENTS

CONTENTS
 

3

Page 57



 

4

Page 58



INTRODUCTION

This review document has been produced by Planit-IE 
with support from Civic Engineers and Simon Fenton 
Partnership on behalf of Trafford Council with regards 
to an update to the Sale Public Realm and Movement 
Strategy.  The Strategy was originally produced in 2017, 
and this review  is intended to ensure that the proposals 
are still relevant, up to date and meet the needs of the 
local community. 

K E Y CO N S I D E RAT I O N S

The review has considered the following key elements:

1. A short review of the 6 key projects identified within 
the 2017 report - to assess if they are still fit for 
purpose.

2. Review if the projects are suitably future proofed 
with regards to:

• Active Travel

• Carbon Reduction/ Sustainability

• Attracting Business Investment

• Proposed regeneration Plans for Stanley Square

• Proposed new cycle connectivity plans linked to 
the Mayors Challenge Fund

CO N S U LTAT I O N

A short consultation process was undertaken with 
stakeholder groups and the local community. This 
included both 'in person' drop in events in the Town 
centre as well as an online web site with project 
information/questionnaire. The public consultation 
event took place on the 8th and 9th December 2021. 
There were two sessions on each day, running at 12-2pm 
and 5-7pm.  The online site went live a week before the 
physical event on the 3rd December and remained live 
until 19th December.

Two key questions were asked within the events:

• Do you support the concept proposals coming 
forward?

• What projects do you see as a priority?

A N A LYS I S  A N D  CO ST P L A N 

The results from the consultation have been analysed to 
understand the level of support for the projects, and to 
identify concerns/ issues. The results have also provided a 
clear priority for the projects identified.

Following this analysis, a series of suggested changes have 
been made to the proposals and overall Strategy.

An updated cost plan has also been produced, in line with 
the Treasury Green Book guidance to help support future 
funding applications.

 

5

Page 59



 

6

Sale town centre will become a sustainable, 
fun and inclusive urban environment that 
will attract existing residents and new visitors 
of all ages to enjoy spending more time 
on the streets and spaces of Sale. This will 
encourage and support a thriving town centre 
economy with a diverse, high quality offer. 
A new identity will put Sale on the map and 
create an exciting destination on Greater 
Manchester's scene. It will offer a 'uniquely  
Sale's experience - green, beautiful and fun.

POTENTIAL 
SUSTAINABLE 
FEATURES

LOW CARBON 
APPROACHES

  SuDS, street swales, and rain-gardens

  Green Walls/ brown roofs (to 
shelters/ bus stops etc)

  Biodiversity – wildlife friendly planting

  Low-maintenance, durable 
and long-lasting materials

  New Planting- carbon capture – 
mature trees/ marginal planting

  Reuse of existing materials/ 
sub base foundations

  New paving that uses reclaimed 
materials, and locally sourced materials

  Low carbon alternatives 
for street furniture

Page 60



1-  REVIEW OF THE PREVIOUS STRATEGY

This review process considered the whole of the 2017 
Sale Public Realm & Movement Strategy, with particular 
focus on the Strategy Principles and identified Projects, 
to ensure alignment with new and emerging policy on 
climate change adaptation, active travel projects and 
changes to the local Town Centre context.

The 2017 Strategy set out a number of key design 
principles to achieve its main aim (opposite). These set 
the context for a series of projects.

The principles were:

• Create a string of spaces

• Extending the Planting

• Seamless Movement

• Including the Side Streets

• Finding Your Way

• Combining into an Identity

It identified a series of projects within the Town 
Centre that could deliver these various principals. In no 
particular order these were: 

• School Road

• Town Hall Junction

• Waterside Plaza

• Northenden Road 

• Sibson Road,

• Springfield Road

• Ashfield Road

• Hayfield/ Hereford Street

The overall fabric of the Town Centre has seen minor 
changes over the past 4 years, however it is considered 
that the scope and approach taken within the original 
report and the issues facing the centre are still valid and 
appropriate.  

C H A N G E  W I T H I N  T H E  W I D E R  CO N T E X T

Trafford Local Plan

Preparation of a new Trafford Local Plan is underway 
with adoption scheduled for 2023. The Plan is the main 
land use planning document for Trafford. It will cover 
the period up to 2037 and forms part of Trafford's 
Development Plan. 

The draft consultation draft includes a number of 
high level policies that are relevant to the Sale Strategy, 
including:

• AF5 - Areas of Focus - Sale Town Centre  (which 
references the Public Realm and Movement Strategy 
document).

• Inclusive Places - IP3 Promoting space for Health and 
Well-being

• CC1 -  Climate Change and Low Carbon - future-
adaptable, minimise energy consumption, sustainable 
design

• ST1/2 - Active Travel - making walking and cycling 
more accessible and user friendly

• GT1 - Green Infrastructure - protect and enhance the 
interconnected network of green and blue spaces

Trafford Climate Emergency

On 28th November 2018, Trafford Council declared a 
Climate Emergency, committing to tackle climate change 
and work towards carbon neutrality for Trafford Council 
and also across Trafford as a borough in partnership.

It subsequently developed a Carbon Neutral Action Plan, 
which includes a Carbon Neutral Framework. 

The themes of the action plan are consistent with those of 
the GM 5 Year Environment Plan, with the addition of a 
further theme around skills and the green economy.

The Strategic Movement and Public Realm Strategy has 
the potential to link to across a number of the themes and 
Actions within the Plan - including:

• Embedding Climate Emergency, Climate Change 
and Low Carbon goals within Place Shaping and 
Masterplanning schemes.

 

7

Page 61



 

8

 S1153–  Design and Access Statement

Former Trafford Magistrates Court, Sale

Submitted to Trafford Council on behalf of Seddon Developments Ltd
by IBI Group (UK)
November 2020 - Rev 06

FORMER MAGISTRATES COURT ASHTON LANE (IMAGE: IBI GROUP)

PROPOSED CHILDRENS NURSERY - SPRINGFIELD ROAD (IMAGES: SIMPSONHAUGH)

TOWN SQUARE DEVELOPMENT (IMAGE: ALTERED SPACE)

Page 62



• Promoting recycling within the redevelopment 
proposals and encouraging reuse of materials.

• Promoting integrating walking and cycling in public 
realm proposals.

• Promoting the use of low energy lighting within the 
proposals

• Promoting  of Bio Diversity and nature recovery 
- through protection of existing green assets and 
introduction of new green spaces within the Town.

• Promoting sustainable design and construction 
features, demonstrating how climate change has been 
considered.

COV I D -1 9

The importance of the role of Public spaces has also been 
highlighted during the pandemic. In the recent Landscape 
Institutes 2020 Policy paper 'Green Recovery' the 
importance of our public spaces is acknowledged:

'In order to meet the UK’s 2050 net zero carbon target, the 
economic and social recovery from COVID-19 must be 
green.' 

Parks and green spaces need significant investment which 
matches their role as vital national assets. These places 
are pivotal in helping to build our resilience to climate 
change: cooling our cities, stopping air pollution and 
reducing health inequalities.

Trees and woodland provide excellent value for money 
in relation to the multitude of benefits they supply, 
especially in terms of carbon capture and biodiversity 
gain'

C H A N G E  TA K I N G  P L AC E  W I T H I N  SA L E

The 2017 Strategy identified two major schemes coming 
forward that are relevant to the public realm of Sale:

1. Stanley Square Development

A 'Mixed-use' redevelopment, providing retail floorspace, 
a cinema, up to 202 residential units, provision of multi-
storey car park, new public realm and landscaping, and 
associated works and improvements.

The regeneration scheme aims to fulfil the potential 
of the Site, addressing the deficiencies of the existing 
shopping centre and wider area including: an over-supply 
of small and poorly configured units which are not suited 
to the requirements of current retailers and a dated 
pedestrian shopping environment.

A direct influence on the wider Sale Public Realm and 
Movement Strategy is the introduction of high quality 
soft and hard landscaping that sits adjacent to the current 
School Road pedestrianised area.

2. Sale Magistrates Court

Receiving planning approval in 2021, the proposals are for 
a new residential development of 84 dwelling including 
town houses and  apartments.

The development includes a new Pocket Park for use by 
local residents which will include outdoor seating, raised 
planting and areas of hard landscaping. 

In October 2021 a further permission for a new nursery 
school building on Springfield Road was approved. This 
will have a key frontage onto the roadway and be relevant 
to the design and layout of this roadway.

These represent the major developments within 
the Town Centre. Stanley Square is currently being 
implemented, and will create a key public realm interface 
during the Detailed Design stage. 

 

9

Page 63



 

10

1

3

2

PLAN SHOWING PROPOSED NEW CYCLE LINKAGES THAT ALIGN WITH THE MAYORS CHALLENGE FUND PROPOSALS

4

Page 64



 

11

M AYO R S  C H A L L E N G E  F U N D

The proposals shown on the plan opposite, have 
been coordinated with concept designs for improved 
cycling infrastructure which have been developed 
under the Mayors Challenge Fund. Meetings 
with AMEY were undertaken to understand the 
location and nature of proposed strategic cycle 
links, to ensure that the Strategy update was fully 
aligned with them. Key elements include:

  Introduction of a two way segregated cycleway 
to be provided along Northenden Road. 

  In order to provide sufficient space within 
the width of Northenden Road to incorporate 
this cycle way it is proposed that the section of 
Northenden Road between Broad Road and 
Woodlands Road becomes one way for cars 
and other vehicular traffic, east to west.

  Improved cycle crossing facilities are also 
proposed at the junction of Northenden 
Road with Springfield Road.

A further two meetings were held with Trafford Cycle 
Forum to understand any further cycle connectivity 
issues and potential updates from the 2017 Strategy. 

  A key change to the proposed scheme was 
made as a result of this consultation, which 
made provision for a stronger north/ south 
cycle connection along Springfield Road to 
link with the Tatton Road/Waterside Plaza 
and the Sibson Road proposed routes. 

CO N C LU S I O N S

The 2017 Strategy made suggestions to ways that 
sustainable movement, green and blue infrastructure 
might be incorporated within the proposals. Whilst 
proposals are at a concept stage, examples such as the 
Sheffield 'Grey to Green' project (www.greytogreen.org.
uk), which demonstrate how sustainable urban drainage 
and naturalistic planting can be successfully designed 
into existing streets - providing a precedent that could 
potentially be translated to the Sale Public Realm.

It is suggested that further ideas with regards to Carbon 
reduction and sequestration within public spaces are 
stated within the document  - so they are fully considered 
in the Detailed Design stages. This should include further 
reference to material specification in surfacing and street 
furniture and opportunities for appropriate planting.

The Strategy is intended to provide a broad overview of 
public realm opportunity. The changes and additional 
features described within this chapter are most likely to 
be relevant at the next detailed design stages, where these 
features can be incorporated into the layout of the streets 
and spaces and tested for suitability and fit. 

The 2017 Scheme layout plan is still consistent with the 
current development and policy context of Sale, and 
identifies opportunity areas for recreation, health and 
well-being, biodiversity & nature and climate adaptive 
features.  In these respects it is still current and does not 
require updating. It is proposed that the plan be amended 
to accommodate the specific active travel routes described 
in the Mayors Challenge Fund and through consultation 
with Trafford Cycle Forum, as these links are already well 
developed in terms of design and location.

Overall, the existing Strategy is still well placed to deliver 
meaningful change within the public realm to address 
the issue of climate change, air pollution and improve 
contributions to health and well-being for Sale residents. 
As mentioned above, further references to these specific 
features should be incorporated throughout to emphasise 
and give weight to these elements.

1

3

2

4

Page 65



 

12

Page 66



2 -  PUBLIC CONSULTATION 

Following the initial project review and update as 
highlighted in the previous section, a public consultation 
process was undertaken to understand the current 
community concerns and issues, and to gauge support for 
the Strategy and its projects.

The public consultation event took place on the 8th and 
9th December 2021. There were two sessions on each day, 
running at 12-2pm and 5-7pm.

T H E  V E N U E

The event was held at a vacant shop unit on School Road 
adjacent to Bridgefords. It was also signposted in the 
window of 'The Square'  Management Office, Town Hall, 
as well as the shop window unit.

T H E  P U R P O S E  O F T H E  E V E N T

The consultation was carried out to allow a broad range 
of interested parties the opportunity to take part in the 
process.

The event allowed the stakeholders to not only comment 
on the work to date and to offer continued support, 
but also to have a say in what they think are the most 
important elements – and what should be the priorities 
moving forward.

G E N E RA L E N G AG E M E N T 

• Local businesses

• Altered Space (Stanley Square/Sale  Regen Group)

• Altrincham and Sale Chamber of Commerce

• Sale Regeneration Group 

• Sale Town Partnership

• Trafford Council Licensing (Taxis)

• Sale Waterside Arts Centre

• Sale Civic Society

• Thrive Trafford

• Trafford Libraries

• Trafford Family Information Service

• Trafford Parent Forum

• We are Sale Moor

• Life in Sale

• Trafford Together

• Amey (Mayors Challenge Fund – Sale)

• Springfield Primary School

• St Joseph’s Primary School

• Sale Grammar School

 

13

Page 67



METHOD OF ENGAGEMENT 

The public consultation was directly emailed to elected 
members, including the details of the online engagement 
platform. The event was advertised with emails, flyers 
and posters, as well as on social media for the general 
public.

Social media was made available via the following 
Facebook groups: 

• M33 Sale

• Sale M33

• M33 community and crime 

• What's on in Sale

CO N S U LTAT I O N  B OA R D S

A series of consultation boards were produced to set out 
the proposals and included the following content.

• Recap – the 2018 Public Realm and Movement 
Strategy – aims and purpose

• Wider MCF Connectivity & Current Planning 
Applications

• The Updated Masterplan – Public Realm, Seamless 
Movement, Identity, Reducing Carbon .

• School Road – images and text

• Town Hall Junction– images and text

• Northenden Road – images and text

• Waterside Plaza – images and text

• Sibson Road/Springfield Road– images and text

• Ashfield Road/ Claremont Road - images and text

• Next steps/ time-scales

W E B S I T E

An on-line web site was set up using Citizen Space 
(www.delib.net/citizen_space). This included each of the 
consultation boards, and a short questionnaire for each 
of the proposed public realm areas and space to write 
any further comments. This went live a week before the 
physical event (w/e 03/12/21) and remained live until 
19/12/21.

G E N E RA L R ES P O N S E

There was a low turn out for the 4 drop in sessions held 
in December - less than 15 people per session. This may 
be due to the particularly poor weather that week and the 
timing prior to Christmas.

Almost all of the consultation responses were received 
through the web site  portal- with only 2 completed 
questionnaires at the events. When prompted, many 
of the visitors to the physical events indicated that they 
preferred to fill in the questionnaire later on-line.

 

14

Page 68



RESPONDENTS TO SURVEY - 1KM RADIUS OF SALE 
TOWN CENTRE

Almost half of respondents were 
from within 1km radius of Sale 
Town Centre. A few respondents 
were from surrounding areas, such as 
Brooklands, Stretford, Ashton-Upon-
Mersey.

ASHTON-UPON-ASHTON-UPON-
MERSEY MERSEY 

SALE SALE 

94 
  RESPONSES ...WITHIN 1KM OF SALE TOWN 

CENTRE

182  
RESPONSES 

CONSULTATION ANALYSIS -  RESPONSE COVERAGE 

SALE LEISURE SALE LEISURE 
CENTRE CENTRE 

ASHTON-ON-ASHTON-ON-
MERSEY SCHOOLMERSEY SCHOOL

SALE MOORSALE MOOR  

NORTHENDEN NORTHENDEN 
ROADROAD

ST.JOSEPHS ST.JOSEPHS 
PRIMARY SCHOOLPRIMARY SCHOOL

SALE CEMETERYSALE CEMETERY

TOWN CENTRETOWN CENTRE

WASHWAY ROADWASHWAY ROAD

SALE WATERPARKSALE WATERPARK

 

15

Page 69



D O  YO U  S U P P O RT T H E 
P R O P O SA L S ?

There was a strong consultation response in 
general support for the overall proposals.

The supporting comments indicated a wide 
diversity of users frequenting the town 
centre, but also highlighted patterns and 
common wishes.

W H AT I S  A P R I O R I T Y ?

There was a strong consultation response to 
indicate that the School Road Project was the 
most important.

9% 
INDIFFERENT

14% 
DO NOT SUPPORT

SCHOOL ROAD

TOWN HALL

NORTHENDEN ROAD

WATERSIDE PLAZA

SPRINGFIELD/ SIBSON 
ROAD

ASHFIELD / CLAREMONT 
ROAD

SUPPORT

INDIFFERENT 

NO SUPPORT

0%

0%

100%

100%

50%

50%

RESPONDENTS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SELECT  
ONE ANSWER

RESPONDENTS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SELECT  
ONE ANSWER

77%
SUPPORT 

65% 
SAY SCHOOL ROAD IS A 

PRIORITY.

CONSULTATION ANALYSIS -  KEY FINDINGS
 

16

Page 70



A R E  YO U  I N  S U P P O RT O F S C H O O L R OA D  P R O P O SA L S ?

SUPPORT

DO NOT SUPPORT

INDIFFERENT 

NO ANSWER

0% 100%50%

58%  
SUPPORT

RESPONDENTS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SELECT  
MULTIPLE ANSWERS

1:  SCHOOL ROAD 

"Magnificent 
idea. Would 
make sale an 
inviting place to 
walk and spend 
a day."

K E Y R ES P O N S E . . .

'On the whole, I am 
supportive with the 
exception of vehicular 
access on school 
road. This should 
remain completely 
pedestrianised.'

General support of proposal, public see it as the priority in the re-design in heart 
of Sale.

•  Consider removal of vehicular access on School road making it pedestrian 
and cyclist only - significant negative response against this element.

• Consider the location of cycle infrastructure - clear routes for bikes and 
parking. 

• Consider additional text to reference greener experience along School road

• Consider additional reference to play within the town centre, making it safe 
and accessible and robust.

CONSULTATION ANALYSIS -  THE PROJECTS

The following pages illustrate more detailed responses for 
the individual Strategy projects and are presented in the 
order of priority that was recorded from the consultation 
process.

The statistic provided for each is the response to the 
consultation question - 'Do you support this proposal?' 
This highlights the level of support recorded for 
individual projects, rather than the Strategy as a whole - 
which is provided on the page 16.

"The public realm 
proposals for George 
Street, Altrincham have a 
central zone for seating, 
planters, etc. with 
circulation either side. 
This would work well on 

School Road..."

"I do not support motor 
vehicles being driven 
anywhere on School 
Road. This should be  
only for pedestrians 

and cyclists."

 

17

Page 71



A R E  YO U  I N  S U P P O RT O F TOW N  H A L L J U N CT I O N  P R O P O SA L S ?

2:  TOWN HALL JUNCTION 

SUPPORT

DO NOT SUPPORT

INDIFFERENT 

NO ANSWER

0% 100%50%

RESPONDENTS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SELECT  
ONE ANSWERS

49%  
SUPPORT

 "I would say that it is 
important that the visibility 
of crossing pedestrians to 
motorists, is improved as 
those coming off Washway 
Rd into Sale often speed 

through."

"I am broadly in 
support of this as we 
need to move away 
from the dominance 
of this junction by 
cars."

K E Y R ES P O N S E . . .

Rather general support of proposal, however some concerns were raised.

• Consider the materiality of junction to make it accessible and safe for 
visually impaired pedestrians and children. 

• Consider not removing traffic lights at this junction to make it safe for 
vehicles/pedestrians.

• Consider clearer cycle route lane to link with surrounding cycle lanes/
school road.

A R E  YO U  I N  S U P P O RT O F N O RT H E N D E N  R OA D  P R O P O SA L S ?

55% 
SUPPORT

3:  NORTHENDEN ROAD

"Whilst I can see 
the benefits of this 
scheme it is not clear 
enough how traffic 
on Northenden Road 
will work."

"Improving 
the junction 
at Hope Road 
should be a 
priority."

"Pleased to see 
widened footpaths 
on the Northern 
side to allow those 
businesses to 
spill out onto the 
pathways."

K E Y R ES P O N S E . . .

General support of proposal, public see it as a priority for Sale.

• Further consideration of the Hope road layout to solve concerns from 
the public.

• Consider clearer text on the change in traffic flow along Northenden 
road and surrounding roads, such as Broad Road.

• Great support on the widening of the pavements, creating more space 
for local businesses.

"Increased congestion 

is more than likely 

which will not 

improve air quality or 

any desire to spend 

time in this area."

0% 100%50%

RESPONDENTS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SELECT  
ONE ANSWER

SUPPORT

DO NOT SUPPORT

INDIFFERENT 

NO ANSWER

 

18

Page 72



A R E  YO U  I N  S U P P O RT O F WAT E R S I D E  P L A Z A 
P R O P O SA L S ?

4:  WATERSIDE PLAZA

K E Y R ES P O N S E . . .

60% 
SUPPORT 

"It is important to 
have a clear cycle 
Lane coming from 
direction of Sale 
Moor onto the 
bridge water canal".

"It will be brilliant to 
make much better 
use of this canal side 
area. More seating 
and plazas."

" I'm not keen 
on moving war 
memorial from its 
current prominent 
position."

General support of proposal, and is seen as important within the Strategy.

• Consider the extension of the cycle lane across the waterside plaza, 
connecting clearly with the Canal Towpath.

• Consider the positioning and materiality of seating in the plaza to 
create an enjoyable, safe experience for users.

• Consider the retaining of the war memorial outside the Town Hall so it 
is not re-positioned.

A R E  YO U  I N  S U P P O RT O F S I B S O N / S P R I N G F I E L D  P R O P O SA L S ?

54% 
SUPPORT

5:  SIBSON ROAD/SPRINGFIELD ROAD

K E Y R ES P O N S E . . .

"Greenery is very 
important here, 
along with an 
improved route to 
the canal."

"I support the 
segregated cycleway 
on this road, but it 
needs to continue 
onto Springfield Road 
- we need to support 
cycling to school."

General support of proposal, and is seen as important within the Strategy.

• Consider the extension of the proposed cycle lane on Sibson road, 
along Springfield road, connecting to Springfield Primary School.

• Consider  a strengthened, greener route towards the canal from Sibson 
road.

• Consider the widths of roads in this area to support a safe journey for 
drivers and pedestrians.

0% 100%50%

RESPONDENTS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SELECT  
ONE ANSWERS

SUPPORT

DO NOT SUPPORT

INDIFFERENT 

NO ANSWER

0% 100%50%

RESPONDENTS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SELECT  
ONE ANSWER

SUPPORT

DO NOT SUPPORT

INDIFFERENT 

NO ANSWER

19

Page 73



A R E  YO U  I N  S U P P O RT O F AS H F I E L D/C L A R E M O N T 
P R O P O SA L S ?

6:  ASHFIELD ROAD/CLAREMONT ROAD 

46% 
SUPPORT 

"Why does the cycle 
lane stop before 
reaching the corner 
and access to the 
canal/waterside 
Square."

"It is not at all clear from 
the current proposal 
how the additional space 
for parking and paths 
will be obtained on 
Ashfield Road."

" Please consider pedestrian improvements to the section of 
Claremont Road to the north (outside Trafford Music Service). It 
is difficult and dangerous to cross, due to many parents choosing 
to drop off their kids on the street, rather than accessing the car 
park."

K E Y R ES P O N S E . . .

General support of proposal, but seen as the least important area within 
the proposed Strategy.

• Consider the extension of the cycle lane along Ashfield road to link 
with the rest of proposed cycle lanes in the design.

• Consider the road widths along Ashfield road to prevent congestion 
concerns.

0% 100%50%

RESPONDENTS HAD THE OPPORTUNITY TO SELECT  
ONE ANSWER

SUPPORT

DO NOT SUPPORT

INDIFFERENT 

NO ANSWER

 

20

Page 74



The overall percentage of people that did not support the 
proposals was low. A range of additional commentary 
was provided with the responses that were not supportive 
of the overall Strategy.  Some of these points are directly 
relevant to the Strategy, whilst others are more general 
in nature and refer to the overall shopping experience 
within the centre. 

The following summary bullet points indicate the range 
and nature of comments received - a full breakdown of 
issues and responses is provided in Appendix A.

It is noted that some of the comments relate to detailed 
design elements including traffic modelling and highways 
design, that will be addressed during the next stage of 
works if funding is secured. 

• Concerns on the disabled access, particularly visually 
impaired and mobility users.

• Concerns on vehicle access along School road. 

• Concerns the design is car-focussed with additional 
parking along Northenden road. 

• Concerns of knock-on traffic issues  and congestion 
along Northenden Road, Springfield road, and in 
particular around the Hope Junction. 

• Concerns on the 'disjointed' cycle route through the 
design. 

• Concerns on the narrowing of roads, and widening 
of footpaths causing more congestion of traffic and 
less space for cycle lanes. 

• Concerns on road and footpath maintenance, which 
will be considered during the management plan of 
the proposal, as well as selection of robust materiality 
in detailed design stages. 

CONSULTATION ANALYSIS -  THOSE WHO DID NOT 
SUPPORT. . .

1 4 %  D O  N OT S U P P O RT

 

21

Page 75



K E Y CO M M E N T S /  I S S U ES 
I D E N T I F I E D

• Thoughtfully re-consider the vehicle access 
along School Road. Is it necessary in the 
design?

• Concerns on the lack of green route through 
to the canal across school road.

• Concerns on the road widths along Sibson 
road for vehicles.

• Concerns of the cycle lane along Ashfield 
road and lack of connection with rest of city 
centre. 

• Concerns on the lack of cycle connection 
with the canal tow-path across the plaza.

• Concerns of materiality of the Waterside 
Plaza.

• Concerns on the lack of bike rack facilities 
along School road.

• Concerns that the cycle lane route stops 
before Springfield road.

• Concerns on the clarity and safety of the 
traffic and pedestrian flow around the Hope 
road junction.

S C H E M E  R ES P O N S E

• Removal of the proposed  additional vehicular 
access on school road.

• Extension of the cycle lane along Ashfield Road  
and Springfield Road to provide better connectivity 
-including north/ south routes.

• Clearer cycle lane along the plaza towards Canal 
Tow-path designed.

• Waterside Plaza strengthened through a 
thoughtfully selected and strong material palette to 
withstand footfall in the detailed design process.

• Bike racks continually repeated all along School 
road, providing convenient and  multiple parking 
opportunities for cyclists.

• Extension of cycle lane along Springfield Road from 
Sibson road.

• Width of Northenden road adjusted - to provide 
safe pedestrian environment and cycle lane. Parking 
layout amended.

• Clear explanation on the traffic flow at the Hope 
road junction to clarify issues of congestion and 
pedestrian safety.

3 -  RECOMMENDED KEY CHANGES

The consideration of public comments has been reflected within the updated 
Public Realm and Movement Strategy for Sale. Alterations and improvements have 
been suggested reflecting the consultation feedback.

 

22

Page 76



School road vehicles 
-  proposed northern 

access removed

Northenden Road - cycle 
link added - parking 
integrated

Cycle parking - new cycle 
parking shown along 

School Road

Waterside Plaza concerns 
- Cycle connectivity across 

space now included

Cycle Connectivity - 
Springfield link added - 

public realm areas revised 
to accommodate new links

Town Hall Junction layout 
amended to include cycle 

linkage

Extension of cycle lanes 
-to perimeter roadways

YOU ASKED. . .
. . .WE DID 

Whilst the 2017 Public Realm and Movement 
Strategy has been shown to be broadly 
supported by the consultation responses - it 
is proposed to make the following changes to 
the plan to respond to specific issues.

 

23

Page 77



RECOMMENDED KEY CHANGES
YOU ASKED. . .
. . .WE DID 

SCHOOL ROAD
School Road traffic
The central and eastern most areas of 
the pedestrianised section of School 
Road will remain closed to all traffic. 
Layout changed to create an area for 
pedestrians and cyclists.

Central Area
New area for pedestrians and 
cyclists added - more space provided 
to northern edge of the street to 
accommodate.

Central Area
New areas for cycle parking added 
along School Road.

Junction
New cycle lanes added to provide safe 
route through the Town Centre.

Springfield Road
New cycle lanes and formal on street 
parking areas added to provide a safe 
route through the Town Centre.

TOWN HALL JUNCTION

 

24

Page 78



RECOMMENDED KEY CHANGES
YOU ASKED. . .
. . .WE DID 

New cycle lanes added to provide a safe 
off road route into the Town Centre 
- linking to Mayors Challenge Fund 
cycle proposals.

New crossing points relocated to 
improve pedestrian movement.

Carriageway reduced to 1-way to 
accommodate new parking spaces and 
cycle routes.

NORTHENDEN ROAD 

 

25

Page 79



4-DEFINING PRIORITIES

ESTA B L I S H I N G  A P R I O R I T Y M AT R I X

In addition to the ranking provided in the community 
engagement responses, the projects have been also been 
assessed with regards to their contribution to:

• The strategic objectives for the town centre - as set 
out in the relevant policy sections of AF5.15 - Areas 
of Focus - Sale Town Centre Trafford Local Plan - 
Consultation Draft 2021

• Achieving the design principles of the Sale Public 
Realm and Movement Strategy.

These allow us to understand the overall role and 
importance of the projects in relation to one another - in 
delivering the wider social and economic objectives of 
Sale Town Centre and the Public Real Strategy itself.

The table (opposite) sets out theses objectives and 
principles, and uses a simple grading system that 
records if the projects make a major, moderate or minor 
contribution towards them. These gradings are then 
added together to create an overall Priority Score that 
can be ranked. The assessment is based on professional 
judgement of the review team.

P R OJ ECT P R I O R I T I ES  -  CO M M E N TA RY

The matrix highlights a broad alignment across the 
projects with regards to priority ranking, and supports the 
initial consultation responses. 
The Design Principle scores are less definitive in their 
results, which reflects the way the projects have been 
conceived to collectively address the full range of 
identified issues and opportunities. As such the projects 
have an equal importance in delivering the Scheme.

• Across all three of the matrix  elements, School Road 
is however, clearly identified as a priority project, 
reflecting its central position and role for key retail 
and commercial functions of the town centre. It is 
an existing piece of public realm, that is valued as a 
traffic free space, and for the green character created 
by the trees along it. There is significant potential 
for the street to be the setting for a range of new 
environmental improvements. It is also closely linked 
to The Square Shopping Centre, so has the potential 
to support this important retail and commercial focus 
for the Town Centre.

• Closely linked to School Road, the Town Hall 
junction and Northenden Road projects both 
address the significant public concerns with regards 

to the impact of traffic, poor crossing points and 
general access around the existing centre, as well 
as delivering key strategic objectives in relation to 
walking/ cycling infrastructure. Collectively these 
projects were seen as forming the key central spine 
and 'heart' of the centre, delivering a legible string of 
attractive public realm spaces, improved movement 
into the shopping area and supporting Sales night 
time economy creating an attractive setting for the 
numerous restaurants and bars along this route. 

In practical terms, delivery of these projects together 
would be essential to ensure seamless cycle route 
provision and connections to Sale Moor.

• In terms of Strategic objectives, the Waterside Plaza 
project was considered equal to, or of greater priority, 
to the Northenden Road and the Town Hall Junction 
projects. It provides a clear improved connection to 
Bridgewater Canal, an existing hub for the evening 
activity, and the opening up of the river side and 
improvements to the street environment were seen 
as positive enhancements to this existing space by the 
community.  Whilst the project potentially delivers 
these multiple benefits, in terms of the overall 
scheme priority, it has been assessed as secondary to 
those mentioned above, as the resource is already in 
place and well used,  and it potentially has less of a 
collective benefit with the other projects, due to its 
position being slightly separate to the main high-
street areas.

• Springfield Road and Sibson Road are considered 
important projects in term of strategic cycling and 
walking provision, and specifically enhance the 
important side streets of Sale. Springfield Road will 
also support public realm proposals for The Centre, 
and general pedestrian movement. The consultation  
included specific comments with regards to the 
condition of the existing pedestrian environment 
outside of the school, and the need to have a high 
quality consistent cycle/ pedestrian routes along 
them. Whilst important in their own right as 
movement corridors, they offer a limited wider 
contribution to the retail, commercial environment  
and as such are ranked as being of lower priority.

The order of the projects within the Public Realm and 
Movement Strategy together with the associated cost plan 
have been reordered to match this. 

 

26

Page 80



                                   Project School 
Road

Town Hall 
Junction

Waterside 
Plaza

Northenden 
Road

Sibson/ 
Springfield 
Road/ 
Hayfield St.

Ashfield/ 
Claremont 
Road

Policy Objectives (AF5.15/17)

Improvements to public transport 
routes and walking and cycling 
links to the town centre

▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲

Improvements to the public realm 
and accessibility for all users 
including improvements which 
will better utilise access to the 
Bridgewater Canal

▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲ ▲▲ ▲

Development which supports 
Sale's leisure, tourism and cultural 
offer and in particular the evening 
economy

▲▲▲ ▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲ ▲

Development will protect, preserve 
and enhance heritage assets and 
their settings

▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲ ▲ ▲

Complement The Square Shopping 
Centre offer - the key focus for 
retail and leisure development 
within Sale

▲▲▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲▲ ▲

Objective Priority Score 15 12 11 10 9 5

Strategy Design Principles

Create a string of spaces ▲▲▲ ▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲ ▲ ▲

Extending the Planting ▲▲▲ ▲▲ ▲▲ ▲▲ ▲ ▲ ▲

Seamless Movement ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲

Including the Side Streets ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲

Finding Your Way ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲ ▲▲▲

Principle Priority Score 13 11 11 11 11 11

Consultation Response

Consultation Priority Ranking 
(1=Most Important  - 6=least 
important)

1 2 4 3 5 6

▲▲▲= Major Contribution   ▲▲= Moderate Contribution ▲= Minor Contribution

 

27

TABLE - PROJECT PRIORITY MATRIX - STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES, DESIGN PRINCIPLES AND CONSULTATION RESPONSES

Page 81



 

28

Page 82



5 -  COST PLAN -  SUMMARY

I N T R O D U CT I O N

The outline cost plan has been created by the Simon 
Fenton Partnership to give an indication of the 'whole 
project costs' for specific 'areas' on the scheme plan. 
This section should be read in conjunction with that 
document, as it sets out the detailed breakdown of costs 
and assumptions:

Sale Public Realm,  Order of Cost Estimate 001 - 
Indicative Costings subject to Design Development 
- March 2022

The costs have been set out in the order of priority that 
the public and wider stakeholder engagement felt were 
the most important to Sale. 

K E Y AS S U M P T I O N S  A N D  E XC LU S I O N S

• Costs are based on a combination of Landscape 
Engineer's outline specification and indicative 
construction costs for schemes of a similar nature.

• Costs are base dated 1Q2022 and include inflation 
using Building Cost Information Service (BCIS) 
Benchmark Data based on the following programme:

1. 2022-2024 Phase 1 - School Road, Northenden 
Road and Town Hall Junction

2. 2024-2025 Phase 2 - Waterside Plaza, Sibson Road 
and Ashfield Road

• Costs assume that the works will be tendered 
competitively to main contractors using a single stage 
procurement route.

• Costs assume that the works will be undertaken 
under a single phase contract. There is currently no 
specific provision for phasing of the works.

• All costs are subject to receipt of Civil / Structural 
Engineer, Highway Engineer and Electrical Services 
Engineer specifications and designs.

• Costs assume works will be undertaken Monday to 
Friday, 8.00am to 5.30pm, with no allowance for 
weekend or out of hours working.

• Costs assume working around buried services with 
no allowance for diversion or relocation.

• Costs do not make any provision for changes in 
working practices, the availability of materials or 
contractor's attitude to risk as a result of the Covid-19 
Pandemic.

CO ST I N G  P R O F I L E 

To allow for the subsequent development of the 
'Economic Case' - in accordance with the Government 
Green Book Guidance, , the cost plan has been set out to 
include the following:

• Costs have been profiled by year to allow for the 
present value adjustments.

• For costs in future years that have not been fixed 
through procurement, an allowance for inflation has 
been made and included in the year by year profile. 

• Costs include an allowance for risk. This has been 
defined as a contingency sum within the year by year 
profile.

• It has been assumed for this cost plan, that no costs 
are (i) sunk/ spent to date, or (ii) committed for 
investment within the study area. 

This information is set out in simple table (opposite/ 
next pages) of costs profiled by year with a line for 
each element. Given that there is still some uncertainty 
over what elements are to be included in the final bid, 
headline costs (and inflation and risk assumptions) for 
each element are shown separately, so that the costs can 
be reconfigured to reflect the final package of works for 
which funding is sought.

 

29

Page 83



N E X T ST E P S

Economic Costs
For the next stage funding applications, economic costing 
information will be needed to outline the Economic Case 
and for calculating the Benefit Cost Ratio. The detailed 
cost report with spend profile, set out below will be used 
to inform that work.

It is expected that in the economic case, costs will need to 
be presented as follows:

Costs are present values, i.e. costs in future years are:

• Adjusted by the latest OBR inflation forecasts (or 
official GDP deflators) so that they can be expressed 
as current year prices.

• Discounted by 3.5% to reflect social time preference.

Only net additional costs are included in the economic 
assessment, therefore costs should exclude:

• Any sunk costs

• Any costs that would be incurred in the reference 
case (i.e. the scenario against which all costs and 
benefits are to be estimated).

• Costs should include an allowance for risk and 
Optimism Bias

• Costs should reflect the whole life costs of the 
investment 

These adjustments would typically be completed by the 
economists that deliver the value for money assessment. 

Sale Public Realm,  Order of Cost Estimate 001 - Indicative Costings subject to Design Development - 
March 2022 - Simon Fenton Partnership LLP

 

30

Page 84



Sale Public Realm,  Order of Cost Estimate 001 - Indicative Costings subject to Design Development - 
March 2022 - Simon Fenton Partnership LLP

 

31

Page 85



Sale Public Realm,  Order of Cost Estimate 001 - Indicative Costings subject to Design Development - 
March 2022 - Simon Fenton Partnership LLP

 

32

Page 86



 

33

Page 87



APPENDIX A -  CONSULTATION ANALYSIS -  THOSE 
WHO DID NOT SUPPORT. . .

The overall percentage of people that did not support the 
proposals was low. A range of additional commentary 
was provided with the responses that were not supportive 
of the overall Strategy.  Some of these points are directly 
relevant to the Strategy, whilst others are more general 
in nature and refer to the overall shopping experience 
within the centre. 

The following summary bullet points indicate the range 
and nature of comments received.

It is noted that some of the comments relate to detailed 
design elements including traffic modelling and highways 
design, that will be addressed during the next stage of 
works if funding is secured. 

Comment Response

Concerns on the disabled access, particularly visually 
impaired and mobility users using crossing points across 
the proposal in particular the Town Hall Junction.

The exact nature of crossings will be addressed at the Detailed Design stage, 
however additional text within the Strategy will be provided to reference 
the importance of access for all, the incorporation of disabled access into the 
scheme and signage for all users.

20% of those who did not support the proposal raised 
concerns on vehicle access along School road. 

It seems prudent  here to consider moving back to a full pedestrianisation 
option, as well as addressing cycling provision.

Concerns the design is car-focussed with additional 
parking along Northenden road. 

Provision of parking was originally highlighted as a requirement to support 
businesses on this street. The existing plans seek to balance the needs of all 
users/ including new cycle connectivity - no change is proposed.

Concerns of knock-on traffic issues  and congestion along 
Northenden Road, Springfield road, and in particular 
around the Hope Junction.

To be resolved in the detailed traffic modelling of the scheme - to show clear 
alternative routes, speed control and signage.

Suggestions of speed limit changes along Springfield road. 
Concerns on the 'disjointed' cycle route through the design. 

To be considered within the Detail Design Stage.

Concerns on the 'disjointed' cycle route through the design. Additional cycle connectivity and inclusion of new cycle lanes throughout 
the town centre to provide a safe journey to be incorporated - specific 
feedback from Trafford Cycling group incorporated.

Concerns on the providing a range of shops within the 
town centre, which will be addressed within detailed 
planning, bringing in independent shops to Sale.

/

Concerns on the narrowing of roads, and widening of 
footpaths causing more congestion of traffic and less space 
for cycle lanes. 

Further traffic modelling to be undertaken during the Detailed Design Stage.

Concerns on road and footpath maintenance, which will be 
considered during the management plan of the proposal, 
as well as selection of robust materiality in detailed design 
stages. 

Further traffic modelling to be undertaken during the Detailed Design Stage.

Concerns regarding access to the canal. Existing proposals are focused on increasing safety and access to better 
lighting around the canal towpath in detailed design, as well as by Springfield 
school.

Concerns on Claremont road, with the narrowing of roads 
and widening of footpaths. Resident parking here to be 
considered carefully.

Further traffic modelling to be undertaken during the Detailed Design Stage.

 

34

Page 88



APPENDIX B -  CONSULTATION COMMENTS

SCHOOL ROAD 
A L L R ES P O N S ES  

• "I don't understand why you are proposing to open up sections of 
School road to motor traffic. This sounds like a backwards step. If 

you allow motor traffic then you should also allow cyclists".

• "Cycling along the pedestrianised road is welcome, but I do not want 
to mix with vehicles at the western end. If you wish to make the 
town centre more active in the evenings, you should be prioritising 
active travel - not cars.  People driving generally do not stop to buy 
things.  People walking and cycling do."

• "We must have more lights, especially at Christmas. Sale just looks 
sad compared to Altrincham. Also the shutters on the shops are 
horrendous, they should either be nice or none at all. More outside 
seating for watm weather.Too many charity shops."

• "Again, as a resident of Claremont Road, I'm unsure of what is 
meant by "restricted permit access" but being refused a parking 
permit as a resident doesn't make sense to me.  Also, all new 
business openings seem to be pubs or eating establishments, making 
things louder for us."

• "Isn't a cycling path with limited speed along the School Rd better 
than two proposef paths ( one on Sibson, one on Ashfield)".

• "Plans look fantastic"

•  " M O R E  G R E E N E RY I S  I M P O RTA N T 
H E R E  TO  M A K E  I T A P L E ASA N T 
E N V I R O N M E N T FO R  O U T D O O R 
S E AT I N G  AT H O S P I TA L I T Y V E N U ES ,  I T ' S 
TO O  CO N C R E T E  N OW."

• "I really like he detail shown of Copenhagen streets tree surrounds 
etc very good but is very different to the cgi of sale town centre - 
block paving and an obtrusive seating.   Can you improve the pic of 

sale to incorporate what these images will look like for sale?".

• "School Road has become extremely dilapidated in recent years, so 
a comprehensive effort at improving the area is a must, especially 
when neighbouring towns such as Altrincham have benefitted from 
this around the Market and Station. School Road at dark also has 
become a no-go area due to the lack of footfall, poor lighting and 
few shops or amenities that stay open past 6pm - this however has 
been exacerbated by the pedestrianisation of the road in the 1980s. I 
am a strong believer that bringing light, one-way traffic (to Hayfield 
Street maybe?), with large pavements to parts of School Road would 
encourage an improvement in the area. I support these proposals 
fully."

• "Would like a better playground than shown. And would prefer in 
the main square, but glad it’s been included. Hope that coffee shops 
pop up around it. Assume this means cars won’t drive in this area 
any more - it’s the least safe place of the pedestrianised area for kids 
at present."

• "Please do not allow any traffic access. At the moment cars park 
on School rd at night and cut through Claremont and exit east on 
school road. A pedestrian area should remain that way. Traffic also 
damages the surfaces."

• "I love a lot of these proposals and particularly support incorporating 
planting and play opportunities. I don't like the idea of vehicular 
access - it being completely pedestrianised is what is so good about 

the high street."

• I would rather see cyclists having to walk down the high street (i am 
a cyclist and would be prepared to do this). I have seen too many 
near misses between children and fast bikes."

•  " D O  N OT WA N T TO  S E E  V E H I C U L A R 
ACC ES S  T H R O U G H  S C H O O L R D."

• "The public realm proposals for George Street, Altrincham have a 
central zone for seating, planters, etc with circulation either side. 
This would work well on School Road...

• Specification of paving is important: level surfaces for mobility 
access bit for people with visual impairments or dementia a sharp 
change of contrast can be perceived as a step -risk of falling as 
someone tries to step over a step that isn't there. Likewise, dark areas 
eg. black manho".

• "School Road is an unloved but hugely important pedestrian 
thoroughfare. Currently it is unpleasant, poorly lit, poor public 
realm and furniture and unsafe late evening, night-time, early 
morning.  There is poor visibility from the Northenden Rd junction 
and the Washway Rd junction and is not an attractive location for 

retailers, leisure operators etc. 

• The side-streets in the main do not provide strong connections/
links across the Town Centre which also limits the potential of this 
part of the Town Centre. The work that Altered Spaces are doing 
to Town Square will have a really positive impact on the top end 
of School Rd but this needs to be complemented by this initiative 
asap."

• "I think they are all great APART FROM THE PART ABOUT 
ALLOWING CARS ON SCHOOL ROAD.  In fact I think we 
should also pedestrianise Northenden Rd from the Town Hall 
down to the end of the shops.  We also need MILES more parking, 
PARTICULARLY DISABLED PARKING."

•  " I  T H I N K T H I S  I S  I M P O RTA N T AS  T H I S 
E N D  O F SA L E  S E E M S  V E RY R U N  D OW N "

• " I am unsure about the vehicle access to School Road but the plans 
for a playground and family square sound excellent."

• "I do not support motor vehicles being driven anywhere on School 
Road. This should be  only for pedestrians and cyclists. How can 
you create the town square feel when there are massive SUVs being 
driven up and down and parked all over the place? Deliveries can be 
made to the rear of the properties."

• " The shop fronts along this section would benefit from investment. 
It would be lovely to see some original features reinstated. Maybe 
businesses could apply for grants to help with this."

• " Magnificent idea. Would make sale an inviting place to walk and 
spend a day."

• "I would suggest adding outdoor sitting areas (terraces) for the 
businesses in school road to be a permanent feature"

 

35

Page 89



SCHOOL ROAD 

A L L R ES P O N S ES  

• "Looks good but why add to traffic issues by allowing traffic to flow 
round to Sainsburys when it’s pedestrian today. Surely this is a 

mistake."

• " Family orientated balanced between pedestrian and vehicles and 
certain times. Allows for services industry to benefit from increased 
space."

• " I am not in favour of having more vehicular access to School Road"

• " On the whole, I am supportive with the exception of 
vehicular access on school road. This should remain completely 
pedestrianised." 

" P L E AS E  D O  N OT U N D E R  D O  T H E  P L AY 
E L E M E N T TO  H E L P YO U N G  FA M I L I ES "

• " The trees at the Eastern end of School Road have caused the 
property owners there considerable issues over the years. I believe 
making part of the area accessible to cars will make the shop units 
more visible and therefore will be conducive to small business 
owners starting up businesses. I feel that these proposals contribute 
to the family orientated nature of Sale."

• " How do you propose to undertake point 2 developments is not 
clear in your diagram. Please explain in detail the proposal.  This 
provision will only create chaos & traffic. More frustration for the 
residents than ease."

• " Any refurbishment of shops should avoid using the grim black 
paint that has already been used in Stanley Square."

• "Mostly support the proposals.  Allow cycle access along School Rd 
and adjacent streets will make it much more accessible.  Allow cars 
along School Rd from Hayfield St to Curzon St at certain times 
would be worth trying.  I don't think allowing cars along Claremont 
Rd onto School Rd with turning space would be a good idea.  I think 
it would be dangerous to mix cars and pedestrians in this area.  I 
wouldn't be against building in some accessible parking bays at the 

end of Claremont Rd for blue badge holders".

• " Although it is something the landscape architects are almost 
certainly mindful of, I want to state nonetheless how important 
it is to have a clear and uninterrupted route along School Road. 
The current condition requires endless meandering and dodging 
of all manner of street furniture from advertising screens and 
phone boxes to A-boards and benches which have no logic to their 
positioning. I would ask that with the demarcation of such zone that 
businesses are asked not to place any obstructions.

• The public realm surfacing is of poor quality, uneven and unduly 
affected by tree roots."

• " I love weekly markets"

" LOV E LY I D E AS .  AS  M A N Y T R E ES  AS 
P O S S I B L E ,  A N D  M O R E  CYC L E  PA R K I N G 

P L E AS E  -  ES P EC I A L LY I N  STA N L E Y 
S Q UA R E ." 

• "I dont think the playground is a good idea, you cant find a 
playground in the middle of manchester or altrincham or urmston. 
I cant imagine people who are shopping will want to stop and let 
their kids play or if they are sat at a cafe they wont want to watch 
kids play from an outside table...fear of kids getting snatched is too 
great. Or there wont be enough things to play on and there will be 
tears. Plus what's going to stop dogs tinkling on the equipment or 

litter gathering in it?"

" T H E  PA RT T H AT I  D O  N OT AG R E E  W I T H 
I S  A L LOW I N G  CA R S  ACC ES S  TO  S C H O O L 
R OA D.  T H AT WO U L D  B E  A N O  F R O M  M E ."

• "Will  be "open season" for the vandals."

• " Need a diverse range of shops. At present all new development is 
attracting cafe/eating venues only".

• " Get rid of the charity shops and beggars first to improve, get some 
proper shops in, like Sale moor and Ashton villages. Make it a place 
where people want to shop like it was 30 years ago"

• "Can the plans incorporate more formal cycle parking and formalise 
the parking against street furniture and street lamps by adding loops 
and notices?

• Having cycle parking included in the scheme is welcome but should 
be well placed where it will be used and not conflict with safe 
routes. Is the location of cycle parking very near to the proposed 
roundabout going to compromise a useable route for cycling ?"

• " This area is the prime area where the actual building quality 
and shop frontage is an incoherent failed UK high street disaster 
of styles, but with some obvious quality buildings still standing. 
Others, like the former Argos store, are truly awful 70’s constructs. 
Key themes should be picked up from cornerstone buildings and 
landlords assisted to rework frontages to create a more pleasing 
ambiance, as sadly leaves fall off trees in winter to reveal the scars. 
The side street reworking is a big challenge. Best of luck with that."

• " Consideration should be given to the types of flooring, it rains a lot 
here and if we have planning agent from a less rainy environment 
they will not understand this. , I don't want to see paving stones or 
slabs that come loose and wobble and store filthy water to spray up 
when they are loose or to dip in the wrong places creating puddles to 
wade through."

• " Improving the public realm would link the character area around 
Northenden Rd / Hope Rd with the Waterside and the Town Hall 
and School Rd…..especially if cars no longer dominate"

• " This area of the town centre has the potential for leisure & F&B 
uses to provide attractive indoor and outdoor space taking advantage 
of the pedestrianisation of the area.  As such it has the potential to 
be one of most vibrant parts of the Town Centre with an ability to 
host outdoor events."

 

36

Page 90



SCHOOL ROAD 

• "The reintroduction of motorised traffic is a massive backwards 
step, bringing pollution, noise and danger back in to the centre of 
Sale. This needs a serious rethink. Virtually all modern cities are 
removing space dedicated to the motor vehicle, especially right in 
the middle of the shopping district. This will drive people away - 
we do not want to sit by the side of the road inhaling fumes and 
listening to car horns. There is limited space available and it should 
be prioritised for people, not the storage/movement of private 
motor vehicles.

• The recent "Vision" for Trafford Council mentions:

• 1. Supporting people out of poverty

• 2. Reducing health inequalities

• 3. Addressing our Climate Crisis

• Bending over backwards to allow cars back on School Road does 
nothing for any of these aims. Car owners are the most privileged 
road user. The poorest in society cannot afford cars and will be 
further sidelined by this removal of a safe pedestrianised area. 
Attracting more motor vehicles is also a backwards step in terms 
of addressing the climate crisis, both in terms of CO2 emissions 
and particulate pollution contributing to poor lung health in our 
communities. Cars should be kept out of Sale, please prioritise 
people."

• " I don't understand the need to allow traffic on School Road up to 
Curzon St as thus us currently fully pedestrianised so this feels like 

a step backwards if the aim is to help pedestrians." 

• " Play area is not needed in this area and the addition of traffic 
coming past Costa towards Aldi is unnecessarily complicated. The 
rest seems good."

• " I am mostly in favour of the proposals but do not support allowing 
vehicular access to School Rd. at any time from Hayfield St. and 
especially Claremont Rd. other than by the emergency services. 
To my mind such access will invariably be subject to abuse and 
would work against the desire to create a better environment for 
pedestrians and cyclists."

• " But subject to the provisos that:-

Local police patrol the area and stop the drunks, beggars, and drug users 
congregating there and making it feel unsafe for other users. With Boots 
being the local methadone pick-up spot this has been an issue for years.

A ban on drinking alcohol in the street. Hopefully, the leery gangs of 
drunken men outside Wetherspoons won't move further down into 
School Road.

The street furniture and planting is well-maintained and clean".

• " No point trying to attract cyclists until you can stop their bikes 
being nicked . I’d rather no more cars on School Rd. It’s bad enough 

having the ones that are there already."

• " All proposals to allow vehicular traffic in this area should be 

scrapped immediately - we need pedestrianisation and cycle lanes."

• " Do not allow traffic back onto the pedestrian area at all.

" N O  D I SA B L E D  ACC ES S "

• " I don't think the proposal goes far enough in trying to create a 
visual identity for this area.  There needs to be a greater degree of 
planting, and it needs to be evergreen.  Planting a few cherry trees 
in front of Boots to try and disguise how badly it fits in with the rest 
of the architecture on School Road is like putting lipstick on a pig.  
You also need to deal with the landlords of the shops to see if you 
can reduce the sheer amount and visual clutter of all the perspex and 
neon corporate branding.  The bank on the corner is a particularly 
egregious example of characterful architecture being destroyed in 
favour of who-can-shout-loudest, clone-town aesthetics."

• " Would like to see a water bottle refill point included here."

• " Ideally a two way cycle path should be put in along School Road 
with delineation from the rest of the area by means of different 
surface, or at least 'considerate cycling' allowed  (this reflects what 
happens now anyway with many people on bikes accessing shops 
riding in the area at a slow pace). 

M O R E  S EC U R E  B I K E  PA R K I N G  ( E .G . 
S H E F F I E L D  STA N D S )  S H O U L D  B E 
P R OV I D E D  O U T S I D E  T H E  S H O P S  - 

C U R R E N T P R OV I S I O N  L I M I T E D  TO  TO P 
E N D  O U T S I D E  N AT W EST A N D  A F E W 

STA N D S  O U T S I D E  A L D I ."

• " Slight reservation about traffic being introduced at this part of the 
road - may be unhelpful to businesses at that end.  However, may be 

proportionate in the circumstances."

" I  O B J ECT TO  T RA F F I C  S C H O O L L A N E . 
TO  CO N T I N U E  AS  I S  -  N O  T RA F F I C  O N 

S C H O O L L A N E ,  S H O U L D  B E  P E D EST R I A N 
F R I E N D LY,  P O L LU T I O N  F R E E ,  CYC L I N G 
F R I E N D LY,  L I G H T I N G  -  A N  OAS I S  FO R 

P EO P L E  T RA F F I C  O N LY."

• " Some of the changes are positive, although the plans are 
strategic a lot more thought is needed for vulnerable users.  More 
consideration is needed to include the visually and hear impaired 
users.  Eg for visually impaired users they require tactile or some line 
to follow, many recent developments including south Kensington 
and Poynton include obstacles lamb posts, bins, bollards, benches, 
with no consideration for how the visually impaired can follow 
routes."

 

37

Page 91



TOWN HALL JUNCTION

A L L R ES P O N S ES  

• " I don't buy the "encouraging low speed" routine! Pedestrians and 
cyclists need SAFE space and not throw at the mercy of driver who 
may or may not choose to look out for them. Why 'potential' cycle 
lane? And what about cycle provision along Springfield Road and 
Tatton Road? We need a joined up cycle network." 

• " Roundabouts prioritise vehicular movements.  They do not benefit 
vulnerable road users, who will be forced to cede priority.  It's telling 
that you've used an image from Poynton - anyone familiar with 
Poynton knows that it remains an awful place for pedestrians and 
cyclists because the weight of traffic has not been reduced. This 
should be a signalised CYCLOPS junction, with default green for 
pedestrians/cyclists if no vehicles are in the area."

• " These schemes on paper look useful but the reality is they can 
cause and add to issues. There is significant gradient here that 
means that looking up and across the junctions could cause manifest 
problems with people approaching down the hill and looking up 
it.  Also not clear if its actually a roundabout or not. Most traffic is 
down the hill and right across the traffic which isn't the direction 
many will be looking again causing potential further issues that 
could be avoided."

• " Long delays at traffic crossings tempt pedestrians to chance it."

" T H AT J U N CT I O N  D E F I N I T E LY N E E D S 
LO O K I N G  AT.   T H E  P R O P O SA L LO O K S 
G O O D  FO R  P E D EST R I A N S ,  B U T I T I S 

A L R E A DY BA D  FO R  V E H I C L ES ,  WO U L D 
T H I S  I M P R OV E  I T ? "

• " The shared space in Poynton, in particular the roundabouts cause 
great traffic delays with an uncertainty of right of way for both 
cars and pedestrians. Concerns over policing road safety for young 

children due to lack of clarity over rules of road crossing. 

• A frequent continuous flow of pedestrians would significantly 
impact traffic flow. The current pedestrian lights assist flow of 
traffic and provide safe crossing for pedestrians on a busy junction. 
HOWEVER, there is not sufficient pavement space for crossing on 
Tatton Road".

• " This junction is used by all types of vehicle (buses, delivery lorries, 
vans and cars) it seems dangerous to remove the traffic lights on 
such an important junction which is the main route from Cross 
Street to Northenden Road in both directions. Increased congestion 
is more than likely which will not improve air quality or any desire 
to spend time in this area."

• " Just make cycling lane from Northenden and than to School Rd. , 
not just bits and pieces which are not creating a sensible net."

• " Feel it would be better to keep the traffic lights. The design of the 
Poynton Roundabout makes it quite unclear as there are no road 
markings. This could cause further congestion."

" P L E AS E  E N S U R E  P E D EST R I A N  A N D 
CYC L I N G  I S  T H E  P R I O R I T Y FO R  T H E 

J U N CT I O N ,  I T I S  T E R R I B L E  TO  C R O S S 
T H I S  J U N CT I O N  O N  FO OT AT T H E 

M O M E N T ".

• " I’m nervous the roundabout would make crossing the road and 
driving more difficult.'

• " Looks good -  reminds me of Poynton yes please get rid of the 

lights"

• " I believe this part of the improvement plan is the most important 
to execute correctly as it is a key crossing point to Northenden Rd/
Tram Stop etc to Sale West/Precinct and Washway Road and has 
high footfall. Looking at the Poynton Shared Space that is similar 
to this proposed scheme, I would say that it is important that the 
visibility of crossing pedestrians to motorists, especially in the dark, 
is improved as those coming off Washway Rd into Sale often speed 
through. Whether this is through speed bumps/rumble strips/better 
signage prior to the junction, or some flashing ground markings at 
the crossing will need to be fully evaluated."

• " I think you have totally underestimated the volume of traffic that 
uses this junction along with the large number of larger/ HGV 
vehicles, I am not aware of any traffic census information having 
been gathered and feel this is an important aspect to creating this 
lay out, along with the assumption that people are confident about 
using roundabouts and right of way for vehicles and pedestrians and 
the fact that pedestrians are likely to not follow the route… it’s called 

human nature to not follow rules."

• " The existing bottlenecks at the crossing on Tatton Road need to be 
addressed (it appears this is the case). It is very difficult to negotiate 
this with children, a push chair or wheel chair. Nonetheless, some 
hard barrier landscaping to protect pedestrians from vehicles should 
be considered if the railings are removed."

• " With the removal of the traffic lights in this area, will pedestrians 
be safe when crossing the roads?"

" S U G G EST I T A L S O  N E E D  A LOW E R 
S P E E D  L I M I T T H A N  3 0  I F T H E  L I G H T S  A R E 

R E M OV E D "

• " The present layout is hopeless. It's designed only for car drivers. 
Pedestrians are corralled into pens and have to wait ages to cross. 
This new design expects car drivers to slow and stop which won't 
happen. I'd prefer to see this as a pedestrian priority area with 
wide pavements and reduce the number of car lanes and space for 
vehicles."

• The way the cycle lane integrates with the junction needs a lot of 
work, and don't think it should be implemented as shown on the 
plans, not least its termination at a tight corner on the pavement 
creating conflict with pedestrians which may mean sudden stopping 
and/or dismounting in the carriageway.

 

38

Page 92



TOWN HALL JUNCTION

• The courtesy crossings are intriguing and though I understand the 
psychology the prospect of crossing the proposed junction outside 
the 'Block and Gasket' scares me, having to balance looking over 
your shoulder for cars coming from behind/right with those coming 
from the left. I'm also unable to comprehend how this would be 
safe for the visually impaired. I should say, however, the widening 
of the pavement here and improving the pedestrian crossings is an 
absolute necessity and should be prioritised above all else." 

" C L E A R  S I G N AG E  W I L L B E  N E E D E D  TO 
E X P L A I N  H OW T H E  SYST E M  WO R K S ."

• " I support the majority of the plans but i have big concerns some 

elements of the proposal:

• I really don't want to see proper pedestrian crossings replaced by 
courtesy crossings. It is clear who has right of way at what time 
with proper pedestrian crossings - it is too confusing as a driver 
and pedestrian along Stamford Street in Altrincham. The raised 
crossings give no indication as to whether cars are meant to stop or 
not and it feels much less safe as a pedestrian trying to cross.  

• As a parent i have taught my kids to wait at the red man and go 
with the green man if safe - if these go, and there is ambiguity in 
the surface treatment at a crossing it will be confusing for children 
who are less able to judge safety.  Partially sighted and blind people 
know when it is safe to cross when using a proper pedestrian 
crossing with audible beeps or the spinning indicator underneath. I 
like the idea in theory, but the reality on our busy roads is such that 
it is a recipe for disaster.

• The idea that encouraging driver behaviour with tonal contrast 
in paving and carriageway is ridiculous. That won't make things 
any safer when it is wet, windy, dark. I would hate to see accidents 
that could so easily be avoided. The flashing lights/traffic lights at 
conventional crossings give a warning to drivers that a crossing is 
ahead especially when visibility is reduced.  I have experience of 
this type of scheme in London - it just adds unnecessary confusion.

• I think the pedestrianised length of School road should not be used 
by cyclists (I am a cyclist and I would quite happily walk down that 
section). The pedestrianised bit needs to allow kids to roam free 
and people to walk without worrying about being hit by a speeding 
bike (i see too many bikes going too fast down there as it is)."

• " I welcome moves to slow traffic speeds down, and eliminate 
red light jumping, which is a problem at this junction at present. 
Hopefully the shared use will work, but it may require some form 
of formal crossing, if traffic flows are too heavy to allow safe 

pedestrian movement. There really should be a bike lane connecting 
on to Springfield Road, to encourage those wanting to ride to the 
Primary School."

• " It would be a great improvement"

• " As existing, this junction is a barrier to linking the town centre 
together. The corner where Slater Heelis (former Lloyds bank) 

building is a very tight pinch point and this footpath needs to be 
widened. A shared surface as at Poynton would work well. This item 
of work should be undertaken as the first priority"

" T H I S  T Y P E  O F J U N CT I O N  I S N ' T T H E 
A N SW E R  J U ST LO O K AT T H E  T RA F F I C  I N 

P OY N TO N .  T H E Y A R E  A L S O  D I F F I C U LT TO 
N AV I G AT E  A N D  I  T H I N K W I L L L E A D  TO 

M O R E  ACC I D E N T S "

• " I am broadly in support of this as we need to move away from the 
dominance of this junction by cars. Currently, pedestrian space 
whilst waiting to cross the road is limited and the topography 
will no doubt cause problems for less mobile citizens. However, I 
know the junction in Poynton isn't popular with residents and this 
concerns me."

• " This is the most important junction to get right in the Town 
Centre. Currently it is a very busy, problem junction to navigate and 
it splits the Town Centre in two which ensures Northenden Road 

and School Road are completely disjointed.

CA L M I N G  T H I S  J U N CT I O N  A N D  E N S U R I N G 
I T I S  M O R E  P E D EST R I A N  A N D  CYC L E 
F R I E N D LY CA N  O N LY B E  P O S I T I V E ."

• " Cars, cyclists and pedestrians sharing the same space is a very 
dangerous proposal.  It is a recipe for disaster and very scary for slow 
walkers, elderly people, mums and drivers trying to watch out for 

short children, children on scooters and bicycles."

• " I think this is an improvement but I think this junction is not the 
worst so I would not personally prioritize".

• " In general, I support the plans but there are hundreds of children 
exiting the school each day and, without barriers between them and 
the road, this could be dangerous."

• " Removing the traffic lights at the School Road/Northenden Road 
junction is a ludicrous idea. It simply doesn't take into account 
the realities of the location. You can't possibly compare Sale to 
Poynton (I believe that's the illustrative picture you've used in the 
presentation?) for this scenario. Sale has much higher volumes of 
traffic, it's a trough route for commercial traffic and not everyone 
will local (and familiar with the layout) or will be able to negotiate it. 
It will be particularly difficult for older drivers with slower reaction 
times and far more dangerous for pedestrians."

• " Drivers won't change their behaviour and it's dangerous for 
children, those with restricted mobility and / or visual impairment!  
You are basically leaving pedestrians at high levels of risk."

• " Please visit the example junction in Poynton - it is an absolute 
disaster and should not be copied in Sale. There will be major 
problems for people with visual impairment who will no long know 
where the safe areas to walk are. Whilst the render shows people 
on bikes, the area will not be safe to cycle in without any protected 
provision.  The pink cycle lane also seems to end randomly - how 

 

39

Page 93



are cyclists supposed to get to School Road or to the other proposed 
cycle infrastructure in the plan? Safe segregated areas for cycling 
and walking are required as per the TfGM Made to Move strategy."

• " This is a key gateway to the town particularly for those travelling 
via the Metro.  1t impressions are hugely important and despite the 
beautiful town hall building and views along the canal this area is 
currently hugely underwhelming."

• " I have driven through Poynton that has a similar roundabout and 
hate it. Drivers are not polite to each other and force their way into 
the roundabout. Traffic lights are fairer for the driver. I do like the 
crossings in Altrincham and think they could work out of rush hour 
but lights should still be active at peak times".

" T H ES E  P R O P O SA L S  W I L L P U T A LOT O F 
P R ES S U R E  O N  T H E  A L R E A DY C R OW D E D 

R OA D S  O F SA L E ."

• "I'm concerned without proper pedestrian or zebra crossings that 
it will be chaos with pedestrians either not knowing when to cross 
or being gung ho and just walking straight across the road. Driver's 
busy looking at whether cars are coming will not be looking for 
pedestrians and given it's not proper crossings will not be giving 

them right of way

• I fear for elderly people and young children  who will be too scared 
to cross without the security of knowing they have a green man 
with sufficient time for them to safely cross. Given there is also on 
one lane coming from Northenden road to the roundabout then I 
can easily see that the traffic will be backing up a long way down 
Northenden road and clogging up this area including access to the 
metrolink and the Northenden road shops even more. I do fear this 
will clog up the town centre even more. People, including those 
living to the east of Sale, will still have to drive. You can't carry your 
shopping home on a bike. I also don't understand the extra secure 
parking in the end of school road. Is this bike parking? It's not 
specified but I'm assuming in the space allowed it wouldn't be car 
parking which would also go against trying to pedestrianise this area 
(as it already is)."

" N OT E N O U G H  E M P H AS I S  O N  WA L K I N G 
A N D  CYC L I N G .  D O  N OT AG R E E  W I T H 

M O R E  PA R K I N G  O R  D R I V I N G  O N  S C H O O L 
R OA D.  S H O U L D  R E F L ECT LOW CA R  A N D 

LOW CA R B O N  P O L I CY I N  G M  T RA N S P O RT 
ST RAT EGY."

• " Again safety of people using the centre is paramount. with 

restrictions of traffic where necessary".

• " The proposals are very small and I can't zoom in the check info."

• " This is one of the key areas that needs improvement - the mismash 
of signals creates a pedestrian unfriendly location, and is noisy and 
unpleasant. 

• " This will be fascinating but potentially dangerous. The Poynton 
precedent is noted, but is the traffic intensity equivalent. The 

pedestrian pavement area to cross Tatton Road has always been a 
bottleneck and this looks relatively unchanged versus the crossing 
on Springfield Road. Given the increased usage of the canal I think 
this crossing has got busier, with people pushing bikes and buggies, 
so more space needed, as this is the direct route from town centre to 
canal towpath."

• " I'm nervous about confusion between drivers and pedestrians in 
this area. This is a really busy junction and these changes are very 
similar to those put in place in Altrincham where I feel drivers and 
pedestrians are often confused about who has right of way. That 
said, I am in favour of the changes as I feel that something has to be 
done."

• "If you remove pedestrian controlled lights you would need to 
reinstate lollypop/staffed crossing points to allow children to safely 
reach schools . The introduction of pop-up cycle lanes during the 
pandemic seems to have made some car drivers less tolerant and 
more aggressive to cyclists and pedestrians. mere change of paving 
surface will not slow them down to safe speeds and ramped surfaces 

impede cyclists.  This slide suggests cycling on school road but this 
seems to be in contradiction to the previous slide that suggested 
school road was to become family space 10 meters further on."

• " There does appear to be a need for traffic signalling to assist the 
safe use of the walking and cycling routes at junctions. There is 
clearly a problem with the proposals for cycling entering and leaving 
School Road at the Springfield Road junction. Would it be better if 
the cycle lanes were one way and on both sides of the road ?

• Explore other routes for cycling improvements as well. In particular 
to allow 2 way cycling on one way streets as well as surface + lighting 
improvements and road cleaning regimes.  "

• " Waste of money, nothing wrong with it at the moment"

• "Accident waiting to happen.  There are too many drivers who 
don't know how to drive with roundabouts and mini-roundabouts 
/ whatever "on trend expression you are using to describe this 
obstacle in the road, are, and will be even more of a problem.  Please 
remember that "traffic calming" = "driver angering"."

• "This is a key area for improvement, and I would like to see plans 
being more radical. Increasing the size of the pavements would 
be really helpful, pedestrians are squeezed onto small paths and 
crossings everywhere here. It could’ve a beautiful walk from the 
canal / metro to School Road with wider footpaths and more trees".

• " Just going to wait and watch the accidents happen".

• " Broadly support, though I think it will take time for drivers to 
adjust their behaviour and I worry about it being dangerous in 
the meantime.  Drivers have a tendency to go at speed around or 
across mini roundabouts.  I'd like to see some definition to the 
roundabout to stop cars going across it.  And also clearer pedestrian 
crossing points to give pedestrians clear priority and so all road 
users know that.  This arrangement would mean that longer 
vehicles would not be able to use the junction so a clearly signed 
and suitable alternative route would be needed"

TOWN HALL JUNCTION
 

40

Page 94



SIBSON ROAD/ SPRINGFIELD ROAD

" T H E  CYC L E WAY I S  A M U ST !  F U RT H E R , 
I T S H O U L D  J O I N  U P W I T H  T H E 

( " P OT E N T I A L" ) CYC L E WAY F R O M  S C H O O L 
R OA D ! "

• " No cycle provision on Springfield Road means no people cycling 
along Springfield Road.  There is a primary school there.  This is a 
prime opportunity to let children and parents walk/cycle/scoot in 

safety to school, but you have prioritised vehicles.

• If you do not build cycle lanes along Springfield Road, children will 
not cycle to school.  They'll be driven."

• " Unlike other areas this seems a sensible and measured 
improvement to help predestrians. However bike access is forced 
onto the far side of the road making the next junction more 
complicated than necessary as they will be on the wrong side of the 
road over complicating things for the driver."

• " In view of the issues we have experienced with litter, urinating taxi 
drivers, drug, alcohol and homeless people problems in the Tesco 
stairwell and abandoned shopping trollies I fear that this could be 
really bad news for the residents of this end of Sibson Road."

" P L E AS E  E N S U R E  T H E  CYC L I N G  PAT H  I S 
S EG R EG AT E D  F R O M  R OA D  T RA F F I C  FO R 

SA F E T Y A N D  TO  A L LOW C H I L D R E N  TO 
U S E  I T ".

• " How will buildings change at back of Natwest?  This area is visually 

messy,  can you add trees to this side?  Otherwise it's okay"

• " These proposals look excellent, however one must be aware of the 
significant future development of The Square that could damage 
the works made - this could be completed towards the latter stages 
of the scheme?"

• " Greenery is very important here, along with an improved route to 
the canal."

• " Would welcome more cycle lanes as long as they’re safe to use"

• " Would be better to have a cycle lane along School Road and out 
of the traffic. This road needs a 20 speed limit. Residents need 
to be able to get deliveries, when the no waiting restrictions were 
introduced without consultation, this has made it very difficult for 
delivery of large items for Sibson Road residents. The camber of 
the current footpath causes flooding in front gardens. Will a wider 
footpath exacerbate these two current issues?Idling at the Taxi rank 
currently causes pollution that is unpleasant to walk past. Signage 
and enforcement is needed to reduce this harmful nuisance.At point 
5 the green space is shown. The planning for the cinema showed 
that green space removed and replaced with hard landscaping and 
outdoor seating facing the existing residential area. Which is the 
truth?Footpath is very narrow near the school - agree this should be 
wider, but also an access was added to the school from the towpath 
but this is always locked. Many children walk down the towpath 
then have to come through the churchyard to the road to gain access 

to the school- nuts."

• " I'd prefer two separated cycle ways on either side of the road 
rather than having both ways together. The pavement should be 
significantly widened outside the school and pls remove all the 
railings. Is there space for a square outside the church if you narrow 
the Springfield road entrance?"

• " Please consider a cycle lane along Springfield Road to serve the 
primary School and town centre."

• " There is an opportunity to connect from the new Stanley Square 
pedestrian access, across Sibson Road (between nos 5 and 7 on the 
plan) to the Church and footpath to the canal, and further along 
Springfield road, also to the canal.  Also, from the new Stanley 
Square pedestrian route across Sibson Road to Friars Road, which 
leads to a small park, residential streets and canal access. Crossings 
across Sibson Road to both Springfield Road and Friars Road will 
be important. Vehicle access to the car park of the new residential 
apartments is from Sibson Road - this will cause traffic congestion 
and given the proximity to town centre amenities and public 
transport, is there a need for such a large car parking provision".

• " Given the proposed redevelopment of The Square Shopping 
Centre, Sibson Road will become an even more key thoroughfare to 
get right. The opportunity with the proposed Square redevelopment 
will significantly improve its frontage to Sibson Road, a new 
pedestrian route direct into the Square and therefore through 
to School Road and totally improved, landscaped environment 
that will also benefit the existing residential community and the 
Church. Again the calming of this road will be very beneficial to the 
school and the proposed new children's nursery that will help make 
this thoroughfare alot safer for pedestrians, cyclists, families and 
children."

" I  T H I N K T H I S  PA RT I S  V E RY I M P O RTA N T 
TO  O P E N  U P T H E  TOW N  C E N T R E  TO 

S O U T H E R N  A R E A"

• " I don’t support the creation of a pathway between the school and 
the church because this can only mean that the school would lose 
land. This should never happen! They have little playing space as it 
is."

• " I support moving the taxi rank. I support the cycleway - though it 
would be better as separate ways on each side of the road - safer at 
junctions. I support more ped crossings but they should be zebras. I 
support massive narrowing of the motor lanes. A 20mph speed limit 
is required for safety. This is outside a large primary school with a 
small catchment area - no-one needs to drive to this school. Please 
remove the parking bays outside the school, they are a danger. to the 
children."

• " This will very much disrupt, endanger, put at risk and inhibit 
community groups in this area".

 

41

Page 95



SIBSON ROAD/ SPRINGFIELD ROAD
A L L R ES P O N S ES  

" T H E  L I N K S  S O U N D  D OW N  T H E 
CA N A L I S  A V E RY I M P O RTA N T L I N K TO 
E N CO U RAG E  P EO P L E  I N TO  T H E  TOW N 

C E N T R E  BY FO OT."

• " The cycle lane gets to the corner and then what? They are at the 

wrong side when it gets to the next dangerous junction, erm no."

• " Needs refreshing but Important that it quickly connects to the 
square and other areas or it will become isolated and deteriorate."

• " The footpath adjacent to Springfield Primary school desperately 
needs to be widened. It would also benefit from some nicer looking 
barriers along that section of road by the school! 

• "General greening of this area would be great - courtesy crossings 
needed particularly near to the primary school."

• " It would be great to have proper access to the square - people have 
used Wilkinson’s as a cut through for years. Many shop on the way 
to/from Springfield Primary. If creating a green space, flow of 
people to it is important - doubt the footfall is that great along this 
road. mWider pavements to improve crowding outside school a 
good idea. Just surf-facing pavements to get rid of the huge puddles 
would be an easy practical solution."

• " All areas of Sale need to be invested in to encourage people to 
walk. This has always felt like the rear side of the shopping centre 
and a bit ugly. It'll be nice for people living on surrounding streets 
to have a better quality of environment."

• " There is absolutely nothing wrong with the existing taxi stand. It 
is not in anyone's way & is well placed. The new one will actually 
create chaos in traffic. The proposed cycle path is fine, but taxi rank 
is not necessary in the proposed location. The existing location is 
much better."

• " Notwithstanding my overall support, the cycle lane should not 
terminate in the way shown at the A56; it should continue across 
the junction with Washway Road onto Oaklands Drive with proper 
separately signalised crossings so cyclists (some of whom may be 
children) do not have to navigate the main road by either mixing 
with vehicular traffic or riding on the pavement. This may have 
to be at the cost of a traffic lane, but a weak link like this would 
put off a lot of people from cycling the route. I also wonder why 
the cycle path has not been shown running along Springfield 
Road to connect with the route from Northenden Road - it seems 
like a missed opportunity.Everything else I support, such as the 
narrowing of carriageways, the 2-way cycle path, connecting with 
the Bridgewater Way and the additional greenery."

• " Agree with more trees and development of this area"

• " Create more problems on a blinded curved road. Very heavy 
traffic due to number of school and shops in area"

• " Cycle lane - not used"

• " I think this is a definite priority.  Sibson Rd is a bit of an eyesore.  
Partly that's due to the Tesco building but also the other land uses 
on the N side of the road.  I think the green buffer is really good, 
but would need to see the land on the N side of the road brought 
back to more active use - where the multi storey car park and the 
wasteland is.  Improved access to The Square from Sibson Rd is 

sorely needed."

• " Have you actually seen how many pedestrians use this side of the 
town centre? Waste of money".

• " I think widening the pavement outside the school is the priority, 
and the improved access to the canal is a good idea. The rest is 
fanciful. The available money should be used elsewhere not on 
squares that no one will sit in. And why move the taxi rank? Isnt it 
closer to the shops where it is?"

" W E  O F T E N  U S E  T H I S  AS  A WA L K I N G 
R O U T E  F R O M  T H E  CA N A L T H R O U G H  ST 
PAU L’ S  C H U R C H  A N D  I N TO  SA L E .  T H E 
A R E A C U R R E N T LY LO O K S  R E A L LY R U N 
D OW N ,  A N D  I N  N E E D  O F S I G N I F I CA N T 
I M P R OV E M E N T.  I F YO U  CO U L D  A L S O 
I M P R OV E  T H E  O L D  CA R  PA R K T H AT 

I S  C U R R E N T LY D E R E L I CT L A N D  T H AT 
WO U L D  B E  E V E N  B E T T E R ."

• " Wider pavements just mean that vehicles will park on them fully, 
instead of half on and half off.

• "Where is the blue badge parking?"

• " A dedicated cycleway is not needed in this location"

• " Cycle lane, rest a waste of money, is 6 acre house and car park 
going to make way for yet more housing?"

• " Sibson Road 2 way cycle lane ends abruptly at the church and the 
other end near the A56 . The Bridgewater Way is Not a suitable 
cycling facility – it is narrow has poor or no lighting and there are 
access barriers including 2 outside the Springfield Road primary 
school. What will be the speed limit on Sibson Road Springfield 
Road ?Relocated taxi rank on Sibson Street is a good idea ! Will 
Hereford Street allow a shared cycling route ?"

• " Yes more trees please . we are to loose an open green space so 
please add back as many trees as possible . I regularly cycle short 
distances including this road , to shops, Dr's etc . The existing 
painted bike lane is pointless . better curbed cycle lanes would be 
welcomed"

• " I can see the key issue here is the ambience, road safety and air 
quality for the school. The plan is not developed or silent on other 
key issues, notably, the proposed interconnect to the square, corner 
development and reworking of the overall backside concrete goods 
yard ghetto, which is the biggest challenge. A demolition contract 
beckons."

 

42

Page 96



SIBSON ROAD/ SPRINGFIELD ROAD
A L L R ES P O N S ES  

• "Plenty of green spaces and trees are always welcome"

• " Important in the context of the Stanley Square development and 
also the link to the Bridgewater Canal, one of Sale's key assets."

• " The cycle lane looks good, especially if the footway and cycle 
lane will be continuous (rather than yielding priority) across side 
roads. Details of exactly what is proposed in terms of cycle lane 
protection is required.My main issue is with why the cycle lane 
randomly ends at Springfield Road rather than continuing around. 
Cycle lanes need to actually go somewhere, not stop short of where 
most people will be travelling to."

• " It's good to improve the access to the Bridgewater Way"

" I  T H I N K T H I S  I S  G O O D  B U T WO U L D 
A R G U E  AG A I N ST S U C H  A D RAST I C 

N A R R OW I N G  O F T H E  CA R R I AG E WAY,  I . E . 
I T S H O U L D  B E  N A R R OW E D  J U ST N OT AS 

E X T R E M E  AS  P R O P O S E D "

• " It would be much improved. I find very few pedestrians use this 
area at present. Would this development change this?"

• " My neighbours would lose their independence in being able to 
do their own shopping. . It would be too far to be able to carry their 
shopping to the taxi rank."

• " Much more tree planting is needed, and all cycle lanes need to 
connect to a wider network on surrounding roads."

" N O  D I SA B L E D  ACC ES S "

• " This is a very shabby looking area of derelict-looking car parks 
at the moment so we hope the proposed buildings will improve 
it.  Tree planting and under-planting is particularly critical here.  
Please make some more interesting choices that the usual silver 
birches and hedge-trimmer pruned Lonicera nitida."

• " The canal cyclepath needs widening and upgrading due to pot 
holes. Cycle lane needed at 8."

• " Providing better space for pedestrians in front of the school 
is good. Where will parents who insist on picking up by car be 
encouraged to park? This needs to be taken into account as some 
still currently try to park right outside the school."

• " The new cycle path should have physical segregation (e.g. 
bollards) from the main carriageway othersise it is likely to become 
a car park and useless."

• " I think the cycle lane is a good idea, though at present, this part of 

the road is actually quite comfortable to cycle on already.

• " I would have thought that the current taxi rank is well placed 
to  serve Tesco customers and their shopping. Having seen the 
changes already made to The Square I am baffled as to why all 
verandahs have been removed which had served a very useful 
purpose in allowing people to have a coffee when weather has been 
less than kind and especially during Covid pandemic."

• " Happy with encouragement of cycling, walking, lighting all along 
here. Please make it as safe as possible. The car park is a bit of an 
ugly eyesore currently."

• " More is needed to ensure safety of all vulnerable users. Courtesy 
crossings, are difficult for independent VI users, what research has 
been made to have a design that if fully inclusive.What provision 
is being made for flooding, either to absorb / drain water?Will the 
maintenance budge include leaf collections?

 

43

Page 97



WATERSIDE PLAZA
A L L R ES P O N S ES  

" I ' M  S U R E  YO U  H AV E N ' T OV E R LO O K E D 
CYC L E  ACC ES S  TO  T H E  CA N A L 

TOW PAT H ? "

• " Shared space on Tatton Place means "motor-dominated space".  

You can't share a space with heavy, fast vehicles."

• " The cycle lane needs have a  direct link to the one coming off the 
canal towpath."

• " Waterside is Sales face. It must be made more green and better 
looking. Ie slug and lettuce just looks horrible. But mano a boca 
looks lovely. more trees, flowers"

• " A key aspect of this (and other parts of renewed public realm) 
will be maintenance and ensuring any utility works are properly 
reinstated with the surface materials removed.  The public realm 
outside Sale Town Hall is blighted with tarmac strips and patches.".

• " Currently underutilised area and doesn't maximise the potential 
of the waterside area"

• " It is important to have a clear cycle Lane coming from direction of 
Sale moor onto the bridge water canal".

• " I hope that Tatton Place (as described) does not become 
pedestrian only. Given the number of flats and houses in the 
Waterside development"

• " Please design cycling opportunity from canal path towards Sale 
Moor. ATM there is a path from Northenden to canal path. You 
propose to remove it but there is no sensible proposal instead.".

• " Think there is an opportunity to bridge between retail and leisure 
further we should try and find a way to make the leisure centre 
compliment the area and sale town centre,  these facilities  need to 
be part of the fabric of town centre for health and wellbeing,  not 
just alcohol, pasty shops and charity"

• " These proposals all look excellent and make much better use of 
the main feature in Sale that is the canal, especially the extended 
terraced seating. The works that were completed alongside the 
Waterside in 2006-7(?) are still in a generally good state however. 
One cause of concern that I have with the entire scheme is the 
longevity of the paving. This 2007 laid paving has severely 
deteriorated outside the Town Hall where visiting cars, security 
vans and taxis occasionally park (illegally). This has resulted in 
unsightly broken paving stones, and flags that have been tarmacked 
over, making the whole area look a disgrace. Good quality paving, 
bollards, restricted parking and a long-term fund for replacing 

broken paving, like to like, also has to be considered"

• " An you just clarify that point 8 is going to allow vehicle access 
along with pedestrians, many off lying streets such as Harley 
Road, Bridgwater street require access to this area to leave there 
residences by vehicle, as we are unable to turn right as it is a one 
way system."

• "P rovision to sit and overlook the water should be included. The 

current benches are too bunched together."

• " This area already works quite well

• " It will be brilliant to make much better use of this canal side area. 
More seating and plazas."

• " Great idea, this area could be a better feature of Sale, although 
other items in the plan feel like higher priorities."

• " Stop all parking in this area. All the flags are broken due to this 
area being a car park at night including the cenotaph. Otherwise 
this development will also quickly be damaged. 5 - pls retain the top 
of the wall even if you lower the height. The top stone is historical 
to the area and would be a big shame to be replaced by railings."

" I  R E A L LY S U P P O RT T H I S  E N T I R E 
P R OJ ECT,  I ' M  J U ST N OT E N T I R E LY S U R E 

H OW I  F E E L A B O U T T H E  P O S S I B L E 
R E LO CAT I O N  O F T H E  WA R  M E M O R I A L ."

• " The segregated cycle lane along here is vital to connect with the 

planned Bee Network route to Sale Waterpark."

• " This is the only safe space that is attractive currently - and any 

improvements will bring added benefits"

• " The waterside plaza works well as it is, improving visual access to 
the canal is an improvement".

• " One of the unique features of the Town Centre is its link to the 
canal. Sale really doesnt make the most of this asset and the Town 
Centre generally turns its back on the canal. The current Waterside 
Plaza is ineffective and does not make a feature of the canal. These 
updated proposals go someway to addressing that but this needs to 
be the start of fully integrating the canal into the Town Centre not 
the end."

• " I think layered ampitheatre seats back to back, half facing the 
canal and half facing Waterside Plaza, would be a better idea.  Then 
you could sit and watch the water or sit and watch a presentation."

• " For me the waterside is fine, I would prioritize other areas first".

• " Parking on the ramp should be banned."

• " This is a much-loved and under-utilised area of the town centre. 
A flat surface to enable markets etc is a great idea."

• " Ideas from from Granary Square would provide a beautiful green 
seating area."

" E M B RAC E  W H AT SA L E  A L R E A DY H AS , 
G R E AT I D E A"

 

44

Page 98



WATERSIDE PLAZA
A L L R ES P O N S ES  

" T H E  A R E A CO U L D  B E  U S E D  M O R E , 
A N D  T H E  I M P R OV E M E N T S  S O U N D  N I C E , 

H OW E V E R  N OT M Y TO P P R I O R I T Y."

• " The space becomes more usable and needs some options for floating 

vendors on the canal front."

" T H E  V I S UA L I SAT I O N  ST I L L M A K ES  T H E 
A R E A LO O K A B I T BA R R E N ,  ES P EC I A L LY 
I N  W I N T E R  I F YO U ' V E  S E L ECT E D  O N LY 

D EC I D U O U S  T R E E  S P EC I ES ."

• " The space becomes more usable and needs some options for floating 

vendors on the canal front."

" W H I L E  A L L V E RY N I C E ,  T H I S  I S  L ES S  O F A 
P R I O R I T Y T H A N  T H E  OT H E R  P R O P O SA L S "

• " To big an impact on drivers.  The tiered space will attract all day 

drinkers and will not be family friendly - lots of precedents for that!"

• " Please make sure lots of secure cycle parking is provided."

• " These proposals address all the spots that need improving. Especially 
increasing the view of the canal. This would provide opportunity for 
water events with an audience. Very popular"

• " The waterside is already a nice area and should be used as well as 
possible. I do feel some of these proposals spend on tweaking things 
that are already fine eg lowering the wall. Pedestrianise tatton place? 
What will be on it to attract people? I would prefer wider pavements 
elsewhere for outdoor terraces for restaurants and school road 
surfacing once and for all and then not patched with tar. The road 
cutting the town hall from school road inevitably breaks the flow of 
pedestrian space."

• " Find it a bit hard to understand what is new here"

• " To make the cycle link between Northenden rd and the canal easier 
to traverse would be great thing. I've often felt that the plaza isn't well 
utilised and these plans would improve things."

• " Northenden Road is already a very congested road. Proposing to have 
a cycle path there & making it one way for vehicles is just going to add 
to already congested roads in Sale."

• " Again, widening pavements is a plus, The existing ramp down to the 
canal does not allow two-way passing so I would ask that the new one 
is at least 3m wide. The towpath in front of the terraced area should 
also be widened so that there is less conflict in what is, and will be, a 
busy area.I think the improvements of the Metrolink entrance (which 
has poor sight lines on exit, causing conflict as people step onto the 
pavement, which should be improved) and outside the Town Hall 
should be part of the junction improvements and prioritised over the 
Waterside area, should that be relevant."

• " Space fronting the canal should be opened up as wide as possible with 
as much greenery added as we can get."

• " No disabled access"

• " LOVE, LOVE, LOVE this!!"

• " There are sufficient pedestrian crossings in this area for the amount 
of foot traffic"

• " Broadly support although the public realm at this location is 
probably the best Sale has to offer at the moment so I'd see this 
as a lower priority.  I'm not sure how these changes  alone will 
encourage more people to use the Waterside Plaza area, so it could 
be a lot of money to not change the use of the area very much.  
It might be better to convert this back to a road that cars could 
use.  That could allow the space in front of the Town Hall to be 
pedestrianised.  I'm not keen on moving war memorial from its 

current prominent position"

• " This area again looks like the development would be a great 

improvement ."

• " Again, blue badge parking has been removed. Rail alongside 
canalminstead of a wall?  I wonder how many people will end up 
being thrown over into the canal/onto the towpath......"

• " Should not be reducing the carriage way outside the town hall, 
tight turning area, would be dangerous. No need to remove the war 
memorial, it’s nicely linked to the town hall. The waterside plaza 
sounds good, would be used more. The brick walls along the canal 
add charm, working canal plus safe for small children."

• " More trees required and upkeep by the Council. The area is a 
disgrace."

• " Nothing wrong at the moment, waste of money. Only good thing 
is cycle lane. Moving war memorial is an insult to those who gave 
their lives".

• " Consider narrowing the junction of Tatton Road with Ashfield 
Road to make it easier for walkers to cross on the zebra crossing. 
Your proposals do not show any zebra crossings . Please retain 
all zebra crossings. Consider allowing 2 way cycling on one 
way streets as well as surface + lighting improvements and road 
cleaning regimes: Group of contiguous one way streets comprising 
Tatton Place, Chapel Road and Tatton Road"

• "Plan looks confused. no clear link for cyclists from canal to school 
road just suggestion that this will be worked around something 
else. No current demand for market space if this is also available in 
the middle of school road. Cycle lane appears to stop pedestrians 
watching the canal from the bridge as a lot do".

• " can remember what it used to be like, and our family have enjoyed 
happy times with meals in the restaurants in this area or visits 
to the Waterside. Happy to see further improvements but not as 
desperate as other areas."

• " 1. Love the idea of replacing the wall with a fence to see the water! 
2. Tatton Pl as a "pedestrian orientated street"? Does that mean 
traffic will be restricted? At present it seems to be an unregulated 
car park.".

" T H I S  A R E A I S  P OT E N T I A L LY O N E  O F 
T H E  B EST S PAC ES  I N  SA L E  FO R  H O ST I N G 
O U T D O O R  E V E N T S .   I T I S  A N  AT T RACT I V E 
E N V I R O N M E N T A N D  N E E D S  TO  A D D R ES S 
T H E  CA N A L I N  A M O R E  P O S I T I V E  WAY."

• " I think everything looks good but I think the amphitheatre should 
stay and it should be used more by outdoor theatre, especially in 
covid times. It should be an extension of the waterside theatre."

 

45

Page 99



NORTHENDEN ROAD 
A L L R ES P O N S ES  

• " Preventing drivers from going North to South to the other side 
of sale is a terrible backward step. This will drive far more cars 
through other residential streets such as Wardle road that has 

extensive traffic calm on it to REDUCE its usage.  This scheme 
adds to it potentially driving people down a street that is poorly 
maintained and has high traffic of young children going to St. 
Josephs school and Sale Grammar."

" T H E  CYC L E  PAT H  S H O U L D  J O I N  U P 
W I T H  A CO N T RA F LOW L A N E  O N  B R OA D 

R OA D."

• " The hope road junction definitely needs looking at, but restricting 
the already busy traffic flow would cause gridlock. Where would 
the cars go instead? I struggle navigating this stretch as it is 
now (lots of short term double/illegal parking.  How will it be 

narrower?".

• " Concerns over flow of traffic if Northenden Road becomes one 
way, particularly with existing one way route at the entrance of 
Broad Road. How would traffic from Broad Road and sale moor 
approach tatton Road, Sainsburys, Aldi, Tesco and Marks and 
Spencer's? Is traffic expected to go via Marsland Road or Dane 
Road??? (Both already have significant heavy traffic at those traffic 

lights)"

• " The traffic situation on Hope Road should be addressed by 
making the left turn from Northenden Road no entry. This would 
reduce the number of large vehicles on to a residential street and 
encourage industrial units to move to an appropriate space. Rather 
than being on a Cul de sac near a school. (The carpet warehouse, 
delivery, fitters etc) .  A one way system would prevent cars from 
mounting the pavement and reduce traffic flow generally to make 
it more Comfortable for pedestrians".

" W H I L ST I  CA N  S E E  T H E  B E N E F I T S  O F 
T H I S  S C H E M E  I T I S  N OT C L E A R  E N O U G H 

H OW T RA F F I C  O N  N O RT H E N D E N  R OA D 
W I L L WO R K .  I S  I T O N E  WAY ( I N TO  T H E 

TOW N  C E N T R E ) ?  I F S O  W H AT A B O U T 
C U R R E N T B U S  R O U T ES  A N D  ACC ES S  TO 

H O P E  R OA D ? "

• " Improvements here are well received... need to incorporate top of 
broad road so that leisure centre becomes part of sale town centre 

see earlier comments"

• "A longside School Road, I believe this is the most important 
segment of the improvement plans. For far too long, this stretch of 
Northenden Road has looked scruffy, dirty, and suffered from a 
lack of a cohesive street plan, despite the numerous good shops and 
businesses along here. With the recent rise in takeaway eating, the 
road suffers from illegal parking from delivery drivers on the north 
side of the street. Making the pavements wider to allow outdoor 
seating on both sides is an integral part of the plan that needs 
delivering."

• "The main one being turning Northenden Road to a one way 
system, for a double cycle lane. The first point is what other cycle 
lanes does this join up with. Where are the larger plans, it is 
pointless having a cycle lane for just a few hundred meters if it does 

not link in with a further cycle initiative.

• Secondly, as a resident of Broad Road, I have great concerns about 
increased traffic on this road, as traffic rather than following the 
one way system around the leisure centre decide to drive down 
Broad Road instead. A concern is people also using Irlam Road 
and Clarendon Road as a cut through to access Northenden Road 
near to Sale Moor. Secondly the junction by the Leisure Centre 
is already a bottle neck with the carparks and people dropping of 
others to use the Leisure facilities. 

• The traffic will be encourage to use Broad Road as a direct route to 
the motorway. Thereby increasing noise, and air pollution, along 
what is a residential road rather than commercial premises where 
the proposed one way will be,

• Broad Road also has a primary school and a number of residential 
care homes, and to have further traffic increases air pollution and 
road safety for these vulnerable members of the community.".

" C R O S S I N G  H O P E  R OA D  N E E D S  U R G E N T 
AT T E N T I O N  B U T W H E R E  W I L L T H E  R EST 

I F T H E  T RA F F I C  B E  F I LT E R E D  TO ?  SA L E  I S 
V B U SY A N D  M O R E  H O U S ES  B E I N G  B U I LT 

= T RA F F I C .  N A R R OW I N G  R OA D S  I S N ' T 
G O I N G  TO  R ES O LV E  T H AT I S S U E ".

• " The Hope Road crossing is an absolute priority. It is presently very 

unsafe."

• " As a resident at the corner of Northenden road and wardle road 
this would make a big difference to me. Welcome the cycle path 
and the wider pavements and one way system. Think this would all 
be great. Would like to know what the gateway feature is. Would 
be great if you could manage the tenants along this road so they 
don’t block all the pavement with signs and parked cars. Pedestrian 
priority at Hope Road looks great too. Please hurry up on this bit ’"

• " There is no alternative through road, so no amount of street 
furniture will resolve that and traffic will continue to be an issue. 
Generally I prefer to support moving cyclists away from busy roads 
rather than encouraging them into traffic heavy route"

• " A controlled crossing is needed at the "gateway" end of the new 
cycleway to allow westbound cyclists to access it safely.It's not 
mentioned here, but is in the introduction: I would be very much 
in favour of adding a contraflow-cycleway to Broad Road to access 
this area more easily. As it would naturally feed into the proposed 
Northenden Road cycleway no extra traffic controls would be 
needed."

 

46

Page 100



NORTHENDEN ROAD 
A L L R ES P O N S ES  

• " Loads of potential currently being missed so this would help improve 

the experience for all (except motorists".

• " Creating a sense of arrival, and a meeting place in front of the Metrolink 
station is essential. The Northenden Road/Broad road and Northenden 
Road/Hope Road junctions are barriers to linking the town centre 
together. Reducing the impact of cars and increasing the pedestrian 
useability is important. Creating more space for restaurants to spill out 
onto the pavement is positive, reduced vehicle traffic will also make 
al-fresco dining more appealing. The Bridgewater canal towpath is a very 
well used cycle route, how do you get from this cycleway to/from the 
canal towpath safely?"

• " The importance of improvements to Northenden Road cannot be 
understated. The local independent leisure and restaurant businesses that 
have set up here are a credit to the local economy and the desire from local 
residents and businesses to invest in improving the evening and night-
time economy in spite of the inability of the Local Authority to support it. 
Ideally this stretch of Northenden Road would be completely closed off 
to vehicular traffic to enable the businesses there to spill out fully onto 
the street and maximise their collective potential. However, if that is not 
possible to achieve then the proposals put forward are a big step forward."

" W E  A R E  D ES P E RAT E  FO R  M O R E  PA R K I N G 
TO  B E  A D D E D  TO  E N A B L E  U S  TO  U S E 

T H O S E  S H O P S .  H OW E V E R  A R O U N DA B O U T 
I S  A B I G  M I STA K E .   C R O S S I N G  T H E 

H O P E  R D/ N O RT H E N D E N  R D  J U N CT I O N 
I S  A N I G H T M A R E .   I T I S  A T E R R I F Y I N G 

E X P E R I E N C E .   A N Y H E L P T H E R E  WO U L D  B E 
G R E AT.   I  S U G G EST T RA F F I C  L I G H T S  TO O."

• " I support the one way traffic and more space for pedestrians and outside 

seating"

" I M P R OV I N G  T H E  J U N CT I O N  AT H O P E  R OA D 
S H O U L D  B E  A P R I O R I T Y "

• " This is a vast improvement, I completely support the proposals at this 
location. Crossing Hope Road as a pedestrian is extremely difficult at the 
moment; changing Northenden Road to one way would make this much 

easier."

• " Brilliant connectivity improvements for pedestrians and cyclists. 
Support 1 lane of motoring only. It would be great to ban the left turn into 

Hope Road - make this a really safe and pleasant crossing."

• This is just going to increase chaos & congestion in the already narrow 
Northenden Road. Roads need to be more wide in order to carry out these 
proposals. But unfortunately, the roads are already narrow. So as I said 
before to carry out these proposals you need to have better infrastructure 
& wide roads in place. Also where are you going to create the extra 

parking space from? Where is the place for new parking places?

• " It would be great to give businesses bars, cafes and restaurants 
in this area of town the possibility of adding outdoor sitting area. 

Increasing the buzz and cozyness of the area."

• " The disruption is not necessary and will not add anything to the 
current situation"

• " I feel you have missed supporting the pupils at St josephs and 
down Hope Road, where traffic is terrible and cars drive so fast 
down there! Agree the corner of Hope Road is a unsafe junction, 
and like the one way idea."

• " As per the view of the overall scheme. Hope road is a key route 
into and out of sale centre over to Brooklands and out towards the 
rear of Sale. Stopping traffic from turning into it moves traffic to 
other roads that doesn’t make sense. Where does the traffic go? 
40+% of traffic going out down Northenden road turns right there. 
If they don’t go down there where is next Wardle? That’s a very 
residential tree lined road with significant traffic calming that ends 
up at a junction onto Marsden that is already busy, push that much 
traffic down there and how do the residence even get out?"

" 1  WAY I S  N E E D E D  A N D  E X T E N D E D 
P E D EST R I A N  ,  R ESTAU RA N T T E R RAC E  TO 

C R E AT E  B E T T E R  E V E N I N G  A M B I E N C E ."

• " Pleased to see widened footpaths on the Northern side to allow 
those businesses to spill out onto the pathways. 

• The plan to make the part of Northenden Road from Broad Road to 
Woodlands totally traffic free would have been much better from 
the point of view of making this area a more pleasant eating and 
socialising place."

" I F N O RT H E N D E N  R OA D  I S  O N E  WAY 
W H E R E  D O ES  T H E  T RA F F I C  G O ? "

• " Like the idea of wider pavements and more social space with 
reduced traffic."

• " Need to ensure other roads can take capacity if reducing 
carriageway space - make sure that traffic is encouraged to go other 

ways too"

• " Wholeheartedly support this proposal. Travelling along here with 
either children or a pushchair is awful at present. This would make 
it easier."

 

47

Page 101



ASHFIELD/CLAREMONT ROAD 
A L L R ES P O N S ES  

• " No mention of cycle provision!

• "Cycle access to Sainbury's should connect to the bike parking area. 

At the moment we have to cycle all round the car park to get there"

" T H E  P E D EST R I A N  C R O S S I N G  I S  P L A I N 
DA N G E R O U S ,  CA R S  D O  N OT STO P AT I T."

• " Creating cycling path from nowhere to nowhere doesn't seems to 
be wise. Is the designer ever cycle through the town?"

• " Narrow roads = worse traffic"

• " Can cyclists be given access to canal by adding a contraflow to 
Trafford Place? Otherwise they have to go right round the town 
hall".

• " The pedestrian crossing at the end of Ashfield road crossing 
cross street (from sainsburys to minikin) is not currently set up for 
pedestrians. You can’t cross from the sainsburys side of the road 
to minikin in one turn of signals and results in waiting on the tiny 
mid section crossing in the middle of cross street which is such 
a busy road and dangerous when with children. Please can this 
crossing be updated too to make it more user friendly for people 

walking from the Ashton side into Sale."

• " Please consider pedestrian improvements to the section of 
Claremont Road to the north (outside Trafford Music Service). It 
is difficult and dangerous to cross, due to many parents choosing to 

drop off their kids on the street, rather than accessing the car park."

• " Currently there is a single zebra crossing, a traffic island and 
pelican crossing at the Cross Street junction. Additional crossing 
points and traffic calming would be an improvement. Cars speed 

along Ashfield Road to catch the Cross Street lights. A pelican 
crossing to the south side across Cross Street would be good, 
currently only on the north side of the junction"

" AS  A C L A R E M O N T R ES I D E N T,  I 
A L R E A DY ST R U G G L E  W I T H  S H O RT 

T E R M  H A I R D R ES S E R / M A R K E T T RA D E R S 
B LO C K I N G  M Y D R I V E  A N D  CA R  A N D  W I T H 

V I S I TO R S  PA R K I N G ."

• " It is important to ensure that the main arterial routes around 
the Town Centre are improved to maximise permeability for 
residents, improve safety and to manage vehicle movements. It 
is also important that Sibson Road, Ashfield Road, Claremont 
Road, Northenden Road etc provide a sense of arrival for visitors 
and make local residents proud of their Town Centre. All 
these proposals put forward are inter-linked and should not be 
considered mutually exclusive. A budget and cohesive plan to 
deliver all these proposals needs to be delivered."

" I  T H I N K T H I S  I S  A N  I M P R OV E M E N T 
B U T T H I N K OT H E R  A R E AS  S H O U L D  B E 

P R I O R I T I Z E D "

• " Lots of ped crossings are good."

• " Do not see this as any value to town centre redevelopment."

• " I think this is a vital development. Ashfield is too often used 
as a rat run by drivers which is a worry as it is a busy route for 
pedestrians including lots of school children."

• " Makes the space safer for pedestrians and families coming 

into Sale."

" A M  I  G O I N G  TO  G E T TO  A N 
I M P R OV E M E N T P R O P O SA L FO R 

S C H O O L R OA D  T H O U G H ?  T H AT ’ S 
M O R E  I M P O RTA N T T H A N  A B O U N DA RY 

R OA D.  G R E E N  S PAC E  WO U L D  B E 
P L E ASA N T."

• " Ashfield Road is poor even for motorists, but more so for 
pedestrians and cyclists. Can't see why a zebra crossing needs 
a refuge, so this would be the first thing I would sort by also 
building out the pavements at the crossing point even if 
nothing else could be done for a while. Also happy to see the 
carriageway width regularised and formalised, as the parking 
at the moment feels a bit dangerous.  I am not sure what is 
being proposed here with what might be a cycle lane? I can't 
be in support of any cycle lane which does not have proper 
integration with the junction of a main road; this is where 
most cyclists are killed and injured and should not be an 
afterthought."

• " See this at part of the loop round the town centre. No need to 
spend money on it."

• " Again, removal of blue badge parking is very apparent.  What 
about people with mobility issues who use walking aids, and 
those not able to walk any great distance".

• " This is a main toad through the town and the carriage way 
should be be reduced."

• " Additional trees required, plus again the streets of Sale are 
not kept clean by Amey. Where has the pride gone? Do we 
have to wait for the upgrade before streets will be weeded and 
cleaned?"

 

48

Page 102



Page 103



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 1 

 
TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

 
Report to:   Executive 
Date:    20 June 2022 

Report for:    Decision 
Report of:  Executive Member for Finance and Governance and the 

Director of Finance and Systems  

  
 

Report Title 
 

 
Council Tax Discretionary Schemes – Proposal to Consult on Changes 
 

 
Summary 

 

Council Tax liability charges are set based on legislative requirements. There are a 
number of statutory discounts that the Council is required to award, however, since 

April 2013, the statutory discounts were removed for certain empty properties and 
councils were required to set their own discretionary policies.  

 
This report seeks approval to consult on a range of discounts related to unoccupied, 
empty properties included in the current discretionary policy to be more fit for 

purpose and to align with GM counterparts. 
 

 
Recommendation(s) 
 

 
That the Executive gives approval to consult on proposed changes to the Council 

Tax Discretionary Scheme on Empty Property Charges from April 2023 
 

   

Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 
 

Name:   Louise Shaw  
Contact Number: 07815 699615 

 

 
Background Papers: None 
 

Page 105

Agenda Item 8



 

 2 

 

 

Relationship to Policy 
Framework/Corporate Priorities 

 

Value For Money 

Relationship to GM Policy or 
Strategy Framework 

Not Applicable 

Financial  Changes to the discretionary scheme will impact 

on the level of funding the council receives from 
council tax which is used to support the delivery of 
services.  

Legal Implications: The Council can legally set its own policy in 

relation to the discretionary discount changes 
proposed in this report  

Equality/Diversity Implications An EIA will run alongside the consultation exercise 

Sustainability Implications Not Applicable 

Carbon Reduction Not Applicable 

Resource Implications e.g. Staffing 
/ ICT / Assets 

Potential increase in costs if individual 
discretionary applications increase  

Risk Management Implications   Not Applicable 

Health & Wellbeing Implications Not Applicable 

Health and Safety Implications Not Applicable 

 
1.0 Introduction 
 

1.1 Council Tax liability charges are set based on legislative requirements. There are a 

range of statutory discounts that the Council is required to award, however, since 

April 2013, the statutory discounts were removed in certain areas and councils were 

required to set their own discretionary policies. Trafford Council has a range of 

discretionary schemes designed to help residents and businesses by reducing their 

Council Tax and Business Rates liability based on the individual circumstances of 

them or their property.  

1.2 There are no central government grants covering the cost of these discretionary 

awards and therefore it is timely to review them firstly to make sure they are still 

appropriate and secondly given the context of the extremely challenging position 

facing the Council’s overall budget.   

1.3 Given the pressures following the Covid Pandemic and now with the rising cost of 

living it makes it more important in any review to minimise the impact on the most 

vulnerable residents and businesses. Therefore, it is not deemed appropriate at this 

stage to review the individual related discounts such as the Council Tax Support 

Scheme, care leavers and special constable Council Tax discounts or the Business 

Rates discretionary awards. 

1.4 This report will therefore consider the empty property related discounts awarded to 
owners of unoccupied properties. 

 
 

 
 

Page 106



 

 3 

2.0 Council Tax Empty Property Discretionary Discounts – The Current Position  

 
2.1 Trafford currently awards the following discretionary discounts on empty and 

unfurnished properties: 

 100% discount for up to 1 month, including new properties; 

 100% discount for up to 12 months on properties requiring structural repairs 

or alterations to make it suitable to live in. 
 

2.2 In 2021/22, the total amount of these awards cost the Council c£985k. 
 
2.3 Once the discount period ends, the owner is responsible for the full charge. In line 

with the drive to bring empty properties back in to use, an empty homes premium 
applies after 2 years and the Council Tax charge increases to 200%, rising again at 

years 5 and 10.  There are plans to change this within the Levelling Up and 
Regeneration Bill which received its first reading in May 2022. 

 

2.4 Owners can apply for a further discretionary award once the discounts end if they 
can demonstrate exceptional circumstances as to why the property remains empty. A 

common example is retirement properties that are difficult to sell and the liable 
person can demonstrate continuous reductions in the sale price and where structural 
work has taken longer than anticipated due to delayed planning permission and/or 

further works identified once works begin.  A provisional budget would need to be set 
aside if changes were to be made to allow for further awards of this nature. 

 
3.0 Council Tax Empty Property Discretionary Discounts – The Consultation 

Proposal 

 

3.1 It is proposed to consult on removing both discretionary awards detailed above, 

thereby resulting in no discount to the owners of these empty and unoccupied 
properties. This position would align with a number of other GM districts. A summary 
of the position at other GM authorities is included at Appendix A. 

 
3.2. The consultation would seek views on the removal of the empty discounts. 

 
4.0 Public Consultation 

 

4.1 It is recommended that an online public consultation on the proposed changes takes 

place for 8 weeks putting forward the intended position and reasons why the Council 

is proposing this change.  The link to the consultation will be circulated amongst the 

relevant landlord forums as well as be published on social media and the Council’s 

website.   

 

4.2 The results will be gathered and analysed and a report back to Executive in October 

2022 with recommended proposals, if appropriate, to be introduced from 1 April 

2023. 

 

4.3 An equalities impact assessment will run alongside the consultation process. 

 
 

 

Page 107



 

 4 

Other Options 

 
The Council could decide to leave the existing discretionary awards in place, however, this 

would potentially mean that savings would need to come from elsewhere which is more 

likely to have a more direct impact on vulnerable and/or financially struggling residents.   

 
Reasons for Recommendations 

 

The recommendations are set out at the start of this report. 
 
Key Decision:   No 
If Key Decision, has 28-day notice been given?   N/A 

 

 
Finance Officer Clearance GB 

Legal Officer Clearance  TR 

 
 
DIRECTOR’S SIGNATURE ……………………………………………… 

To confirm that the Financial and Legal Implications have been considered and the 

Executive Member has cleared the report. 
  

Page 108



 

 5 

Appendix A – GM Comparator on Empty Discounts – 2021/22 

 

 Unoccupied and Unfurnished 
Properties 

Empty Uninhabitable/Major 
Works 

TRAFFORD 1st month 100% discount 

2-6 months no discount 
 

100% discount for up to 12 

months 
 

   

Bolton No discount No discount 

Bury 1st month 100% discount,  
2-6 months 25% discount 

 

50% discount for up to 12 months 
 

Manchester No Discount 
 

No Discount 
 

Oldham 1st month 100% discount,  
2-6 months 25% discount 

 

50% discount for up to 12 months 
 

Rochdale 1st month 100% discount,  
2-6 months 25% discount 

 

1st month 100% discount,  
2-12 months 25% discount 
 

Salford 0-2 months 50% discount 

3-6 months no discount 
 

10% discount for up to 12mths 

 

Stockport No discount 
 

No discount 
 

Tameside No discount 

 

No discount 

 

Wigan 1st month 100% discount,  
2-6 months 25% discount 
 

75% discount for up to 12 months 
 

 

Page 109



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

Report to: Executive 

Date:  20 June 2022 

Report for:  Information 

Report of:  The Executive Member for Finance and Governance and the 

Director of Finance and Systems 

Report Title: 
 

Budget Monitoring 2021/22 – Period 12 Year End Outturn (April 2021 to March 2022). 

 
Summary: 

 

The purpose of this report is to inform Members of the 2021/22 outturn figures relating 

to both Revenue and Capital budgets. It also summarises the outturn position for 
Council Tax and Business Rates within the Collection Fund. 

 

 
Recommendation(s) 

 

It is recommended that the Executive: 

a) note the report and the revenue outturn position showing a budget underspend 

of £1.530m, which has been transferred to the Budget Resilience, Innovation 
and Change Reserve; 

b) note the reserves position as detailed in paragraph 15 and Appendix 8;  
c) note the final capital programme outturn position as detailed in paragraphs 30 

to 47 

 

 

Contact person for access to background papers and further information : 

 
David Muggeridge, Head of Financial Management Extension: 4534 

 
Background Papers: None 

 
 

Relationship to Policy 
Framework/Corporate Priorities 

Value for Money 

Relationship to GM Policy or Strategy 

Framework  

Not Applicable 

Financial  Revenue and capital expenditure will be 
contained within available resources in 

2021/22. 
 

 

Page 111

Agenda Item 9



2 
 

Legal Implications: In accordance with the Local  

Government Act 2003 and the Council’s 
Financial Procedure Rules, this report is 

provided for the purposes of budget 
monitoring and control. 

Equality/Diversity Implications None arising out of this report  

Sustainability Implications None arising out of this report  

Resource Implications e.g. Staffing / ICT / 

Assets 

Not applicable 

Risk Management Implications   Not applicable 

Carbon Reduction Not applicable 

Health & Wellbeing Implications Not applicable 

Health and Safety Implications Not applicable 
 

Page 112



3 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Summary of Outturn 

There is a net estimated pre-audit outturn underspend of £1.53m for the 
year, a favourable movement of £1.52m since Period 10. 

It is fair to say that projecting the financial outturn during the year has been 

challenging given the level of uncertainty in the economy, ranging from the 
ongoing fallout from the pandemic and further lockdowns during the year, the 

economic fallout from the conflict within Ukraine and the escalating levels of 
inflation.  
 

The economic uncertainty will continue to be felt for some time to come and 
must be managed alongside a significant budget gap of £18.4m in our Medium 

Term Financial Plan for 2023 to 2025. 
 
The ongoing pressures regarding the increasing level of inflation, which rose by 

9.0% in the 12 months to April 2022 and represents a 40 year high, are of 
particular concern in 2022 onwards. Given the scale of the pressures, an 

Inflation Risk Reserve has been established to help absorb some of the 
inevitable pressures in 2022/23. A summary of the potential impact of inflation is 
included in paragraph 6 of this report.   

 
The favourable outturn in the current year has given the opportunity to bolster 

our reserves further in order to manage the scale of the challenges the Council 
faces in delivering a sustainable budget over the medium term, as set out in the 
final budget report for 2022/23, as well as mitigating some of the unplanned 

inflationary pressures in 2022/23. 
 

The management action undertaken during the mid-part of the year, which 
included a policy on vacancy management and a review of all non-essential 
spend has had, and continues to have, a positive effect in managing our services 

within the budget.  
 

Although the favourable outturn for the current year is encouraging, many 
positive movements are one off in nature and cannot be used to reduce the 
recurrent budget gap. There are however a number of potential areas, such as 

long term staff vacancies, which could be challenged for release against the 
ongoing budget gap.  

  
With regard to the net outturn position, the following issues are worthy of being 
highlighted:-  

Pressures include:-  

 Children’s placements £721k overspend due to an increase in cases 
during the year; a positive movement of £395k since period 10 as a 

result of children stepping down or leaving the system and the receipt of 
additional Continuing Health Care income for some placements. 

 Home to School Transport pressures are now £678k an adverse 
movement of £89k since period 10 due to increase in demand in the 

Page 113



4 
 

current passenger numbers during the year and additional costs for fuel 
and also staffing to cover passenger assistants who were self-isolating. 

 Strategic Investment Programme – These investments were budgeted to 

generate a net revenue benefit in 2021/22 of £7.61m. The net income at 
year end was £6.52m leaving a shortfall of £1.09m, a favourable 

movement of £412k since period 10. The overall shortfall is largely 

COVID-19 related due to delays in developer loans being drawn down, 

lower income from debt facilities due to lower variable interest rates, 
delays in schemes in the pipeline and lower trading income due to 
COVID-19 impacts at retail investment sites. 

 COVID-19 related pressures in Place and central services directorates of 
£450k, a positive movement of £363k since period 10. The pressure 

largely related to income pressures in traded services and lower sales, 
fees and charges as a result of the economic impact of the pandemic 
lasting longer than the first quarter assumed when setting the budget. The 

positive movement since period 10 largely relates to improved income 
from Trading Services, namely school catering and Sale Waterside Arts 

Centre.    

Service underspends include: - 

 Staffing budgets net underspend of £1.50m due to delays in recruiting and 

service redesign, in Adults Services, Children’s Services and Public 
Health, an adverse movement of £405k since period 10. The adverse 

movement largely relates to additional agency costs within Children’s 
services being incurred as difficulties continue in the permanent 
recruitment of social workers. 

 Adults placements £2.30m net underspend, a positive movement of 
£2.27m since period 10; a net underspend on the Hospital Discharge 

Programme of £2.69m, a favourable movement of £1.58m since period 
10, due in part to an increase in the income from the risk sharing 
agreement with the Clinical Commissioning Group. This is offset by £329k 

of pressure due to savings not being achieved, an underlying pressure of 
£308k due to an increase in costs of care packages and new cases and 

lower costs of £285k from other local authorities under Section 117 of the 
Mental Health Act.   

 The favourable outturn within Adults Services has enabled the Adults  
earmarked reserves to be bolstered by £2.57m to support a number of 

short-term pressures expected in 2022/23. These pressures include the 

consequences of hospital settings trying to reduce waiting lists which will 
have an impact on the levels of discharges from hospital. The reserve will 

support the temporary continuation of enhanced levels of homecare and 
care home bed provision until a sustainable model and funding can be 
worked through with partners. The reserve will also support the cost of 

implementing new government legislation (eg preparation of market 
sustainability and reform of adult social care charging).  

 Public Health community services contract £400k underspend – nil 
movement since period 10, representing a one off reduction due to 

Page 114



5 
 

assumed inflation costs being met from within the current financial regime 
operating in the  NHS since the coronavirus pandemic. 

 Other favourable items of £2.806m, a positive movement of £1.149m 

since period 10. This includes a favourable outturn of £826k within the 

Place Directorate, £511k within Strategy and Resources and £877k within 

Council Wide. The Council Wide figure includes the release of the 
contingency budgets and £211k one off income from Trafford Housing 

Trust associated with the recovery of VAT made on behalf of the Council 
at the time of the stock transfer. The positive outturn within service 
budgets largely relates to staffing budgets, following ongoing 

management actions on such things as vacancy management and staff 
turnover.  

Council Tax 

The Council Tax budget was reduced temporarily in 2021/22 to reflect the 
ongoing impact of the pandemic. At Period 8, which is used for the 2022/23 

budget plans, a forecast council surplus of £1.55m was forecast, largely due to 
lower awards for Council Tax Support along with better than expected collection 

of in year and historic debt. The benefit from the estimated outturn will be 
released in 2022/23 and was directed towards a Council Tax Risk Reserve 
(£500k) to help mitigate against potential shortfalls in income in future years with 

the balance of £1.05m used towards bolstering the Budget Resilience Reserves 
to support future plans.  

 
The  year-end outturn is now £3.10m, of which the Council’s share is £2.54m 
and has resulted in favourable a variance above that at Period 8 of £993k largely 

due to better collection rates. This amount will be released in 2023/24 and will 
feed into the Medium Term Financial Plan to help close the budget gap in that 

year. 
 
Business Rates 

The estimated outturn for Business Rates in the previous period was a 
favourable movement of £3.04m compared to budget. This was largely as a 
result of a review of the level of provisions held for historic appeals. Since period 

10 there has been some significant positive movements resulting in a favourable 
outturn variance of £6.79m. The favourable movement, which will be transferred 

to the Budget Resilience Reserve, relates to improvements in collection rates, a 
review of bad debt provision at year end and further release of provision for 
historic appeals. In addition, the renegotiation of the growth sharing agreement 

with Greater Manchester Combined Authority has allowed a higher proportion of 
the growth to be retained by the GM local authorities.    

 

Reserves Movements  

The favourable outturn position has given the Council the further opportunity to 

review the adequacy of reserves, particularly to address the evolving pressures 
with regard to the escalating rates of inflation and legislative changes and 

hospital discharge demand pressures in adults services.    

Page 115



6 
 

The Council’s Earmarked Reserves (excluding COVID accounting reserves, 
Capital and Schools) have increased from a balance brought forward of £51.91m 
to £69.09m at year end an increase of £17.18m of which a large proportion 

relates to a transfer of £5.2m from the COVID General Reserve to MTFP Budget 
Resilience Innovation and Change Reserve to support the 2022/23 budget and 

£4.4m of reserve adjustments relating to business rates accounting.  

The remaining key movements of £7.58m include :-  

 Favourable outturn at year end +£1.53m 

 Favourable outturn Business Rates 2021/22 (General Fund elements) 
+£3.30m 

 Contain Outbreak Management Fund (general expenditure charged to 
grant) +£1.01m 

 Adults Services favourable movement at outturn +£2.57m. Of this 

balance, £1.58m has been moved to a new reserve associated with 

Hospital Discharge to Assess to manage the expected pressures in 
2022/23 and £990k to Adults Service Earmarked Reserve to manage 
legislative pressures.   

 +£0.67m increase in ICT Development Reserve to smooth the short to 

medium term pressures of implementing the Council’s Digital Strategy 

 +£0.73m increase to the Economic Development Reserve to smooth 

uncertainty in grant funding relating to Housing Option Services Trafford 

(HOST).  
 -£2.80m budget support as planned 

 +£0.57m net other minor movements in earmarked reserves  

 

Capital Programme 

The final outturn position for the general capital programme is £27.07m which is 
£5.02m less than the period 10 forecast. Given the substantial level of rephasing 
experienced during the year of £21.92m compared with the revised general 

capital programme budget for 2021/22 of £48.99m, a new Capital Programme 
Board has been established with the intention of improving both project 

management and delivery of of the Council’s capital priorities.  

 

  

Page 116



7 
 

REVENUE BUDGET  

 

1. Detailed below in Table 1 is a summary breakdown of the service and funding 

variances against budget, with Appendix 2 providing an explanation of the 
variances: 

 
 

Budget Adjustments and Virements 
 

2. A number of virements across Directorates are detailed in Appendix 1. 

 
Main variances, changes to budget assumptions and key risks 

 

3. The main variances contributing to the projected underspend of £1.530m, any 
changes to budget assumptions and associated key risks are detailed in 

Appendix 2. 
 
 
 

 

Table 1: Budget Monitoring 
results by Service 

2021/22 
Budget 

(£000’s) 

Forecast 
Outturn 

(£000’s) 

Forecast 
Variance 

(£000’s) 

Percent-
age 

Children’s Services 42,648 44,126 1,478 3.47% 

Adult Services 52,749 52,234 (515) (0.98)% 

Public Health 12,505 10,867 (1,638) (13.10)% 

Place 31,566 32,175 609 1.93% 

Strategy & Resources 5,824 5,171 (653) (11.21)% 

Finance & Systems 7,818 7,882 64 0.82% 

Governance & Community 
Strategy 

6,361 6,367 6 0.09% 

Total Directorate Budgets 159,471 158,822 (649) (0.41)%  

Council-wide budgets 20,001 19,120 (881) (4.40)% 

Net Service Expenditure 
variance  

179,472 177,942 
 

(1,530) (0.85)%  

     

Funding     

Business Rates (62,459) (62,459) 0  

Council Tax (105,869) (105,869) 0  

Reserves Budget Support (2,803) (2,803) 0  

Reserves to Support COVID-19 (8,341) (8,341) 0  

Funding variance  (179,472) (179,472)  0 0.00% 

     
Net Revenue Outturn variance 0 (1,530) (1,530) (0.85)% 

Dedicated Schools Grant 

 

148,343 149,876 1,533 1.03% 

Page 117



8 
 

MTFP Savings and Increased Income 

 
4. The 2021/22 budget is based on the achievement of permanent base budget 

savings and increased income of £11.926m. At year end, the programme has 
delivered savings of £8.936m, which is £2.990m below target, after in-year 

mitigating actions of £992k, such as alternative savings, this has reduced the 
shortfall to £1.998m. This is a favourable movement of £403k since Period 10 
which is largely due to a reduction in the shortfall in strategic investment income 

of £412k.  
 

5. Of the savings that will not be delivered in the current year, a figure of £929k has 
been included in our 2022/23 budget to offset these schemes, made up from 
£606k in Adults Social Care and £323k in Place Directorate. 

 
Inflationary Pressures 

 

6. The Consumer Price Index (CPI) rose by 9.0% in the 12 months to April 2022, 
which represents a 40 year high. In February 2022, the OBR forecast CPI to rise 

to 8.7% in the fourth quarter of 2022 before falling to 4% in the first quarter of 
2023 and 1.5% in 2024.  

7. The rate of increase in inflation poses a significant risk to local government 
finances and the Council must plan to address pressures which will be felt in the 
new financial year (2022/23) as well as considering the impact in our Medium 

Term Financial Plan for future years. It is possible in future spending reviews, 
that the Government will consider the longer term impact of the high levels of 

inflation if it continues on the current trajectory.  

8. A level of financial risk is always assumed regarding variations to inflation in 
preparing the robustness analysis for the annual budget and the various 

mitigations in our plans include the following:-  

 £1.5m COVID contingency (2022/23 only) 

 £1.8m general contingency budget in 2022/23 and increases of £750k per 

annum in each year of the MTFP thereafter. 

 Minimum General Reserve balance of £9.0m (one off) in the event that 

pressures cannot be contained within the general revenue budget.  

9. The rate of change in headline inflation makes forecasting and planning 

extremely challenging, however the range of headline pressures being 
experienced by the Council are summarised in the table below. 

Inflation Theme Range of Pressure 22/23 

Gas and Electric Trafford * <>£1.6m 

Trafford staff pay award +2% assumed in budget at £1.6m. 

Preliminary options being consulted on 

ranging up to +10% c£8m 

Page 118



9 
 

LGA suggesting to budget for +4% this 

would add £1.6m pressure. 

Traded Services Up to 5.6% food inflation could be 

managed within £100k reserve.  

+1% increase thereafter c£29k 

Amey One Partnership Effectively fixed contract for 22/23 but 

market pressures for pay are c£700k 

Capital Programme Capital Programme depends on land 

sales receipts. Inflation may slow down 

sales and reduce returns. Inflationary 

impact on costs of construction and 

commodity prices. 

Children’s Services  Home to School,  2% assumed in budget 

Potential +10% £288k 

Foster Parents allowances2% assumed in 

budget 

Each +1% would add on £19k  

Adults The placement budget is agreed under 

the Fair Price for Care. Funds were 

released under the last spending review to 

assess Market Sustainability. The 

increase in the level of inflation will affect 

these discussions and the Government 

may adjust for inflation in future spending 

rounds. 

(*) excludes Trafford Schools and Leisure CIC 

 

10. It is clear that the pressures being faced by the high levels of inflation are a 
considerable risk to the Council. The biggest areas of concern relate to energy 

prices, which represents nearly double the current level of budget and the impact 
of the 2022/23 pay award. At this stage our working assumption for the impact in 

2022/23 would be that a prudent figure of £4.0m would be needed to mitigate the 
impact of inflationary pressures.   

11. Whilst there some elements of contingency budgets which can be released to 

manage the in-year pressures, it is anticipated that these will be insufficient 
given the usual pressures which the contingencies were originally provided for.  

12. As part of the year end close down, the opportunity has been taken to create a 
specific Inflation Risk Reserve to help mitigate against some of the 2022/23 

Page 119



10 
 

pressures and a balance of £3.0m has been transferred from the Budget 
Resilience Reserve. This balance could be supplemented with a figure of £1.0m 
from the contingency budgets, although this would commit a large proportion of 

them very early on in the financial year, to arrive at the target of £4.0m. 
Representations have been made to Government with regards the impact in 

2022/23 and anticipated ongoing implications which will further compound the 
budget pressures in later years. In the event that no other support is provided by 
Government then there will be significant adverse impacts on the resilience 

within the Council’s reserves and contingencies. Assumptions will be firmed up 
as the new year progresses and will feed into the bi-monthly monitoring reports.  

 
RESERVES 
  

13. A full review of all reserves was completed as part of the 2022/2023 budget 
preparations and was reported in detail in the final budget report presented to 

Council in February 2022. 

14. The year end close down provides an opportunity for a further review of reserves 
to address evolving pressures and issues since the final budget report was 

agreed. As previously mentioned the escalating headline rate of inflation poses a 
significant risk for the Council, furthermore, there continues to be uncertainty in 

projecting demand led services in Adults services. As such the Council has 
utilised its favourable outturn to bolster its budget support reserves and specific 
earmarked reserves.  

15. Usable reserves have reduced from a balance brought forward of £200.34m to 
£154.12m at year end. The table below shows the movements by category with 

details of all reserve movements shown in Appendix 8. 

 

Usable Reserves 

Opening 

Balance 
1/4/2021 

£m 

Closing 

Balance 
31/03/2022  

£m 

 Change 
£m 

MTFP Budget Resilience and 
Transformation 

6.35  11.65  5.30  

Smoothing and Business Risk 15.64 18.85  3.21  

Strategic Priority 13.76  11.60  (2.16) 

Corporate (2.94) 1.00  3.94  

Corporate - General Reserve 8.00  9.50  1.50  

Service Area Priorities 11.10  16.49  5.39 

Earmarked Reserves (exc 
COVID-19) 

51.91 69.09 17.18 

COVID-19 Accounting Reserves 114.27  48.14  (66.13) 

Capital Related Reserves 18.99 22.65  3.66  

School Related Reserves 15.17  14.24  (0.93) 

Total Usable Reserves 200.34  154.12 (46.22) 

 

Page 120



11 
 

16. The increase in Earmarked Reserves (excluding COVID-19 Accounting 
Reserves) is £17.18m represented by : - 

 +£5.2m transfer from the COVID General Reserve to MTFP Budget 

Resilience Innovation and Change Reserve to support future budgets as 
agreed in the February 2022 final budget report  

 +£4.4m reserves relating to timing differences in business rates 

accounting.  

The remaining key movements of +£7.58m include :-  

 Favourable outturn at year end +£1.53m 

 Favourable outturn Business Rates 2021/22 (General Fund elements) 
+£3.30m 

 Contain Outbreak Management Fund (general expenditure charged to 
grant) +£1.01m 

 Adults Services favourable movement at outturn +£2.57m. Of this 

balance, £1.58m has been moved to a new reserve associated with 
Hospital Discharge to Assess to manage the expected pressures in 

2022/23 and £990k to Adults Service Earmarked Reserve to manage 
legislative pressures.   

 +£0.67m increase in ICT Development Reserve to smooth the short to 

medium term pressures of implementing the Council’s Digital Strategy 
 +£0.73m increase to the Economic Development Reserve to smooth 

uncertainty in grant funding relating to Housing Option Services Trafford 
(HOST).  

 -£2.80m budget support as planned 

 +£0.57m net other minor movements in earmarked reserves  

 

Transfers within Reserves (neutral impact for info only) 

 Creation of a new Inflation Risk Reserve with an opening balance of 

£3.0m, specifically to absorb the risks associated with the increase in 

headline inflation. The opening balance has been funded from a transfer 
from the MTFP BRIC Reserve.  

 A new reserve associated with Hospital Discharge to Assess has 
been created to manage the expected pressures in 2022/23. A figure 

of £1.58m from the Adults Service outturn along with transfers of 
£1.706m, largely from the Transformation Fund Reserve, has resulted in 

a year end balance of £3.3m.  

 The Adults Service Earmarked Reserve transfer of £990k, from the 

favourable movement in the Adults outturn,  largely associated with 

additional costs associated with new legislation and work on charging 
reforms 

 +£1.5m transfer to General Reserve as agreed in the final budget report 

in February 2022 
 £1.04m transfers to MTFP BRIC Reserve from various earmarked 

reserves following review during budget preparation plus other minor 
movements at year end.  

 

Page 121



12 
 

 

 

17. The movements in the other earmarked reserves is explained by :-  

 £66.1m reduction in COVID-19 related reserves related to the balances 

of Government COVID-19 funding being drawn down as planned in 

connection with rates relief, collection fund support and budget support. 
Less a transfer of £5.2m to the MTFP BRIC Reserve as agreed in the final 

budget report in February 2022. The remaining balances are fully 
committed in 2022/23 and 2023/24; 

 £3.66m increase in Capital Reserves consisting of additional capital 

grant income received in year and yet to be drawn down to support the 
future programme. 

 £931k reduction in Schools Reserves largely due to pressures in the 

High Needs Block budget  

 
COLLECTION FUND 
 

Council Tax 
 

18. At the height of the COVID-19 pandemic in 2020/21 the financial challenges 

placed considerable pressure on the Council Tax Collection Fund, largely related 
to a reduction in collection rates and an increase in Council Tax Support. The 

budget for 2021/2022 was set using assumptions that the impact of the 
pandemic would continue and an overall reduction of £3.24m was built in to 
reflecting higher take up of local council tax support, delays in new properties 

coming on line and lower collection rates. The 2021/22 General Fund budget 
included a Government backed Local Council Tax Support Grant of £1.65m to 

offset some of the costs associated with the higher take up of the scheme.  
 

19. The discretionary Council Tax Hardship Scheme was also extended for a further 

year into 2021/22, enabling all existing working age Council Tax Support (CTS) 
recipients registered as at 31st March 2021 to claim a discretionary Hardship 

award equivalent to the value of their 2021/2022 liability. The cost of this 
extension was met from an underspend from the Government sponsored 
hardship grant received in 2020/21.  

 

20. The Council Tax Collection Fund is shared between the Council (82%), the 

Police & Crime Commissioner for GM (13%) and GM Fire & Rescue Authority 
(5%). The table below summarises the pressures and movements on the Council 
Tax Collection Fund from the Period 8 monitoring (*).  

 

 
 
Summary of Council Tax 
Collection Fund Movements 

Period 8 (*) 
Full 

Collection 
Fund 
£000 

Period 12 
Full 

Collection 
Fund 
£000 

Movement  
P12 to P8 

(improvement)
/deterioration 

 
£000 

Period 12 
Trafford 
Share 

 
£000 

Page 122



13 
 

Deficit Brought Forward 
3,008 3,008 0 

2,46
3 

Collection of Prior Year difference 
in estimate and actual surplus 

(345) (345) 0 (285) 

Collection of 1/3 Estimated 
2020/21 Deficit (COVID Related) 
(**) 

(1,654) (1,654) 0 (1,353) 

Balance remaining from Prior 
Year 

1,009 1,009 0 825 

In Year Position      

Shortfall in Tax Base 189 420 231 344 

Better than expected Cash 
Collection of current year and 
historic debt 

(1,200) (2,193) (993) (1,799) 

Local Council Tax Support 
Scheme 

(703) (1,287) (584) 1,056 

Hardship Awards 1,065 1,170 105 960 

Contribution from Hardship Grant 
Reserve 

(1,065) (1,170) (105) (960) 

Other Movements (Backdated 
discounts etc.) 

(176) (40) 136 (32) 

Sub-Total In Year Position (1,890) (3,100) (1,210) (2,543) 

Surplus Carried Forward (881) (2,091) (1,210) (1,718) 

(*) The estimated outturn surplus/deficit in the Period 8 monitor is used in the 

preparation of the 2022/2023 budget and has therefore been used for 
comparison against outturn.  

(**) In 2020/21, as a result of the pandemic, the Government announced 
changes, enabling local authorities to spread their estimated council tax deficits 
over three years rather than the usual one. As such, the estimated deficit for 

2020/21 will be collected over the three years 2021/22, 2022/23 and 2023/24 
which is a figure of £1.35m per year for Trafford’s share.  

 
21. A summary of the of key components of the outturn and impact on future years is 

as follows  

 The Tax base has dropped by £420k largely due to an increase in 
discounts (e.g. single person discount). This is a negative movement of 

£231k since Period 8. 
 The collection of debt for both in year and prior year is better than 

expected by £2.19m, largely due to a release from the amount set 

aside for the provision for bad debt. This is a positive movement of 
£993k since Period 8. 

 Local Council Tax Support is lower than budget by £1.29m a positive 
movement of £584k since Period 8.  

 Hardship Awards of £1.17m were made in the year and the Collection 

Fund will be credited by this amount from the General Fund using the 
underspent Hardship grant monies from 2020/21. 

 The combined positive effect of the above, albeit largely one off in 
nature from the favourable collection of historic debt, gives an in year 
surplus of £3.10m, of which the Council’s share is £2.54m. At Period 8 

the outturn was forecast at £1.89m of which the Councils share was 

Page 123



14 
 

£1.55m and this estimated surplus was built into our budget for 
2022/23. The difference between the actual outturn and estimate of 
£993k will be released in 2023/24 in line with regulations. This one off 

figure will feed in to the Medium Term Financial Plan to help close the 
budget gap in 2023/2024.  

 
Business Rates  

22. The 2021/22 budget included anticipated growth in retained business rates, 

related S31 grants and redistribution of prior year surpluses of £7.8m. Projecting 
business rates is by its nature complex and prone to variation, in addition the 

impact on COVID-19 has added further uncertainty to the accuracy of 
projections.    
 

23. In order to support businesses with the impacts of COVID-19, the Government 
provided various rate relief packages, with 100% relief being given to retail, 

hospitality and leisure sites until July 2021 and thereafter 66% until March 2022. 
The Council has been compensated for the loss in rates income via a Section 
31. 

24. In addition, further Government support has been offered to businesses via a 
discretionary scheme (COVID Additional Relief Fund) administered by the 

Council for other businesses falling outside of the retail relief scheme. Details of 
the scheme, which relate to 2021/2022 only, have required the Council to design 
and adopt a local scheme. The government will fully reimburse the cost of the 

relief within a cash cap grant for each local authority, of which Trafford’s 
allocation is £6.4m. Payments commenced in the new financial year 2022/23 

and as such the full grant has been rolled over to 2022/23.  
  

25. When the budget for 2021/22 was set, an assumption was made that there 

would be a reduction in income from businesses of 5% over the year, this 
resulted in a reduction in the budget of £3.49m. As reported at period 10, 

Business Rates income was forecast to generate additional income of £3.04m 
above budget (£1.94m within the Collection Fund and £1.10m General Fund). 
However since period 10 there have been a number of significant movements 

resulting in additional income of £6.79m (£3.5m within the Collection Fund and 
£3.3m General Fund). Favourable movements in collection rates, review of bad 

debt provision and the release of existing provision for appeals due to some big 
cases being dismissed by the VOA have caused the improvement in the 
Collection Fund. The significant improvement in the General Fund elements of 

£2.2m was largely the result of the renegotiation of the growth sharing 
agreement with Greater Manchester Combined Authority, allowing a higher 

proportion of the growth to be retained by the GM local authorities. Full details of 
the Collection Fund and General Fund components of the Business Rates 
Budget is shown in Appendix 3. 

 
26. The benefit from the Rates Collection Fund will be released in 2022/23 as 

planned, and as reported in previous monitors, any favourable variance in the 
General Fund was planned to be transferred to reserves to support our future 
budget. The full benefit of £3.3m has therefore been transferred to the MTFP 

Budget Resilience and Innovation Reserve. 

Page 124



15 
 

 
 
Impact of COVID-19 

 

27. The impact of the pandemic on the Council’s finances was anticipated to last for 

many years and the budget for 2021/22 included additional resources of £8.34m 
to help manage the continuing impact of the pandemic. Pressures were 
anticipated in client demand, lost income from our strategic investments in the 

Manchester Airport Group and from Sales, Fees and Charges. These were offset 
by Government backed support and use of reserves, based on assumptions at 

the time, that the pandemic would last for the first quarter of 2021/22. 
 

28. Towards the middle of the financial year, the country faced a further lockdown as 

a result of the Omicron variant. The impact of Omicron was not as severe as first 
expected, and the Government support packages announced in December 

2021, which included business rates relief in hospitality and leisure plus grant 
allocations to support workforce recruitment and retention and Infection Control 
and Testing Fund helped in mitigating the impact. Most grants have been spent 

in full resulting in a neutral impact on the outturn. Where grants have not been 
fully spent and have certain conditions attached, such a business relief grants, 

these will be returned to the Government in due course. For a number of grants, 
such as the Contain Outbreak Management Fund Grant, the Government has 
extended conditions allowing the grant to be carried forward in to 2022/23. 

 
29. Although no further direct COVID-19 grants have been announced to support 

local authorities in future years, the Council continues to provide regular 
monitoring returns to the Government Departments which will be used at a 
national level to inform the debate on whether additional resources will be 

required over the medium term. 
 

Page 125



16 
 

CAPITAL PROGRAMME 

30. The updated budget for 2021/22 was approved by the Executive in September 2021 

and included the reprogramming from the 2020/21 budget with a revised approved 
general programme of £48.99m. Subsequently during the year the forecast 
expenditure was revised to reflect re-phasing and any new approvals. Where such 

changes were made, these were reported in relevant capital monitoring reports to the 
Executive with explanations provided. The final outturn position for the year 2021/22 

for the general capital programme is £27.07m which is £21.92m under the revised 
approved programme, and £5.02m less than reported at period 10. A summary of 
these variances is detailed in Appendix 4. 
 

31. It is to be noted that delays in the delivery of the capital programme have the 

potential to expose the Council to risk around such areas as health and safety, 
service provision and funding that may be linked to delivery of schemes. As a result a 
Capital Programme Board made up of officers from across all service areas has been 

established with the intention of improving both project management and delivery of 
the council’s capital priorities.  

 

GENERAL CAPITAL PROGRAMME OUTTURN (£27.07m) 

32. The final outturn position for the general capital programme is £27.07m which is 
£5.02m less than reported at Period 10 (P10) as summarised in the table below:- 

 

 

33. The overall spend of £27.07m includes the following major areas of investment :  
 

School Improvements - £9.79m:- 

 Capital Maintenance & Access works - £2.83m 
 Expansion & Basic Need works - £6.40m 

 SEND and Healthy Pupils Funding works - £221k  
 Improvements via Devolved Formula Capital - £340k 

 
Children Social Care - £312k:- 

 Children’s Portal/Liquid Logic - £242k 

 Foster Carers - Accommodation improvements - £32k 
 Other Schemes - £38k 

 

Capital Investment Programme 

2021/22 

Approved 
Programme 

2021/22 
£m 

P10 
Forecast 

£m 

2021/22 
Outturn 

Expenditure      

£m 

Variance 
P10 to 

Outturn 

£m 

Service Analysis:     

Children’s Services 12.79 11.80 10.10 (1.70) 

Adult Social Care 4.49 1.87 1.88 0.01 

Place  30.37 17.61 14.43 (3.18) 

Governance & Community Strategy 0.08 0.08 0.11 0.03 

Finance & Systems 1.26 0.73 0.55 (0.18) 

General Programme Total 48.99   32.09   27.07 (5.02) 

Page 126



17 
 

Adult Social Services - £1.88m:-    

 Disabled Facilities Grants - £1.76m 
 Assistive Technology / Agile Working - £117k 

 
Major works on Public & Operational Buildings - £1.77m:- 

 Public Building Repairs & DDA Improvements - £467k 
 De-carbonisation of Council Buildings - £1.18m 
 Other Schemes- £119k 

 
Regeneration Projects - £1.59m:- 

 Future High Street Fund - £917k 
 Altrincham Town Centre Public realm works - £499k 
 Greater Manchester Full-Fibre - £148k 

 Other Schemes - £25k 
 

Highway & Transport Related Improvements - £7.84m:- 

 Highway Structural Maintenance (Inc. Lighting) - £3.67m 
 Integrated Transport Schemes - £192k 

 Cycling and Walking schemes - £1.89m 
 Bridges Programme - £615k 

 Carrington Road improvements - £1.47m  
 
Leisure and Sport - £1.35m: 

 Leisure Centre Strategy and Improvements - £843k 
 Football Facility Provision - £495k 

 Other Schemes - £9k 
 
Environmental Services and Green Spaces - £399k:- 

 Parks and Play Areas Infrastructure - £362k 
 Other Schemes - £37k 

 
Housing and Other Services - £1.36m:- 

 Affordable Housing - £378k 

 Sale West – Estate Regeneration Fund - £974k 
 Other Schemes - £4k 

 
Parking Services - £39k:- 

 Pay and Display Machines - £39k  

 
Bereavement Services - £79k:- 

 Crematorium Works - £79k  
 

Governance and Communities - £107k:- 

 Partnership and Communities - £107k  
 

Finance and Systems – £551k:- 

 Range of ICT initiatives - £551k 
  

 
 

Page 127



18 
 

Performance and explanation of major variances 

 
34. As described above there was an overall movement of £5.02m in the outturn 

compared to period 10. Capital expenditure by its nature can fluctuate and be difficult 
to forecast across a single financial year, and can also be affected by factors outside 

the Council’s direct control. An explanation of the variations by Directorate is shown 
in the table below with a more detailed breakdown in Appendix 5. 

 

 
 

35. The overall variance of £5.02m includes £4.93m relating to re-profiling and 
acceleration, significant key variances are explained in detail below with all variances 

detailed in Appendix 4: 
 
Children’s Services  

 

 £(673)k of Basic Need funding has been reprofiled; 

o Firs Primary School £(390)k - the new main block is now expected to be 
completed in January 2023 instead of September 2022 as a result of 
issues with material availability and delivery associated with the ongoing 

impact of Covid-19; 

o Sale High School £(305)k - an element of the allocated Basic Need 

budget has been retained to support the outcome of DfE School rebuild 
bid; 

o A small number of Other Schemes £(184)k - work is currently underway 

on the majority of these schemes and are expected to complete 
imminently. 

o Blessed Thomas Holford College £206k - additional costs have been 
incurred as a result of contaminated land and poor ground conditions 
identified during the build process; this can be financed from unallocated 

Basic Needs allocation. 

 £(819)k of re-profiling occurred across Schools Capital Maintenance; 

Variance by Directorate    Variance Explained By 

General Programme 

Period 

10 
2021/22 

Outturn 

2021/22 

 

Variance 

Net Re-

Profiling 

Add’n 

Expend 

 

Saving 

Directorate £m £m £m £m £m £m 

Children’s Services 11.80 10.10 (1.70) (1.70) - - 

Adult Social Care 1.87 1.88 0.01 - 0.01 - 

Place  17.61 14.43 (3.18) (3.07) 0.03 (0.14) 

Governance & Community 
Strategy 

0.08 0.11 0.03 0.02 0.01 - 

Finance & Systems 0.73 0.55 (0.18) (0.18) - - 

General Programme Total 32.09 27.07 (5.02) (4.93) 0.05 (0.14) 

Page 128



19 
 

o Lostock College – Block A Roof £(132)k – Progress on the scheme is 
well underway but there has been a slight delay in the programme of 
works due to adverse weather conditions. 

o Sale High School – Reroofing works £(253)k – This scheme is now 
complete and remaining resources are to be potentially reallocated to 

support decarbonisation works that have been undertaken at the school.  

o School Health and Safety Monies £(109)k – This is a reactive allocation 
and as such is only used when urgent works are identified. 

o A number of other schemes £(325)k – small maintenance schemes 
where work is either underway or expected to be undertaken imminently.   

 £(160)k of Devolved Formula Capital, this grant is a rolling three year 
allocation given directly to schools, as a result this enables schools to have 
flexibility on when they can spend the resources and as such makes it 

difficult to forecast when this spend is incurred. 

Place 

Re-profiling has occurred on a number of project areas: 

 £(491)k of planned work on the Council’s corporate estate has been 
reprofiled to enable delivery of the Decarbonisation (PSDS1) scheme, 

which has time limits on the funding. The works in the programme will be 
completed in 2022/23; 

 £(823)k of Decarbonisation works have been reprofiled with the scheme 
being given a deadline extension until June 2022. Delays have been due to 
supply chain issues with specialised heating equipment providers. 

 £352k of Future High Street Fund works have been carried out slightly 
ahead of the forecast position, this is as a result of ongoing initial design 

works for the elements being undertaken with our development partner 
which are progressing well to achieve the deadline for the grant of March 
2024. 

 £(420)k for Parks and Greenspaces - much of the work planned for 2021/22 
had to be focused on backlog of delivery for schemes that had been 

delayed during the pandemic from 2020/21 due to the difficulty in securing 
external consultancy support. This backlog of design work is now complete 
and schemes are ready for delivery together with the 2022/23 programme. 

 £(1.33)m of the Highways Structural Maintenance programme has been re-
profiled with the completion of the ongoing highways structural maintenance 

and street lighting works programme for 2021/22 being on track to be fully 
completed in the early months of Q1 2022/23. Schemes are on site or are 
now complete and awaiting final accounts to be completed. Some delivery 

pressures with supply of steel delaying the completion of the street lighting 
programme within year. 

 £(186)k of Integrated Transport schemes have been reprofiled mainly due 
to consultation and Traffic Regulation Orders implementation that has been 
needed.  

 £(394)k of Bridges works have been reprofiled as the programme has been 
subject to delays as a result of specialist contractor’s been furloughed as a 

Page 129



20 
 

result of the impact of Covid. The outstanding programme of works will be 
completed early in 2022/23. 

 £245k of Cycling and Walking schemes have progressed ahead of forecast 

in particular around the development of the Mayors Cycling and Walking 
Challenge Fund.  

 £450k improvement on the forecast for Carrington Relief Road works as this 
scheme progresses through the initial phases of Development in advance of 
Rationalisation works with the scheme area.  

Finance & Systems 

 £(178)k of re-profiling linked to ICT improvements with specific issues with 

slight delays on Windows 10 implementation (Additional devices) and Office 
365 Implementation. Work is progressing well on these schemes and the 
programmes of work are still ongoing. 

36. There have been are a small number of schemes where there has been variances as 
a result of overspends of £46k and underspends of £135k, these variances are 

detailed within Appendix 6 and will be managed within the overall programme.  
 

Financing of General Capital Programme Expenditure 

37. The general capital programme expenditure of £27.07m was financed predominantly 
from grants and external contributions and borrowing, supplemented by specific 

reserves and receipts. The actual levels applied are shown below: 
 

Financing of General Capital 
Expenditure 2021/22 

Outturn 
2021/22 

£m 

Internal Resources  

Capital Receipts 1.68 

Specific Reserves & Revenue 0.22 

Borrowing 2.35 
Sub-Total   4.25 

External Resources  

Grants & Contributions 22.82 

Total  Financing 27.07 

 

38. The total level of usable receipts for 2021/22 was £5.41m compared to the assumed 

budgeted level of £7.73m as at P10 which is £2.32m less than anticipated for the 
year. This mainly relates to receipts that are now anticipated to be received in the 
current financial year (2022/23) at the current assumed levels. The following table 

details how the available £5.41m has been utilised:- 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Page 130



21 
 

 £m 
Available Capital Receipts 5.41 

Less Disposal Costs and PFI MRP  0.66 

Less Shortfall in Receipts 2020/21 3.07 

Receipts to Fund 2021/22 1.68 
Balance of Capital Receipts to Fund Capital Programme 0.00 

 
There is a programme of disposals and developments from which receipts realised 

are used to support the capital programme which was reported as part of the 
Strategic Land Review Programme to Executive in February 2022.  
 

The current approved capital programme has a level of overprogramming assumed 
within it and this needs to be managed over the delivery period of the programme. 

There is an ongoing risk that if receipts are lower, or received later than assumed,  
there may be the need for additional borrowing in both the short and long term which 
has the potential to incur increased revenue costs, or alternatively a reduction in the 

number of approved schemes able to be delivered. The programme of disposals and 
development is continually under review with new opportunities being explored. Any 

changes in assumed levels of receipts will be reported in detail as part of the capital 
monitoring updates and appropriate decisions on delivery can be made if required.  
 

In addition to this and as part of the capital bids process, to take place over the 
summer 2022 period and in advance of final capital budget approval in February 
2023, work is to be undertaken looking at those schemes where resources are not 

yet contractually committed but have resources allocated to establish if these 
schemes are still a priority in achieving current council priorities. If it is found that 

resources are no longer required these will the reduce the level of overprogramming 
and reduce the current reliance on capital receipts.  
 

This position will be monitored closely and reported through the budget monitoring 
process throughout the coming year. 

 
39. Where grant funding has been utilised or reprofiled to later years in the capital 

programme this has been done in accordance with the specific grant conditions.  

 
Prudential and Local Indicators 

 

40. The Council is required to maintain these indicators which are designed to show that 
its capital expenditure plans are prudent, affordable and sustainable. Detailed in 

Appendix 7 are the actual capital programme related indicators compared to those 
agreed in February 2022. It is to be noted that none of the prudential indicators have 

been breached within the financial year 2021/22. 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

  

Page 131



22 
 

 ASSET INVESTMENT FUND 
 

41. Asset Investment Fund currently stands at a maximum approved limit of £500m, 

supported by prudential borrowing, to support the Council’s Investment Strategy. The 
transactions that have been agreed by the Investment Management Board (IMB) to 

date have a total current committed cost of £345.88m, of which £237.27m has 
currently been expended. 
 

42. A number of new schemes have been approved by IMB during the year, including an 
additional £12m at Castle Irwell for Phase 2 of the residential scheme. A £16m 

investment into the Stamford Quarter LLP, has been approved, to fund regeneration 
schemes in Altrincham, split £8.0m for both equity and debt. A provision of £4.6m for 
a regeneration scheme in Hale Village which will provide new housing and 

community facilities, including a library. 
 

43. In January 2022, the loan facility for the CIS Tower was part repaid by £24m as the 
scheme progresses to its next stage and, following an approval to extension by the 
IMB, the remainder due to be repaid in 2022/23. The first phase of the Castle Irwell 

scheme has also begun to be repaid as elements of the residential development are 
sold, with £10.0m repaid to date. 

 

44. Debt facilities totalling £62.45m, provided by the Council to THG, to finance their Icon 

1 and 2 office and distribution schemes, have now been repaid in full. The facility of 
£67.50m, to be used to finance the construction of new office accommodation for 
THG, will begin to be drawn in 2022/23. 

 
45. The balance of the approved £500m which is available for further investment is 

£154.12m (Table below) 
 

Page 132



23 
 

Asset Investment Fund Prior 

Years  

£m 

Repayments 

£m 

Actual 

Spend 

2021/22 

£m 

Commitment 

£m Total      

£m 

Total Investment Fund     500.00 

Property Purchase:      

Sonova House, Warrington 12.17 -  - 12.17 

DSG, Preston 17.39 -  - 17.39 

Grafton Centre incl. Travelodge 
Hotel, Altrincham 

10.84 -  - 10.84 

The Fort, Wigan 13.93 -  - 13.93 

Sainsbury’s, Altrincham 25.59 -  - 25.59 

Sub Total 79.92 - - - 79.92 

Property Development:      

Sale Magistrates Court 4.80 - 0.47 0.22 5.49 

Brown Street, Hale 6.79 (2.11) 2.23 - 6.91 

Former sorting office, Lacy 

Street, Stretford 
0.87 - 0.03 0.06 0.96 

GMP Site, Chester Road, Old 

Trafford 
- - - 0.64 0.64 

Care Home Purchase & 

Remediation 
2.23 - 0.11 0.60 2.94  

Tamworth 0.06 - 0.07 0.13 0.26 

Various Development Sites* 0.37 - 0.09 - 0.46 

Sub Total 15.12 (2.11) 3.00 1.65 17.66 

Equity:      

Stretford Mall, Equity 8.82 - - - 8.82 

Stamford Quarter, Equity 16.69 - 0.29 7.71 24.69 

K Site, Stretford Equity 11.00 - 0.21 1.04 12.25 

Sub Total 36.51 - 0.50 8.75 45.76 

Development Debt:      

Bruntwood; K site 10.90 - 0.21 1.14 12.25 

Bruntwood; Stamford 

Qtr/Stretford Mall 
25.57 - 0.29 7.71 33.57 

CIS Building, Manchester 60.00 (24.00)  - 36.00 

The Hut Group 62.45 (62.45)  67.50 67.50 

Castle Irwell, Salford 11.28 (10.00) 7.43 10.29 19.00 

Castle Irwell, Salford – Phase 2 - - 3.74 8.26 12.00 

Hale Library - - 1.29 3.31 4.60 

Sub Total 170.20 (96.45) 12.96 98.21 184.92 

      

Total Capital Investment  301.74 (98.56) 16.46 108.61 328.26 

Albert Estate Investment 17.62   - 17.62 

Total Investment  319.37 (98.56) 16.46 108.61 345.88 

Balance available      154.12 

*Includes Stokoe Avenue and Jubilee Centre 

 

Page 133



24 
 

46. These investments have generated a net benefit to the revenue budget in 2021/22 of 
£6.49m, a deficit of £1.09m compared to the budget net target.  
 

Asset Investment Strategy  
Period 12 Monitor 

Budget 

Variance 
£000 

Net Income target (7,575) 

Variances:   

Pipeline Recycling Target 2,454 

Contribution from Risk Reserve (947) 

Low Variable Interest Rates  273 

Shopping Centre shortfalls 843 

Castle Irwell Phase 1 earlier draw (194) 

Castle Irwell Phase 2 - New facility (291) 

HUT Group delay 596 

HUT Group reserve smoothing (596) 

CIS Tower Extension (1,095) 

Grafton Centre Improved 
performance (36) 

Hale Library - New Facility (39) 

Admin & Fees 126 

Net Income for 2021/22 (6,483) 

Variance to Target 1,093 

 
Key Variances 

 

 The 2021/22 budget include target of £3m from schemes that were yet to be 
identified. This figure represented the recycling of funds from schemes that had 

matured and been repaid, such as the Crescent. A total of £0.54m was secured 
before the start of the year through new investments at the Hut Group and the 
Castle Irwell, leaving a remaining target of £2.45m. New schemes and extensions 

of current schemes, agreed in year, have been used to address this remaining 
target. Pressures have however been experienced in existing schemes. The new 

schemes and shortfalls are set out below.  
 

 The Hut Group have informed the Council of their intention to delay the start of 

work on their new office accommodation. This has postponed the drawdown of the 
agreed facility until 2022/23, which has caused a pressure in 2021/22 of £0.60m. 

To mitigate against this shortfall, the Council has drawn down from the Risk 
Reserve to smooth the variance, with the reserve to be topped back up from the 
anticipated delayed income benefit in future years. 

 

 Lower returns to the value of £0.27m on debt facilities which are linked to variable 
interest rates. 

 

 A shortfall in returns from the Council’s three joint ventures with Bruntwood of 
£0.84m, required to cover the Council’s borrowing costs on the acquisition of the 

Page 134



25 
 

town centre assets in Stretford and Altrincham. This shortfall is a result of reduced 
trading income as the sites recover from the impact of Covid-19 on the retail 
sector, and prepare for regeneration schemes on both sites. 

 

 The pressures above have been partly offset by additional income of £0.19m due 
to a faster draw on the Castle Irwell debt facility, and the signing of an additional 

£12m facility at Phase 2 of the residential scheme, providing a further £291k of net 
income. 

 

 The approved extension of the CIS Tower deal, £60m from September to January 
and then at the lower £36m facility, has provided an additional £1.10m of net 

income. 
 

 The Council has approved a debt facility of £4.60m to provide new housing and 

community facilities, including a library, in Hale Village. This new facility has 
provide additional net income of £39k in 2021/22. 
 

 The Risk Reserve level at the start of the year was £6.20m. This level of reserve is 

currently considered to be sufficient in relation to the immediate risks that the 
portfolio is exposed to. The Council has, therefore, made reduced contributions in 

2021/22, and £0.95m will instead be used as part of the mitigation of the 
forecasted income pressures. 

47. The Council has set aside a Risk Reserve to mitigate against potential unforeseen 

cost or income pressures and to finance future investment in the Council’s assets. At 
the start of the financial year this reserve stood at £6.2m and at year end was £6.3m. 

The Risk Reserve will be used to smooth income shortfalls from the THQ debt facility 
and the Streford and Stamford LLPs until the positions improve. Regeneration work 
is now underway at the Stretford Town Centre and Stamford Quarter sites and net 

income will return to surplus when the work is completed and the assets are fully 
tenanted. 

 

Risk Reserve 2021/22 
£'000 

2022/23 
£'000 

2023/24 
£'000 

2024/25 
£'000 

B/F 6,201 6,309 4,889 4,668 

Budgeted Contribution 1,651 0 0 0 

Stamford Quarter 
Smoothing 0 (418) (459) 26 

Stretford Town Centre 

Smoothing 0 (359) (359) (58) 

THQ Smoothing (596) 0 596 0 

GMP – Chester 

House* 0 (643) 0 0 

Budget Support (947) 0 0 0 

C/F 6,309 4,889 4,668 4,636 

Net Contribution 108 (1,420) (221) (32) 
*Should scheme progress then financing costs for the Council’s equity investment may need to be 

financed from reserve 

Page 135



26 
 

 
Recommendations 

48. It is recommended that that the Executive: 

 

 note the report and the revenue outturn position showing a budget 

underspend of £1.530m, which has been transferred to the Budget 
Resilience, Innovation and Change Reserve; 

 note the reserves position as detailed in paragraph 15 and Appendix 8;  

 

 note the final capital programme outturn position as detailed in 

paragraphs 30 to 47 

 

 

Other Options 
 

Not Applicable. 
 
Consultation 

 

 There are no public consultation requirements in respect of this report. 
 
Reasons for Recommendation 

 

Not Applicable 
 
Finance Officer Clearance DM……… 

Legal Officer Clearance  ………DS……… 

 

 

DIRECTOR’S SIGNATURE ……  ……  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 136



27 
 

Appendix 1 
  

 

 

  

Service Review/Virements 
Children’s 

(£000’s) 
Adults 

(£000’s) 
Place 

(£000’s) 

Strategy & 

Resources  
(£000’s) 

Finance 
& 

Systems
(£000’s) 

Governance 
& 

Community 

Strategy 
(£000’s) 

Council

-wide 
(£000’s) 

Total 
(£000’s) 

         

Period 8  Outturn Report 42,784 65,254 31,566 5,685 7,818 6,328 20,037 179,472 

         

Virements:         

Ofsted investment in Childrens’ 
funding HR, Performane Training 

and Consultant’s Post 

(136)   136    0 

Research project by Jewish 
Leadership Council 

   3   (3) 0 

Information Governance posts      33 (33) 0 

         

Total movements (136) 0 0 139 0 33 (36) 0 

         
Period 10  Outturn Report 42,648 65,254 31,566 5,824 7,818 6,361 20,001 179,472 

 
         

P
age 137



28 
 

 

             

           Appendix 2 
Main variances, changes to budget assumptions and key risks 

The main variances contributing to the projected underspend of £1.530m, any 
changes to budget assumptions and associated key risks are highlighted below: 

 

Table : 

Main 
variances  

Forecast 

Variance 
(£000’s) Explanation/Risks 

Children’s 
Services 

1,478 Outturn variance £1.478m adverse; an adverse movement of 

£297k. 

Below is the outturn position on the children’s placements and other 

budget areas. 

 £721k over budget on children’s placements (note 1) a favourable 

movement of £395k; 

 £385k under budget on staffing (note 2) an adverse movement of 
£486k; 

 £678k over budget on Home to School Transport (note 3) an 
adverse movement of £89k; 

 £464k over budget on other running costs and income across the 
service (note 4) an adverse movement of £117k. 

 

Note 1 

There is an overspend of £721k on children’s placements, a favourable 

movement of £395k.  

Over the two month period there has been a number of changes within 

Children’s placements.  Costs for new placements was £99k after 
utilising the remaining contingency of £129k.  This has been offset by 
reductions in placement costs of £494k due to children stepping down 

or leaving the system (£384k) and the receipt of additional Continuing 
Health Care income for some placements (£110k). 

The numbers of children as at the end of March are: 

 children in care 363, a decrease of 13 

 child protection is 192, an increase of 2 

 children in need 842, an increase of 36 

 

The savings target of £1.5m included in the budget has been achieved 
in full.   
 

Note 2 

Page 138



29 
 

There are underspends in staffing of £385k which is due to delays in 

recruiting and are one-off in nature as the service undertakes its service 
redesign which will continue to be implemented during 2022/23.  

The adverse movement of £486k is mainly due to additional agency 
costs being incurred as difficulties continue in the permanent 
recruitment of social workers. 

 

Note 3 

The overspend in Home to School Transport is £678k, this is an 

adverse variance of £89k due to: 

 the service continuing to see an increase in demand with further 

applications being received; 

 an increase in the complexity of cases, of which a number 

require transport to out of borough settings; 

 the price increases on contracts being incurred due to the 
increase in fuel costs; 

 The Trafford Travel Co-ordination Unit (TTCU) is currently part 
of a task and finish project being undertaken by the Business 

Intelligence Unit to look at opportunities for change. 
 

 Note 4 

The adverse variance in running costs and income across the service 
is £464k; an adverse movement of £117k.  The reasons for this 

overspend and movement are as follows: 

 £336k adverse variance on Section 17 (s17) payments, an adverse 

movement of £65k.  S17 payments are made where, for children in 
need, the authority identifies the needs for these children and 
ensures that the family are given the appropriate support in enabling 

them to safeguard and promote the child’s welfare.  As the number 
of children in need has increased over the year so have the costs 

in providing this support; 

 £73k adverse variance on Partington nursery an adverse 

movement of £11k. The overall variance is due to a low uptake at 
the nursery resulting in a shortfall in income; 

 £90k adverse movement on income – no change;  

 £35k favourable variance on minor variances across the service, an 
adverse movement of £41k. 

Adult 
Services 

(515) Outturn variance £515k favourable, a favourable movement of 
£97k from period 10. 

 

The impact of COVID-19 and supporting the NHS in dealing with the 

backlog of patients waiting for treatments has had a significant bearing 
on the service both in terms of its service delivery and finances during 
this financial year.  

 
The areas of favourable variance and pressures are outlined below: 

Page 139



30 
 

 £2.334m favourable position on Adult clients, a favourable 

movement of £2.269m from period 10 (Note 1) 

 £751k favourable position on staffing and running costs, a 

favourable movement of £398k from period 10 (Note 2) 

 £2.570m to support short term pressures on the budget for 22/23 

(Note 3); adverse movement of £2.570m. 

 
Note 1 

Adult Clients has a £2.334m underspend, a favourable movement of 

£2.269m from period 10.  
 

This budget continued to increase in both its complexity and volatility 
as a result of COVID-19 and below are the main reasons for the 
favourable position:   

Discharge to Assess - £2.686m favourable, a £1.577m favourable 

movement. This is due to the following:- 

 

 Hospital Discharge Programme (HDP) - £1.107m favourable, a 

£857k favourable movement. The programme continued this year 
with costs being met by the NHS.  The final months saw an increase 

in the eligibility of costs that could be charged to the scheme. 

 Risk Share agreement - £1.579m favourable, a £720k favourable 
movement. This is due to an increase in the income received from 

the CCG regarding stays in discharge to assess beds beyond 28 
days that are not covered by the HDP. 

 
Section 117 Liabilities – £285k favourable, a £285k favourable 

movement.  Section 117 is a part of the legislation that requires 

councils and CCG’s to fund the requirements of an individual’s after-
care under the Mental Health Act to build effective support and 

rehabilitation packages after a period of compulsory detention. The 
backdated costs being sought by other local authorities is less than had 
been anticipated.   

 
Savings – £329k adverse, a £15k adverse movement  

Not all savings have been achieved this year due to the need to 
continue to respond to COVID-19 and the prevailing market conditions.  
£1.537m of the £1.866m saving proposals in this area have been 

achieved.   
 
Packages of Care – £308k  adverse, a £422k favourable  movement 

This is due to the following:- 

 Increases in costs to existing packages of care £1.671m (586 clients).  

This is mainly due to increasing client needs/complexity and changes 
to clients’ financial assessments.  

 Reductions in costs to existing packages of care £2.552 (332 clients).  
This is mainly due to reductions in care required, clients that have 

deceased and changes in clients’ financial assessments.  

Page 140



31 
 

 New packages of care - the gross increase was £552k reducing to 

£459k after applying £96k for contingencies. This will include 
previous self funders whose savings have fallen below £23,250.  

 
 
Note 2 

The outturn position is a favourable variance of £751k on staffing and 
running costs, a favourable movement of £398k from period 10 which 

is due to the following:- 
 

 £438k favourable variance on staffing, a favourable movement of 

£79k.  This favourable variance and movement is due to severe 
difficulties in recruitment of staff. The exceptional circumstances 

within the Supported Living service still exist but to a lesser degree 
due to a reduction in the use of Agency workers and the utilisation 

of the Workforce Recruitment and Retention grant;   

 £300k favourable variance on the bad debt provision.  A detailed 
analysis by Exchequer Services on the debt position as at 31st 

March has determined that no further contribution from the budget 
this year is required. 

 £239k favourable variance on client equipment, repairs and 
maintenance, a favourable movement of £31k.  This is due to the 
impact of COVID-19 resulting in a low number of referrals being 

received as occupational therapists were redeployed into COVID-
19 response teams until Dec 21 and also difficulties in accessing 

properties to undertake work. 

 £317k adverse variance due to underachievement of savings, no 

movement.  This is as a result of delays to changes in legislation 
and staffing pressures on the service and 

 £91k favourable variance on minor variances, an adverse 

movement of £12k. 
 
Note 3 

Due to a range of short term pressures in the service from 
implementing new government legislation, ordinary residence claims (a 

local authority has a duty to meet eligible needs for an adult who is 
'ordinarily resident' in its area) and the requirements within hospital 

settings to reduce waiting lists (this will have an impact on discharges 
from hospital), £2.57m of the adults underspend this year will be set 
aside in two adult’s earmarked reserves to support these budgets in 

22/23 (£1.58m Discharge to Assess Reserve and £990k Adults Service 
Earmarked Reserve).  

 
Note 4 

In addition to this there are further costs due to COVID-19 as outlined 

below which are met by additional income:- 
 

 £6.389m which has been be met by the CCG from their allocation 
given by NHSE for the Hospital Discharge Programme;   

Page 141



32 
 

 £3.867m for Infection Control and Rapid Testing for care providers 

which has been met by government grant; 

 £137k for the Clinically Extremely Vulnerable which has been met 

by government grant; 

 £797k for Contain Outbreak Management which has been met by 

government grant; 

 £494k for Self-isolation Support which has been met by government 

grant and  
£1.822m for Workforce Recruitment and Retention which has been met 
by government grant. 

Public 
Health 

(1,638) Outturn variance £1.638m favourable, a favourable movement of 
£209k from period 10. 

 

The outturn position shows a favourable position of £1.638m as a result 

of:- 

 £679k favourable position on ‘business as usual’ staffing costs, £2k 
favourable movement from period 10, as the service continued to 

lead and support the contain outbreak management response to 
COVID-19; 

 £256k favourable position on activity based budgets, £156k 
favourable movement.  This is  due to a considerable drop in activity 

and demand as a result of the disruption cause by COVID-19; 

 £400k favourable position in the community services contract, no 
movement.  This is a one off reduction as the costs have been met 

by the NHS and the current financial regime it has been operating 
in since the coronavirus pandemic and  

 £303k favourable position on running costs and other minor 
variations, a favourable movement of £51k. 

 
In addition to this there has been further costs of £1.530m due to 
COVID-19 for contain outbreak management and this will be met by a 

government grant. 

Place 609 Outturn variance £609k adverse, a favourable movement of £730k 

since period 10. 

This includes gross COVID-19 pressures of £2.682m, offset by 
£2.340m included in the approved budget/reserves – a net COVID-
19 pressure of £342k which is a favourable movement of £21k.   

This includes: 

 COVID-19 related gross income losses are £2.514m (reduced 
by £19k), of which £1.470m is included in the approved budget 

and £670k earmarked in reserves/grants relating to Leisure.  
This gives a net COVID-19 income pressure in the forecast 

outturn of £374k; 

 The gross COVID-19 related income losses include parking 
fees and fines £506k (increased by £15k), property rentals 

£281k (reduced by £19k), outdoor media advertising £26k 
(reduced by £69k), planning fees £828k (increased by £100k), 

Page 142



33 
 

licencing fees £80k, building control fees £61k, highways 

permits and grants £30k (increased by £6k), street trading 
£22k (increased by £2k), pest control £8k (reduced by £8k) 

and trade waste £52k (increased by £4k). These are offset by 
GMRAPs income now on target £50k (pressure reduced by 
£50k). The gross trading deficit of the Trafford Leisure CIC is 

£670k due to the effects of the various COVID-19 restrictions 
over the year, which will be funded from existing earmarked 

reserves and application of grants; 

 COVID-19 related gross expenditure pressures are £168k 
(reduced by £2k).  This includes £163k in additional waste 

disposal costs (increased by £63k) and £54k operational 
buildings (reduced by £17k), £32k highways, £5k grounds 

maintenance, £18k other running costs (including licencing).  
There is an underspend of £99k on Community Safety staffing 
relating to staff secondments to COVID-19 related work 

(increased by £43k) and other staff £5k (increased by £5k); 

 There are also additional costs fully offset by additional specific 

COVID-19 grants of £305k Community Engagement and 
£422k for Public Protection/Economic Growth/Housing 

“pandemic contain” funding. 

Other Variances £826k favourable, a favourable movement of 
£297k. 

 The variance includes an overall staffing underspend of £659k 

relating to vacancies across the year (increase of £80k),  which 
is approximately 9.1% of the staffing budget and includes for 
management action on vacancies outlined in previous reports. 

 Property let estate income is £314k above budget offset by 
additional property costs of £166k. 

 The ring-fenced planning account has a forecast underspend of 
£362k (unchanged) which partly offsets the COVID-19 income 
pressure for Planning application fees above.  

 These are offset by projected shortfalls in income relating to 
building control £196k, CCTV £36k and public protection £42k. 

 Changes in the grant conditions of the Homelessness 
Prevention Grant used to fund the Housing Options Service 

Trafford (HOST), and unanticipated additional in-year winter top 
up grant of £136k, has resulted in an underspend in the Housing 
service of £488k in 2021/22. This amount has been transferred 

to the Economic Development Reserve temporarily whilst 
awaiting notification on the future allocation and conditions of 

the Homelessness Prevention Grant.  

Strategic Investment Programme £1.093m adverse, a favourable   

movement of £412k: 

The Strategic Investment Property Portfolio will deliver a net 

benefit to the revenue budget in 2021/22 of £6.5m. This is 
£1.093m lower than budgeted and is due to economic factors 

Page 143



34 
 

affecting some of the income, particularly from the town centre 

investments (see details in paragraph 46 on capital 
programme). 

Strategy & 
Resources 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

(653) 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 

Outturn variance £653k favourable, a favourable movement of 
£263k since period 10. 

This includes gross COVID-19 pressures of £339k, a favourable  
movement of £152k, which is £142k lower than the £481k included 

in the approved budget: 

 Gross trading losses in the overall forecast outturn includes 
£131k in Catering (reduced by £128k) and £98k in Cleaning 
(reduced by £9k) offset by a £46k surplus in the Music Service 

(£5k favourable movement). There is a net loss of income from 
staff parking of £138k (reduced by £10k) and £14k loss of SLA 

income directly attributable to COVID-19 (unchanged); 

 There is also £1.127m of additional staff costs relating to the 

Modernisation, Communications and Human Resources teams 
which are wholly funded from COVID-19 related grants up to 
the end of March 2022. 

Other Variances £511k favourable, a favourable movement of 
£111k, including: 

 Staff costs are £461k less than budget across the Directorate 
(favourable movement of £25k) based on actual and forecast 

vacancies across the whole year, which is 6.9% of the total 
staffing budget; 

 SLA income, Bereavement Services and other running costs 
are favourable £176k (favourable movement of £77k).   

These are offset by the budgeted Directorate-wide efficiency saving 

target of £126k, which has been achieved in full. 

Page 144



35 
 

Finance & 

Systems 
 

64 Projected outturn variance £64k adverse, an adverse movement 

of £25k since period 10. 

Forecast COVID-19 Pressures £219k, adverse movement of £1k: 

This relates to additional unplanned costs associated with ICT staff, 

equipment and systems directly related to the COVID-19 pandemic. 

There are also additional costs fully offset by additional specific COVID-
19 grants totalling £1.152m in Exchequer Services and £66k in ICT.   

Other Forecast Variances £180k favourable, a favourable 

movement of £147k: 

 Staff costs are £357k less than budget across the Directorate 

based on actual and forecast vacancies for the whole year, 
which is 4.5% of the total staffing budget, and an increase of 

£140k; 

 Other variances of £11k, a favourable movement of £7k;   
 

These are offset by the budgeted Directorate-wide efficiency saving 

target of £188k. 

Page 145



36 
 

Governance 

& 
Community 

Strategy 

6 Outturn variance £6k adverse, a favourable movement of £179k 

since period 10. 

This includes gross COVID-19 pressures of £275k offset by £240k 
included in the approved budget, a favourable movement of £186k 

– a net COVID-19 pressure of £35k: 

 Gross income losses due to COVID-19 are £185k (reduced by 
£186k) and includes £149k relating to Sale Waterside Arts 
Centre (reduced by £149k), £17k for events including Flixton 

House (reduced by £5k), land charges £28k (reduced by £11k) 
and Registrar’s £57k above budget (increased by £24k).   

There is also a £48k loss of income from library lettings 
(increased by £3k);   

 cost pressures total £90k (unchanged) and relate to legal costs 

for fees and additional agency staff required due to the 
increase in caseload £100k, which is in line with budget, and 

an underspend in Library running costs due to grants of £10k.    

Other Variances £29k favourable, an adverse movement of £7k: 

 Forecast staff costs are £390k less than budget across the 
Directorate based on actual and forecast vacancies across the 
whole year, which is 7.0% of the total staffing budget.  This has 

reduced by £11k; 

 Running costs are forecast to be overspent by £32k, which is a 

favourable movement of £4k; 

 There is a shortfall in income of £137k compared to budget 

excluding the COVID-19 pressures above, which is 
unchanged. The overall shortfall includes £25k in capital fee 
income which is related to staff vacancies (reduced by £9k), 

£37k shortfall in traded services (reduced by £10k) and £45k 
reduced grant income in electoral registration service.  Other 

income shortfall, including from SLAs, is net £30k (increase of 
£19k).   

The above is offset by the budgeted Directorate-wide efficiency saving 

target of £192k. 

Council-
wide 

budgets 

(881) Projected Outturn variance, £881k favourable, a favourable 
movement of £368k since Period 10 

Treasury Management 

The outturn position for the Council's Treasury Management function 
is a net overspend of £925k, an adverse movement of £533k since 

period 10. The key variances are set out below. 
 

Shareholder Income Car Park investment £784k - Income totalling 
£392k was forecast to be received during 2021/22 from monies 
invested in Manchester Airport Group in 2020 by the Council along 

with the other 9 Greater Manchester LAs for the provision of a new 

Page 146



37 
 

Car Parking facility.  As a result of the reduced activity during the 

Covid-19 pandemic, this income is not anticipated to be achieved 
until 2023/24 at the earliest. The interest rate smoothing reserve has 

been increased in year and will be used to cover any income shortfall 
in the short term. 
 

Other provisions have been made to cover the costs of other activity 
associated with the Council’s debt strategy. 

 

Sales, Fees and Charges Compensation Grant 

Council-wide holds the budget provision for the Sales, Fees and 

Charges Compensation Grant to recompense the Council for COVID 
related income losses limited for the first quarter of 2021/22. Income 

losses during the first quarter were lower than budget subsequently 
resulting in a lower compensation grant estimated at £566k. No 
change since period 10.  

Housing Benefit 

There is a minor net overspend on the Housing Benefit budget of 

£35k, a favourable movement of £130k since period 10. However, 
there is now no requirement to draw on any of the £500k set aside in 
the Reserve to cover volatility in this budget, as previously expected. 

The actual variance is therefore £35k adverse. 

Liability Orders 

Additional income above budget of £222k, including a refund of 
£117k from the Ministry of Justice relating to Court fees over paid by 
local authorities during the period between April 2014 to July 2018. 

An additional £105k above budget due to an increase in activity to 
clear court backlogs experienced during the pandemic. 

Greater Manchester Advance Pension Payment 

A greater than expected saving of £154k above budget from the 
three yearly advance pension payment. A minor improvement of £4k 

since period 10. 

Transport Levy 

A saving of £99k against budget on the final levy paid to the Greater 
Manchester Combined Authority. 

Members Allowances 

There is a saving of £42k on Members Allowances and running cost 
budgets, a favourable movement of £7k since period 10. 

External Audit fees 

A £25k underspend, a favourable movement of £7k since period 10. 
This includes the following. 

Following the approval of its 2020/21 audited annual report, the 
Public Sector Audit Appointments has redistributed a total of £5.6m 

amongst its members. For Trafford this refund is £18k. 

Page 147



38 
 

The Government recently announced additional funding of £15m to 

local authorities over the next 4 years in response to the Redmond 
Review. This funding is to meet the anticipated rise in audit fees 

driven by new requirements on auditors. For Trafford this is £47k in 
2021/22. 

Costs of £40k relating to additional audit work relating to the 2020/21 

Accounts have also been incurred above budget in the year.  
 
Council-wide Contingencies 

The overall contingency of £2.8m available at the start of the year 
has been utilised on a range of unforeseen expenditure, most notably 

the cost of the 2021/22 pay award (£1.2m), the additional pressures 
caused by the lower than anticipated grant for losses in sales, fees 

and charges caused by the Covid Pandemic (£0.6m) and the 
additional pressures detailed above on the treasury management 
budget (£0.9m). These have been offset by £0.2m of windfall income 

from Trafford Housing Trust relating to a historic VAT Shelter 
arrangement. The final release of contingency budgets was £0.3m 

 

Contain Outbreak Management Fund (COMF) 

The Council Wide budget holds the grant income from the COVID-19 

related COMF. Grant has been transferred to service areas where 
expenditure has been directly incurred. A balance of £1.010m has 

been incurred on shared costs, general overheads and running costs 
across all services within the year and charged against the grant, in 
accordance with the grant conditions. As these costs have been 

accounted for in Service Outturns above, this element of the grant has 
been transferred to the Budget Resilience, Innovation and Change 

Reserve in the year to support future budget plans. 

A balance of £1.403m remains of the grant with defined plans to 
spend this in 2022/23; this has therefore been carried over as a Grant 

Receipt in Advance. 

 

Savings Programme 

The savings from the Voluntary Redundancy/Voluntary Severance 
scheme of £919k over the two year period 2021/23 (£708k in 2021/22 

and £211k in 2022/23) is projected to fall short of target by £50k. 

Also, the take up from the 9-day Fortnight scheme has been lower 

than expected and the saving of £60k will not be fully realised, leaving 
a shortfall of £48k. 

However, these savings shortfalls will be managed within the pay 

element of the Council-wide contingency budget. 

 

Page 148



39 
 

Dedicated 

Schools 
Grant 

1,533 Outturn variance £1.533m adverse, a favourable movement of 

£231k from Period 10. 

There are underspends in the Schools and Central Schools Services 
of £476k, a favourable movement of £125k. The majority of this 

movement is within the schools block (£90k) due to further growth 
fund applications not being required until 2022/23 (£55k) and a further 

reduction in the utilisation of the  maternity fund (£35k). 

The Early Years blocks is overspent by £88k after £120k of reserves 
were utilised.   This is due to the final funding allocation and numbers 

of funded children not being known until after the January census 
count in which this data is not received until mid-way through spring 

term.    

The High Needs Block overspent by £1.921m, a favourable  
movement of £194k from P10.  

The service continues to review what mitigations can be put in place 
to provide longer term savings. In addition to this and as a 

requirement of the DSG, where there is an overall deficit on the 
account at the end of financial year 2021/2022, or where a DSG 
surplus has substantially reduced, a deficit management plan must  

be completed and submitted to Government. This plan is in the 
process of being prepared and will assist in future planning and 

identifying how any deficit will be addressed.   

 

  

Page 149



40 
 

Business Rates Budget             Appendix 3 

 Business Rates 

Budget 
100% 

Actual 
100% 

Variance 

 Comments 
2021/22 

£ 

2021/22 

£ 
£ 

Business Rates - Collection Fund  

Gross Rates Payable (183,901,072) (179,170,279) 4,730,793 

Reduction in gross rateable income due to a 
number of large retail site undergoing 
refurbishment at the Trafford Centre. These 
reduction are temporary and are expected to 
be completed in early 2022/23. 

Transitional Adjustments and 
Mandatory & Discretionary Reliefs 

16,677,821 23,938,892 7,261,071 
Increase in empty property relief of £4.3m and 
£2.3m standard Extended Retail Relief over 
budget. 

Extended Relief due to COVID-19 0 38,130,213 38,130,213 

Reduction in income due to the award of 
COVID-19 reliefs (retails, hospitality, leisure, 
nursery). This shortfall will be made good by 
the Government via a section 31 Grant paid to 
the General Fund. 

Accounting Adjustments (Appeals & 
BDP) & Cost of Collection 

14,151,164 (1,371,405) (15,522,569) 

Budgeted contribution of £6.5m for appeals 
relating to 21/22 has been reduced by £3.0m 
with a further £6.6m released from existing 
provision  due to some big cases being 
dismissed by the VOA. In addition, losses on 
collection were less than anticipated resulting 
in lower accounting adjustments of £6.0m.  

Collection Fund Budget and Actual 
Income 100% 

(153,072,087) (118,472,579) 34,599,508 

The net impact of above lines resulted in a net 
deficit on the Collection Fund of £34.6m. This 
consisted of an underlying core surplus of 
£3.53m, offset by a deficit caused by COVID-
19 reliefs of £38.130m 

P
age 150



41 
 

Collection Fund Budget and Actual 

Income - Trafford Share 99% 
(151,541,366) (117,287,854) 34,253,513 

Trafford’s Share (99%) of the net Collection 
Fund Deficit is £34.25m 

 

 

Business Rates – Trafford General Fund  

Local Share (151,541,366) 
(155,036,764) (3,495,398) 

Trafford’s Share (99%) of the Collection 

Fund Deficit is £34.25m. Consisting of core 

surplus of £3.495m and COVID-19 Relief 

deficit of £37.75m. 

A contribution towards a reserve will be 

made in 2021/22 to pay for the deficit 

caused by COVID-19 rates relief. The 

deficit will be repaid during 2022/23 and 

2023/24. A Section 31 Grant has been 

received (below) to meet the cost of this 

deficit. 

Deficit caused by COVID-19 Relief 
Contribution to Deficit Reserve 

0 37,748,911 37,748,911 

Trafford's Share of Collection Fund (151,541,366) (117,287,853) 34,253,513   

Tariff 95,551,976 95,551,976 0   

Section 31 Compensation Grants (9,001,875) (49,408,368) (40,406,494) 

The increase in S31 grants is largely due to the 
extended retail relief (£37.75m) as a result of 
COVID. The balance of £2.66m relates to 
standard retail relief grants. 

SAICA Renewable Energy (82,944) (82,944) 0   

GM Pilot ‘No Detriment’ Over Payment 5,543,677 7,373,518 1,829,841 
Increased no detriment payment as a result of 
the increase in growth to baseline. 

P
age 151



42 
 

GM Pilot 'No Detriment Rebate  (2,771,839) (5,530,138) (2,758,300) 

Increase in the no detriment rebate due to 
renegotiation of the growth pilot sharing 
agreement with GMCA, previously set at 50%, 
however agreed to increase to 75%. 

Collection of Prior Year Deficit 83,468,589 83,467,811 (778) 
minor adjustment on prior year deficit, offset by 
contribution from reserve below 

Contribution from Reserves to meet Prior 
Year Deficit 

(83,468,589) (83,467,811) 778  

Estimated Covid 20/21 deficit (Gross) 
spread over three years 

1,773,322 1,773,322 0  

Government Support at 75% of 
estimated full 20/21 deficit via TIG 
Reserve 

(1,329,991) (1,329,991) 0  

Contribution from Business Rates 
Reserve 

(600,000) (600,000) 0  

Contribution to Business Rate Deficit 
Reserve 

  289,409 289,409 

Contribution to Rates Deficit Reserve re over 
distribution of estimated 21/22 surplus, 
repayable to Collection Fund in 2023/24 (see 
footnote *) 

Total Budget/ Actual/ Variance (62,459,040) (69,251,071) (6,792,031)   

Benefit within the Collection Fund (*) 
    (3,495,398)  

Benefit within the General Fund (**)     (3,296,633)  

   (6,792,031  

 

(*) The surplus on the Collection Fund was estimated at £3.785m in Period 8 and in line with regulations, this figure will be  released 

from the Collection Fund in 2022/23 and as such has been included in our budget plans. The actual benefit at year end was £3.495m 
which will result in an overpayment of £289k and will need to be repaid to the Collection Fund in 2023/24. The Rates Deficit Reserve 

will be increased to hold this balance until it is repaid. 
(**) The favourable Business Rates outturn within the General Fund is £3.296m after the deduction of a figure of £289k to pro vide for 
the overpaid estimated surplus (see paragraph above). The General Fund favourable outturn of £3.296m will be transferred to 

the Budget Resilience, Innovation and Change Reserve to support our future budget plans. 
  

P
age 152



43 
 

Appendix 4 

 

An analysis of major areas of re-profiling 
for the General Capital Programme 

Period 
10 

2021/22 

Period 

12 
Actual 

2021/22 

Variance % 
Net Re-

profiling 

 

Overspend 

 

Savings 

  £m £m £m   £m £m £m 

Children's Services         
  

    

  Schools 11.42 9.79 -1.63 -14% -1.63 0.00 0.00 

  
- Basic Need : Expansion 
schemes 

7.09 6.42 -0.67   -0.67 0.00 0.00 

  - Maintenance Programme 3.63 2.81 -0.82   -0.82 0.00 0.00 

  - Devolved Formula Capital 0.50 0.34 -0.16   -0.16 0.00 0.00 

  - SEND Programme 0.20 0.22 0.02   0.02 0.00 0.00 

  
Children’s Social Care 
Services 

0.38 0.31 -0.07 -18% -0.07 0.00 0.00 

  
- Foster Carers – 
Accommodation Improvements 

0.04 0.03 -0.01   -0.01 0.00 0.00 

  - Children’s Portal/Liquid Logic 0.30 0.24 -0.06   -0.06 0.00 0.00 

  - Other Schemes 0.04 0.04 0.00   0.00 0.00 0.00 

Total 11.80 10.10 -1.70 -14% -1.70 0.00 0.00 

Adult Social Care     0.00         

  - Disabled Facilities Grant 1.76 1.76 0.00   0.00 0.00 0.00 

  
- Assistive Technology/ Agile 
Working 

0.11 0.12 0.01   0.00 0.01  0.00 

Total 1.87 1.88 0.01 1% 0.00 0.01 0.00 

P
age 153



44 
 

        

        

    

Period 
10 

2021/22 

Period 
12 

Actual 

2021/22 

Variance % 
Net Re-
profiling 

Overspend Savings 

Place               

  Corporate Landlord 3.19 1.77 -1.42 -45% -1.41 0.00 -0.01 

  
- Public Buildings Repairs and 

DDA  
0.96 0.46 -0.50   -0.49 0.00 -0.01 

  - De-carbonisation Programme 2.01 1.19 -0.82   -0.82 0.00 0.00 

  - Other Schemes 0.22 0.12 -0.10   -0.10 0.00 0.00 

  
Regeneration & Strategic 
Planning 

1.41 1.59 0.18 13% 0.18 0.00 0.00 

  Future High Street Fund 0.57 0.92 0.35   0.35 0.00 0.00 

  
- Greater Manchester Full Fibre 
Initiative 

0.57 0.50 -0.07   -0.07 0.00 0.00 

  
- Town Centre Public Realm 
Works 

0.17 0.15 -0.02   -0.02 0.00 0.00 

  - Other schemes 0.10 0.02 -0.08   -0.08 0.00 0.00 

  
Sport, Recreation & Culture 

and Recycling 
1.40 1.35 -0.05 -4% -0.05 0.00 0.00 

  
- Leisure Centre Strategy and 
Improvements 

0.83 0.84 0.01   0.01 0.00 0.00 

  Football Facility Provisions 0.56 0.50 -0.06   -0.06 0.00 0.00 

  - Other Schemes 0.01 0.01 0.00   0.00 0.00 0.00 

  
Environmental Services and 
Green Spaces 

0.81 0.40 -0.41 -51% -0.42 0.01 0.00 

P
age 154



45 
 

  
- Parks and Play Areas 
Infrastructure 

0.81 0.40 -0.41   -0.42 0.01 0.00 

    

Period 
10 

2020/21 
Actual Variance % 

Net 
Reprofiling 

Overspend Savings 

         

  Housing and Other Services 1.43 1.36 -0.07 -5% -0.07 0.00 0.00 

  - Housing Services 1.43 1.36 -0.07   -0.07 0.00 0.00 

  Bereavement Services 0.13 0.08 -0.05 -38% -0.05 0.00 0.00 

  Bereavement Services 0.13 0.08 -0.05   -0.05 0.00 0.00 

  Parking Services 0.07 0.04 -0.03 -43% -0.04 0.01 0.00 

  Parking Services 0.07 0.04 -0.03   -0.04 0.01 0.00 

  Highways 9.17 7.84 -1.33 -15% -1.21 0.01 -0.13 

  
- Highways Structural 

Maintenance 
5.07 3.67 -1.40   -1.32 0.00 -0.08 

  - Integrated Transport Schemes 0.43 0.19 -0.24   -0.19 0.00 -0.05 

  - Cycling and Walking Schemes 1.64 1.89 0.25   0.24 0.01 0.00 

  - Bridges Programme 1.01 0.62 -0.39   -0.39 0.00 0.00 

  - Carrington Road Improvements 1.02 1.47 0.45   0.45 0.00 0.00 

Total 17.61 14.43 -3.18 -18% -3.07 0.03 -0.14 

Governance & Community Strategy               

  Partnerships & Communities 0.08 0.11 0.03 38% 0.02 0.01 0.00 

Finance & Systems               

  Information Technology 0.73 0.55 -0.18 -25% -0.18 0.00 0.00 

General Capital Programme Total 32.09 27.07 -5.02 16% -4.93 0.05 -0.14 

 
 

P
age 155



46 
 

                Appendix 5 
An analysis of major areas of re-profiling for the General 
Capital Programme 

Approved 
Budget 

Outturn 
2021/22 

Variance Variance % 

  £m £m £m 
 

Children's Services        

  Schools 12.26 9.79 -2.47 -20 

  - Basic Need : Expansion schemes 7.23 6.42 -0.81 -11 

  - Maintenance Programme 4.03 2.81 -1.22 -30 

  - Devolved Formula Capital 0.80 0.34 -0.46 -58 

  - SEND Programme 0.20 0.22 0.02 -10 

  Children’s Social Care Services 0.53 0.31 -0.22 -42 

  - Foster Carers – Accommodation Improvements 0.19 0.03 -0.16 -84 

  - Children’s Portal/Liquid Logic 0.30 0.24 -0.06 -20 

  - Other Schemes 0.04 0.04 0.00 0 

Total 12.79 10.10 -2.69 -21 

Adult Social Care       

  - Disabled Facilities Grant 3.81 1.76 -2.05 -54 

  - Assistive Technology/ Agile Working 0.68 0.12 -0.56 -82 

Total 4.49 1.88 -2.61 58 

Place        

  Corporate Landlord 5.71 1.77 -3.94 -69 

  - Public Buildings Repairs and DDA  0.94 0.46 -0.48 -51 

  - De-carbonisation Programme 3.81 1.19 -2.62 -69 

  - Other Schemes 0.96 0.12 -0.84 -88 

  Regeneration & Strategic Planning 6.27 1.59 -4.68 -75 

  -Future High Street Fund 1.57 0.92 -0.65 -41 

  - Greater Manchester Full Fibre Initiative 0.84 0.50 -0.34 -40 

  - Town Centre Public Realm Works 0.40 0.15 -0.25 -63 

P
age 156



47 
 

    
Period 10 

2020/21 

Outturn 

2021/22 
Variance 

 

  - Manchester Airport - Project Mere 3.26 0.00 -3.26 -100 

  - Other schemes 0.20 0.02 -0.18 -90 

  Sport, Recreation & Culture and Recycling 1.79 1.35 -0.44 -25 

  - Leisure Centre Strategy and Improvements 1.08 0.84 -0.24 -22 

  - Football Facility Provisions 0.71 0.50 -0.21 -30 

  - Other Schemes 0.00 0.01 0.01 0 

  Environmental Services and Green Spaces 0.89 0.40 -0.49 -55 

  - Parks and Play Areas Infrastructure 0.89 0.40 -0.49 -55 

  Housing and Other Services 0.93 1.36 0.43 46 

  - Housing Services 0.58 1.36 0.78 134 

  - Community Safety 0.35 0.00 -0.35 -100 
  Bereavement Services 1.08 0.08 -1.00 -93 

  -Bereavement Services 1.08 0.08 -1.00 -93 

  Parking Services 0.28 0.04 -0.24 -86 

  -Parking Services 0.28 0.04 -0.24 -86 
  Highways 13.42 7.84 -5.58 -42 

  - Highways Structural Maintenance 5.28 3.67 -1.61 -30 

  - Integrated Transport Schemes 1.09 0.19 -0.90 -83 

  - Cycling and Walking Schemes 4.89 1.89 -3.00 -61 

  - Bridges Programme 1.14 0.62 -0.52 -46 

  - Carrington Road Improvements 1.02 1.47 0.45 44 

Total 30.37 14.43 -15.94 -52 

Governance & Community Strategy        

  Partnerships & Communities 0.08 0.11 0.03 38 

Finance & Systems        

  Information Technology 1.26 0.55 -0.71 -56 

General Capital Programme Total 48.99 27.07 -21.92 -45 

P
age 157



48 
 

Appendix 6 
 

 
CAPITAL PROGRAMME 2021/22- Overspends and Savings P10 to Outturn 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Overspends  £000’s 

  

Adult Social Care System 7 

Section 278 Agreements 9 

Cycle City – Chorlton Cycleway 8 

Parking Pay and Display Equipment 8 

Play Area Refurbishment 4 

ICT Capacity Upgrade 10 

Total Overspends 46 

Savings  

Capital Innovations Fund – Sanyu Day Care Centre 2 

Public Building Repairs 6 

Integrated Transport – Dropped Crossings 19 

Casualty Reduction Partnership 30 

Highway Resurfacing  49 

Highway Road Reconstruction 29 

Total Savings 135 

P
age 158



49 
 

Appendix 7 
 

Prudential Indicators – 2021/22  
 

The figures below show the Council’s actual prudential indicators for 2021/22 and those for future years as reported in February 

2022.      

Capital Prudential Indicators  
2020/21 

Actual 

£m 

2021/22 

Actual 

£m 

2022/23 

Estimate 

£m 

2023/24 

Estimate 

£m 

2024/25 

Estimate 

£m 
Capital Expenditure:- 

General Programme  

Investment Strategy 

33.95 

71.06 

27.07 

30.90 

79.56 

130.15 

68.60 

75.00 

39.07 

25.00 

Capital expenditure - the table above shows the capital expenditure incurred in 2021/22 and the estimated expenditure to be 

incurred for following three years.  

Capital Financing Requirement as at 31 

March   423.49 376.35 538.44 624.81 646.28 

Capital Financing Requirement (CFR) - this reflects the estimated need to borrow for capital investment (i.e. the anticipated 

level of capital expenditure not financed from capital grants and contributions, revenue or capital receipts).  

Financing Cost to Net Revenue Stream 6.4% 6.6% 6.7% 6.8% 6.6% 

P
age 159



50 
 

Financing costs to net revenue stream - this indicator shows the trend in the cost of capital (borrowing and other long term 

obligation costs net of investment income) against the Council’s net revenue stream.  

Incremental Impact on Band D Council Tax 

(£) 
£0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 £0.00 

Incremental impact on band D council tax – reflects the incremental impact on the Council Tax arising from new borrowing 

undertaken in order to finance the capital investment decisions taken by the Council during the budget cycle.  The figures above 

reflect that any additional borrowing is supported by revenue savings or external support.  

 

  

P
age 160



51 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Local Indicators for the 
Asset Investment Strategy 

2021/22 

Actual 

£m 

2022/23 

Estimate 

£m 

2023/24 
Estimate 

£m 

2024/25 
Estimate 

£m 

Gross Commercial Income  14.10 13.42 12.92 12.40 

Gross Commercial Income – this is the total estimated level of income to be received 

from the acquisitions of commercial property and provision of senior debt finance and is 
required to support new debt costs associated the transactions, with any balance 

supporting the overall revenue budget. 

External Interest Cost 4.59 4.42 4.32 4.21 

External Interest Cost – this is the interest cost of the new debt required to cover the 

capital cost of the new commercial activity. 

Minimum Revenue Provision 
(2.0% = 50 years)  

2.25 2.52 2.52 2.53 

Minimum Revenue Provision - this is the amount of income set aside as a provision 

for the repayment of the debt, required to cover the capital cost of the new commercial 
activity. 

Risk Reserve 0.11 -1.42 -0.22 -0.03 

Risk Reserve - this is the amount of income set aside to reserve as contingency in the 

event of a reduction in commercial income levels. 

Cumulative Investment 
Reserve 

6.31 4.89 4.67 4.64 

Cumulative Risk Reserve - this is the cumulative amount of reserve set aside, after 

annual contributions and deductions, as contingency in the event of a reduction in 
commercial income levels. 

P
age 161



52 
 

Appendix 8 
 

Trafford Council Reserves 2021 to 2022 
Balance 

31.3.21 
£000 

Spend/ 
(income) 

2021/22 
£000 

Transfer 
to/from 

reserves  
2021/22 

£000 

  
Balance 

31.3.22 
£000 

Net 

Movement 
£000 

Budget Resilience           

MTFP Budget Resilience, innovation and Change 
Reserve (BRICR) 

      
    

To provide a cushion and to support the MTFP as the 
Council continues its recovery from the financial impacts of 

the pandemic. It will support the budget gap over the short-
term and provide the necessary investment in the innovation 
and change programme which will support in delivery of a 

balanced budget in later years 

6,347 3,534 1,769 11,650 5,303 

Sub-Total Budget Resilience 6,347  3,534  1,769  11,650  5,303  

Smoothing and Business Risk           

Business Rates Reserve           

Gross Commercial Income 
as proportion of Net Budget  

7.86% 6.97% 6.37% 5.86% 

Gross Commercial Income as proportion of Net Budget – this illustrates the 

proportion of the net budget which is supported by the new commercial income 
streams. 

P
age 162



53 
 

The business rate risk reserve was established to be used to 
offset the risk of significant fluctuations in business rates 
income (which are more significant under the 100% business 

rates retention pilot) and to help smooth income at the point 
of the business rates reset 

6,529 (600) 0 5,929 (600) 

MAG Dividend           

Reserve established in 2017 to hold the surplus dividend 
above our budget assumptions from our investment in 

Manchester Airport Group. Was used to cushion the revenue 
budget against the impact of any downturn in the airport 
dividend. Reserve utilised in 2020/21. Target of £500k per 

annum to start to replenish within MTFS, however resources 
redirected in the short-term to managing overall budget gap. 

0 0 0 0 0 

Insurance Reserve           

Funds earmarked to cover the cost to the Council for future 
insurance claims due to the large excess levels on the 
property insurance policies. It is also utilised to carry out 

various risk management initiatives and to cover the cost of 
historic claims which may fall on the Council (MMI).  

1,700 89 (250) 1,539 (161) 

Employment Rationalisation Reserve           

To cover the cost of rationalising the employment of staff by 
the Council (e.g. redundancy costs) 

1,166 0 (366) 800 (366) 

Housing Benefit Overpayments Reserve           

P
age 163



54 
 

Reserve established to smooth the volatility in the recovery of 
Housing Benefit overpayments. Committed to support the 
2018/19 budget. 

500 0 0 500 0 

Synthetic Pitch Replacement Reserve           

This will be used towards replacing synthetic pitches across 

the Borough 
93 15 0 108 15 

Local Search Litigation Costs Reserve           

Reserve established as a contingency for potential back 

claims regarding changes in local search litigation costs 
93 (15) 0 78 (15) 

Civic Vehicle Replacement           

Replacement of mayoral vehicle 24 0 0 24 0 

Waste Levy Reserve           

To smooth the effects on the Council’s budget of movements 
in the waste levy over the medium term 

571 780 0 1,351 780 

Winter Maintenance Reserve           

To provide emergency funds to cover the costs of highway & 
footway maintenance during periods of adverse weather 
conditions. 

120 0 0 120 0 

Elections Reserve           

To smooth the elections budget across the 4 year Municipal 
cycle. 

308 (45) 0 263 (45) 

Interest Rate Reserve           

P
age 164



55 
 

To smooth the effect on the Council’s budget of volatile 
movements in interest rates and to provide a risk contingency 

on strategic loan advances. 

2,161 406 0 2,567 406 

Exchequer Services Reserve           

Accumulated underspend of unspent grants (ring-fenced for 
activities such as fraud work, ICT systems, Universal Credit) 

237 95 0 332 95 

EU Exit Funding Reserve           

Government funding to be used to enhance capacity and 

capability within local authorities in preparation for EU Exit 
related activities 

300 (51) 0 249 (51) 

Sale PFI Reserve           

Reserve to hold the final bullet payment for Sale PFI Scheme 1,086 146 0 1,232 146 

Admin Building Cyclical Maintenance Reserve           

To provide a reserve sufficient to cover major lifecycle 
maintenance and unexpected costs associated with the 

maintenance and repair of all major administrative sites. 

758 2 0 760 2 

Inflation Risk Reserve           

Inflation Risk Reserve established in 2021/22 to manage and 
smooth the impact of escalating inflation rates and impact 

during financial year. 

0 0 3,000 3,000 3,000 

Sub-Total Smoothing and Business Risk 15,646  822  2,384  18,852  3,206  

Strategic Priority           

Transformation Fund Reserves           

P
age 165



56 
 

Monies allocated from Greater Manchester Health and Social 
Care Partnership for the transforming of health and social 
care services. This money is to be used on the activities that 

were laid out in the Transformation programme and some of 
this money will be allocated to the CCG for their share of 

programme costs. £1.4m has been transferred to new 
Discharge to Assess Reserve in 2021/22. 

4,282  (1,061) (1,400) 1,821 (2,461) 

Strategic Investment Fund Risk Reserve           

Reserve established as a contingency for potential loss of 

income, additional cost due to delays in investment property 
fund 

6,201 108 0 6,309 108 

Leisure Centre Redevelopment Risk Reserve           

Reserve to manage the risk during leisure centre 
refurbishment programme. Particularly loss of income, 

changes in assumptions for demand, inflation. 

1,368 258 0 1,626 258 

Children Action Fund Reserve           

Specific reserve to cover additional expenditure requirements 
in 2019/20 following the 2019 Ofsted inspection. 

138 (69) 0 69 (69) 

Bus Reform           

£1.5m has been set aside for the contribution to Bus Reform 

with a target date of 2022/23. 
1,500 0 0 1,500 0 

P
age 166



57 
 

Major Projects and DSG Academy Transfer Reserve and 

Future Gov 
          

Major Projects can result in abortive costs and the transfer of 
schools with deficits can also result in costs which need to be 

written off and so a small reserve has been created to protect 
against these two write off risks. 

275 0 0 275 0 

Total Strategic Priority 13,764  (764) (1,400) 11,600  (2,164) 

Corporate           

NDR Deficit Reserve           

Reserve established towards meeting Trafford’s share of the 
NDR Deficit. This is a requirement of collection fund 
accounting. 

(4,124) 4,413 0 289 4,413 

STAR Procurement Reserve           

STAR revenue budget under/overspends to be carried 
forward. Commitment to spend is approved by STAR Board 
(Stockport, Trafford, Rochdale and Tameside). Ring-fenced 

reserve for members of STAR 

546 (19) 0 527 (19) 

Planning income reserve           

A reserve established to hold surplus planning income in line 

with Government requirements to reinvest increases in fee 
income towards improvements in planning services. This is a 
ring fenced reserve with specific statutory conditions 

attached to it. 

358 (172) 0 186 (172) 

Council Tax Smoothing           

P
age 167



58 
 

Reserve established to absorb the timing differences in the 
treatment of collection/ distribution Council Tax 

Surplus/deficits 

285 (285) 0 0 (285) 

General Fund Reserve           

This is the reserve that the Council is required to hold to 
protect against in year financial shocks. This was increased 

in 2021/2022 and should be seen as a minimum level given 
the size of our overall revenue budget. 

8,000 0 1,500 9,500 1,500 

Total Corporate 5,065  3,937  1,500  10,502  5,437  

Specific Area Priority           

ICT development           

Reserve established to ensure there are funds available for 
the replacement of equipment such as ICT and to smooth out 
maintenance costs as a result of the Digital Investment 

programme. 

589 670 0 1,259 670 

Economic Development Reserves           

Reserve set aside specifically for economic development 
related projects. Increase in resource in 21/22 relating to 

smoothing of uncertainty in Housing Options Service 
Trafford.  

704 734 0 1,438 734 

Libraries and Customer Services Reserve           

Funds earmarked for ICT upgrades plus additional costs 

associated with the new Altrincham library. 
20 48 0 68 48 

Voluntary Sector Grants Reserve           

Carry forward of prior year spend due to slippage on projects 
- committed on schemes. 

4 24 0 28 24 

Community Safety Reserve           

P
age 168



59 
 

Investment in Community Safety initiatives. 568 (217) 0 351 (217) 

Modernisation           

Hold rolling balance of Modernisation Team budget 

underspend for future commitment 
306 0 0 306 0 

One Trafford Partnership           

Established to hold contractor penalty payments to be 

invested in one-off Partnership schemes.  
1,859 114 0 1,973 114 

Sports Partnership Reserve           

Ring-fenced funding from Sports Partnership to be used on 
specific projects 

165 213 0 378 213 

Service Carry Forward Place 967 47 0 1,014 47 

Service Carry Forward Governance and Community 95 (36) 0 59 (36) 

Service Carry Forward Finance and Systems 1,057 26 (219) 864 (193) 

Service Carry Forward Strategy and Resources 612 112 0 724 112 

Service Carry Forward Children’s Services 111 (83) 0 28 (83) 

Service Carry Forward Adults Services 3,779 1,126 (506) 4,399 620 

Adults Discharge to Assess 0 1,580 1,706 3,286 3,286 

Service Carry Forward People and Traded Services 261 56 0 317 56 

Total Specific Area Priority 11,097  4,414  981  16,492  5,395  

Total Earmarked Reserves (exc COVID) 51,919  11,943  5,234  69,096  17,177  

Other Reserves           

COVID-19 Budget Resilience and Smoothing           
COVID-19 Grant           

P
age 169



60 
 

The grant reserve was established in 2019/20 to hold the 
unspent balance of the first tranche of Government grant 

received in 2019/20 to support local Covid-19 related 
pressures. Will be drawn down to support the 2021/22 and 

2022/23 budgets. £5.234m was transferred to the MTFP 
BRIC Reserve as part of 2022/23 final budget report. 

20,672 (8,341) (5,234) 7,097 (13,575) 

Council Tax Hardship           

Reserve established to hold the balance carried forward for 
Council Tax Hardship award from Government Grant to 

enable an extension of the scheme in 2021/2022.Fully 
utilised in 2021/22. 

1,131 (1,131) 0 0 (1,131) 

Council Tax Compensation Grant Covid (75%)           

The Tax Income Guarantee (TIG) Grant compensated 

councils for 75% of specific losses in Council Tax recovery 
caused by COVID-19. The TIG for Council Tax is £0.767m 

and will be held in this reserve to be drawn down over the 
next three years in line with our medium term budget 
assumptions as agreed in February 2021. 

767 (258) 0 509 (258) 

Business Rates Compensation Grant Covid (75%)           

The Tax Income Guarantee (TIG) Grant compensated 

councils for 75% of specific losses in Business Rates 
recovery caused by COVID-19.  £3.99m and will be held in 

this reserve to be drawn down over the next three years in 
line with our medium term budget assumptions as agreed in 
February 2021. 

3,990 (1,330) 0 2,660 (1,330) 

NDR Rates Exceptional Deficit Reserve (Section 31 
Grants) 

          

Holding reserve for Section 31 Grants compensating for 

Business Rates Relief Deficit caused by COVID Rates 
Reliefs. Will be fully drawn down over two years. 

87,713 (49,842) 0 37,871 (49,842) 

P
age 170



61 
 

Total COVID-19 Budget Resilience and 
Smoothing 

114,273  (60,902) (5,234) 48,137  (66,136) 

Capital Related Reserves           

Consists of capital receipts, grants and contributions which 
can only be used to fund capital expenditure and are all 

allocated to support the current capital programme 

18,993 3,655 0 22,648 3,655 

Balances held by schools under a scheme of delegation       
    

These are balances which belong to individual schools and 
are just held by the Council on their behalf.  

15,167 (931) 0 14,236 (931) 

Rounding - Detailed Table to Summary Table (12)   3  

Total Usable Reserves 200,340  (46,235) 0  154,120  (46,235) 

 

 

P
age 171



T
his page is intentionally left blank



 

  
TRAFFORD COUNCIL 

 

 
Report to:   Executive  
Date:    20 June 2022 

Report for:    Information 
Report of:    Leader 

 
 
 

Report Title 
 

 
Corporate Plan 2021/22 Quarter 4 and Annual Report 
 

 
Summary 

 

 
This report provides a summary of performance against the Council’s 

Corporate Plan, 2021/22.  The Quarter 4 report covers the period 1 January to 
31 March 2022.  The Annual Report covers highlights from April 2021 to March 

2022.   
 

 

Recommendation(s) 
 

 
That the Executive: 
 

(i) Notes the contents of the Corporate Plan Quarter 4 Report and Annual 
Report 

 

   

Contact person for access to background papers and further information: 

 
Name: Dianne Geary/Sarah Haugeberg    

Extension: 1821   
 
 

Background Papers: None 

Page 173

Agenda Item 10



 

Implications: 

 

Relationship to Policy 
Framework/Corporate Priorities 

The Corporate Plan 2021/22 report summarises 
the Council’s performance in relation to the 

Council’s Corporate Priorities  

Relationship to GM Policy or 
Strategy Framework  

The Corporate Plan is aligned to the GM policy 
and strategy where required.  

Financial  None 

Legal Implications: Legal advice is provided in relation to the 

Corporate Plan 2021/22 as and when required. 

Equality/Diversity Implications The Corporate Plan enables the Council to fully 
observe & promote equality of outcomes for 

service users and their families 

Sustainability Implications The Corporate Plan is a key driver for the long-
term sustainability of the council and the borough  

Carbon Reduction The Corporate Plan is a key driver to supporting 
carbon reduction, delivering the Council’s Carbon 

Neutral Action Plan and supporting the growth of 
the green economy. 

Resource Implications e.g., Staffing 

/ ICT / Assets 

No direct impact 

Risk Management Implications   A risk management log has been developed as 
part of the overall governance for the Corporate 

Plan and this will be reviewed and updated on a 
regular basis 

Health & Wellbeing Implications No direct impact 

Health and Safety Implications No direct impact 

 

 
1.0 Background  

 

1.1 The Corporate Plan, ‘Our Trafford, Our Future,’ was refreshed for 2021-2024 
following input from residents, staff and Elected Members. The refreshed 

priorities were approved at Council in November 2021. 
 

1.2 Our Trafford, Our Future describes Trafford Council’s strategic vision, 

outcomes and priorities for the borough, with the priorities being key to its 
delivery. It includes an overview of what the council will do and how we will 

work with our residents, communities, businesses and partners to deliver 
change. 
 

1.3 The refresh sets out the most critical things that we need to do over the 
coming years to recover from COVID-19, deliver public services and 

collaborate with communities, businesses and partners. This plan reflects the 
ambition of Trafford’s leadership and the values and aims of the Council to 
provide a blueprint for improving Trafford. It will shape the activity within the 

council, help prioritise resources and monitor progress made, as well as 
aligning with strategic financial planning.  

 
1.4 It is intended as a guide for our partner organisations to help identify shared 

objectives so we can work together more effectively to achieve far more for 

Trafford than we ever could working alone. 
 

Page 174



 

1.5 The report provides a summary of performance against the Council’s Corporate 

Plan and supporting management information for the refreshed priorities, for the 
period 1 January to 31 March 2022, Quarter 4.  The accompanying materials 

feature a summary of performance focusing on case studies for both quarter 4 
2021/22 and an annual summary.  
 

 
2.0 The Refreshed Plan, ‘Our Trafford, Our Future’ 

 

2.1 The new vision for Trafford is: 
 

Trafford - where all our residents, communities & businesses prosper 
 

2.2 The three key outcomes are:  
 
1. All our residents will have access to quality learning, training and jobs  

2. All our communities will be happy, healthy and safe 
3. All our businesses and town centres will be supported to recover and 

flourish for the benefit of everyone 
 

2.3 The refreshed priorities for 2021-2024 are described as ‘better health, better 

jobs, greener future’ as outlined below: 
 

1. Reducing Health Inequalities 

o Working with people, communities and partners, particularly in 
deprived areas, to improve the physical and mental health of our 

residents. 

2. Supporting people out of poverty 

o Tackling the root causes to prevent people from falling into poverty and 
raising people out of it. 

3. Addressing our Climate Crisis 

o Leading the way in our region’s response, reducing our carbon 
footprint and tackling the impact of climate change. 

 

3.0 Service updates for the priorities  

 
3.1 Reducing Health Inequalities 

 

Throughout the pandemic, we’ve made rapid changes to the ways we support 
residents in their community, their own home, in acute care and across our  
health and social care services. We have a 16-year difference in healthy life 

expectancy and an 8.5-year difference for males and 7.4-year difference for 
females in life expectancy between our most affluent and most deprived areas 

and the pandemic has laid bare these inequalities. Nationally, new inequalities 
have emerged and existing inequalities have intensified. We are responding to 
these changes to reduce these inequalities so all our residents can live long and 

healthy lives. 
 

Below are some of the key deliverables achieved during Quarter 4. 
 
 

Page 175



 

In Quarter 4: 

 No Smoking Day campaign to encourage smokers in Trafford to get free 

support and advice to stop smoking from pharmacies and GPs. An e-cigarette 

scheme is also in place for Trafford smokers looking to quit.  

 Businesswomen Network event - inspirational businesswomen shared their 

stories of success at a special event specifically tailored to local women who 

run a business or who are looking to start one in Trafford. 

 Youth Engagement Service  has passed the Matrix Assessment which is a 

nationally recognised quality mark.  The Service includes Connexions and 

Talkshop and the Street Talk youth work team. 

 Mental Health Consultation review of mental health services for adults in 

Trafford happened to make sure residents receive the right care at the right 

time. 

 Contraception Access where we have been working with GPs to increase 

the number of sites available where women can access long-acting 

contraceptives. 

 
 

3.2 Supporting People Out of Poverty  

 
By providing the necessary skills, opportunities, information and advice we will  

work with partners to give people the choices and power to make best use of  
their income and prevent and reduce poverty. The Trafford Poverty Action Group 
is working in partnership to help coordinate activity and make the borough a 

place where no-one is marginalised or discriminated against due to their financial 
or material circumstances. 

 
In Quarter 4: 

 New Social Housing opened in Timperley which was the first new-build 

socially rented housing in the borough in over ten years, and the first to be built 
from the Trafford Affordable Housing Fund, which was set up to support the 

creation of social housing.  
 The annual homelessness study has shown that Trafford Council’s 

Homelessness Strategy is proving to be a success. The five-year strategy has 

helped hundreds of families from becoming homeless and has taken rough 
sleepers off the streets of Trafford. 

 Several Trafford Poverty Strategy workshops have taken place, focused on 

a range of topics to engage partners in the creation of the Trafford Poverty 

Strategy. 

 19 Civic Commissioners and 15 Community Commissioners were recruited to 
participate in the Trafford Poverty Truth Commission; launch date 10th May 

2022. 
 Trafford’s Welfare Rights Team received 598 contacts and of these contacts, 

296 were referred for specialist welfare rights advise from the team. 
 
 

3.3 Addressing Our Climate Crisis 

 

Being in lockdown showed just how important our local environment, green  
spaces and parks are for our physical health, our mental health and wellbeing.  
The Trafford Climate Change and Clean Air Commission is working in 

partnership to enable more residents to be environmentally responsible in their 
Page 176



 

daily lives and encouraging our workforce and partners to adopt more measures 

which will reduce our impact on the environment and help towards our carbon 
reduction targets. 

 
In Quarter 4: 
 Planting new trees in Trafford to tackle climate crisis is taking place at 

playing fields adjacent to Lostock Park in Stretford and at Grove Park in 
Altrincham as part of year 2 of the 5-year programme, following on from 

schemes in Stretford, Sale and Urmston. 
 New fleet of Electric Vehicles introduced by the One Trafford Partnership 

and Trafford Council, saving nearly 21 tonnes of carbon per year. 
 National Recycling Award for Best Small Campaign of the Year was won 

by the One Trafford Partnership for the Paper Blues campaign, to encourage 

residents to improve their paper recycling. 
 A Government grant was given to Merry House care home to help keep its 

residents warm and to make it more energy efficient, work will include a new 
heating system, new radiators and the installation of new windows.  

 Continuation of decarbonisation schemes work worth £3.8m across our 

public estate. 
 

 
3.4 Other highlights from Council Services 

 

 Design Code Pathfinder Programme in which the Council was awarded 

£160,000 by the government as part of a new design codes programme 

allowing communities to have their say in the development of homes and 
neighbourhoods. 

 Stretford Town Centre Transformation Masterplan received planning 

permission to commence the ambitious town centre regeneration project in 

Stretford. 
 Inclusive Neighbourhood Grants scheme opened to groups looking to put 

on an event or deliver a special project in their community.  Grants are 

available for up to £500 for events and up to £2,000 for projects. 
 COVID-19 Additional Relief Fund (CARF) scheme launched to help 

businesses badly affected by the Covid pandemic. 
 

 
4.0 Performance Update  

 

4.1 Each strategic priority has a number of key performance indicators (KPIs).  The 
table in Appendix 1 provides a summary of the indicators and information 

regarding current performance.  For many of the indicators the data is only 
updated annually, so a full performance report is not possible every quarter.  
Where new annual data has been published this is highlighted in the comment’s 

column.  
 

4.2 A red-amber-green (RAG) direction of travel rating is provided to give an 
indication of whether performance is improving or declining based on the target. 
Indicators with arrows highlighted green: improved on the previous value or on an 

expected target.  Indicators with arrows highlighted amber: within 5% of the 
target (slight decline). Indicators with arrows highlighted red: declined by more 
than 5% on the target. Some indicators do not have a target (for example, due to 

being a new indicator) and will therefore have no target RAG rating. Similarly, 

Page 177



 

some of our indicators are new and we do not have any previous data to 

compare our performance to or it is not appropriate to compare to previous data; 
these will have no direction of travel RAG rating in the summary pages. 

 
4.3 Performance has continued to deal with the ongoing effects of Covid-19. For 

some indicators benchmarking or comparisons with the previous year is difficult.  

For some indicators factors outside of Trafford’s control will be impacting on 
current performance. For example, the ongoing impact from the rising cost of 

living cannot be directly influenced by organisations in Trafford and this will 
impact on measures such as the reduction in fuel poverty. However, we can work 
together locally to support residents who are experiencing poverty.  

 
4.4 Some Council Service metrics are also included in the report as although they 

are not included in the priorities, they provide a performance update for a range 
of services the Council provides.  These start on page 23 in the performance 
tables.  

 
4.5 The Corporate Plan report highlights a case study and key data related to that 

priority. The case studies highlight some of the important work that is happening 
across the Council that support the objectives of the priority. They capture the 
resident’s voice, encourage and inspire others and demonstrate the impact of our 

services.  
 

4.6 For Quarter 4, the three case studies are included in the report. The first on 
Reducing Health Inequalities is support for disadvantaged communities through a 
new Family Wellbeing Programme focusing on support around physical activity, 

diet and mental wellbeing for the whole family, with 46 families referred to the 
programme. The second on Supporting People out of Poverty highlights a new 

state-of-the-art social housing development completed in Bowker Court, 
Timperley providing 30 one and two bed flats which are triple glazed and 
powered by electricity. The third on Addressing our Climate Crisis is on speeding 

up the roll out of electric vehicle charging points by installing 150 points across 
the borough to make it quicker and easier to keep electric vehicles running. 

 
 
5.0 Dashboard 

 
5.1 A dashboard of the three corporate priorities measures has been prepared and 

can be accessed on the Trafford Data Lab website: 
https://trafforddatalab.shinyapps.io/corporate-plan/.    

 

5.2 The dashboard visualises a range of indicators relating to each of the three 
strategic priorities. These show trend data for Trafford compared to the average 

of other similar Local Authorities (in terms of statistical characteristics) and, 
where possible, to England. The list of similar authorities used can be found in 
the Introduction tab on the dashboard. Some indicators also include different 

visualisations with the data broken down by, for example, ward or sex to highlight 
inequalities within the borough. 

 
5.3 The visualisations are interactive, displaying the values of the data presented. 

The type of visualisation can be selected using the relevant tabs below them. 

Further information is also provided below each indicator, including links to 
download the data used in the visualisation(s) and to the original source of the 

data. 
Page 178

https://trafforddatalab.shinyapps.io/corporate-plan/


 
 

 
 
Finance Officer Clearance GB 

 
Legal Officer Clearance DS 

 
 

 
 
DEPUTY CHIEF EXECUTIVE & CORPORATE DIRECTOR STRATEGY & RESOURCES 
SIGNATURE: Sara Saleh 

 

   
    

To confirm that the Financial and Legal Implications have been considered and the Executive 
Member has cleared the report.

Page 179



 

Appendix 1: Performance Table    

 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

 I
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti
e

s
 

Definition Frequency 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target for 

21/22 

Q2 
21/22 

actual 

Q3 
21/22 

actual 

Q4 
21/22 

Actual 

Direction 
of travel 

Comments 

Narrow the gap in 

the % of children 
who are classified 

as obese 

(including 
severely obese) in 

Reception and 

Year 6 between 
the most and least 
deprived quintiles. 

Annual 
 

(2014/15 - 
2018/19) 

 

Reception 
 

Most 

deprived 
quintile 

12.0 

 
Second 

most 

deprived 
quintile 

9.6 

 
Year 6 

 

Most 
deprived 
quintile 

23.8 
 

Second 

most 
deprived 
quintile 

21.5 
 

(2015/16 - 
2019/20) 

 

Reception 
 

Most 

deprived 
quintile 

11.6 

 
Second 

most 

deprived 
quintile 

8.8 

 
Year 6 

 

Most 
deprived 
quintile 

24.6 
 

Second 

most 
deprived 
quintile 

21.9 
 

Data not 
yet 

available. 
 

Last 

updated in 
June 2021; 

expect 

20/21 
update in 
summer 

2022.  

Maintain 
lower 

percentage 

compared 
to England 
average. 

 
Maintain 

our position 

in 
comparison 

with 

statistical 
neighbours 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

Reception 

Most 
deprived 
quintile 



Second 
most 

deprived 

quintile 

 
 

Year 6 
Most 

deprived 

quintile 

 
Second 

most 
deprived 
quintile 

 

 
 
Data is available by quintiles 

– target to reduce the gap 
between the most deprived 
quintile and least deprived 

quintile by 20% per year 
(whilst ensuring there is not 
an overall increase).  

 
Target to apply to both 
Reception and Year 6. 

 
Given the impact of the 
pandemic, we hope to have 

maintained our position 
compared to our statistical 
neighbours, though we are in 

the top 20 highest cumulative 
covid areas. 

 
 

P
age 180



 
R

e
d

u
c
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

 I
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti
e

s
 

Definition Frequency 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target for 

21/22 

Q2 
21/22 

actual 

Q3 21/22 

actual 

Q4 21/22 

Actual 

Direction 

of travel 
Comments 

Narrow the 

deprivation gap 
for adults who are 

classified as 

overweight or 
obese 

Annual 

 

60.0 
 

 

59.3 
 

60.7 

Maintain 
direction of 

travel 
(reduction).  

 

Percentage 
reduction 
for 21/22 to 

be greater 
than 3% 
(7.3% from 

18/19 to 
19/20) 
 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 



 
 

 

Trafford is already lowest of 

its statistical neighbours. This 
data is not available at Ward 

level. Maintain lower 

percentage compared to 
England average.  

 

*NEW The percentage of 
adults classified as 

overweight or obese has 

increased by 1.4 percent from 
19/20 to 20/21 

Increase the 

percentage of 
adults who are 

active 

Annual  69 68.1 68.2 

Maintain 
the gap 
between 

deciles 1 
and 10 by 
Nov 2021 

 
 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
 

*New data for 20/21 now 

released in Q4. The 
percentage of adults who are 
active during 20/21 has being 

maintained from 19/20 
To move into the top 2 of our 
statistical neighbours (we are 

currently 5th highest). 
This is deteriorating and we 

are waiting for the next 

published data to see the 
impact of Covid on adults 

who are active. This is 

reflected in the National 
picture too. 

 

Improve the % of 
children who are 

active 
Annual 47.5 37.7 43.1 

To maintain 
our position 

in 
comparison 

with our 
statistical 

neighbours 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

 
 

To maintain our position in 
comparison with our 

statistical neighbours (we are 
currently 7th highest) 

P
age 181



 

 
 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

 I
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti
e

s
 

Definition Frequency 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target for 

21/22 

Q2 
21/22 

actual 

Q3 21/22 

actual 

Q4 21/22 

Actual 

Direction 

of travel 
Comments 

Reduce the under 

75 mortality rate 
from causes 
considered 

preventable (per 
100,000 

population) 

Annual 
133.9 
(2018) 

144.2 
(2019) 

131.0 
(2020) 

To maintain 

our position 
in 

comparison 

with our 
statistical 
neighbours 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
 

Target to maintain our position 
in comparison with our 

statistical neighbours is due to 

the ongoing impact of covid 
also seen at a national level. 

 

Improve the 
healthy life 

expectancy at 

birth (by 
deprivation and 

gender) 

Annual 

(2016 – 

18) 
Female 

66.0 

 
Male 
66.0 

(2017 – 

19) 
Female 

65 

 
Male 
65.6 

(2018 – 20) 
Female 

66.9 
 

Male 

66.3 

To move 

into the top 
2 of our 

statistical 

neighbours 
for males 
and top 3 

for females 
 
 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

Female 



Male 

 

*New data for 2020/21 now 

released in Q4. The healthy 
life expectancy has increased 

by almost two years for 

females and 0.7 years for 
males from 2017 – 19 to 2018 

– 2020  

 
Target is to move into the top 2 
of our statistical neighbours for 

males and top 3 for females.  
 
 

Improve the 
inequality in life 
expectancy at 

birth. (The slope 

index of inequality) 

Annual 

(2016 – 

18) 
Female 

7.4 
 

Male 
9.3 

(2017 – 

19) 
Female 

7.9 
 

Male 
8.8 

(2018 – 20) 
Female 

7.4 
 

Male 
8.5 

To maintain 

our position 
in 

comparison 
with our 

statistical 
neighbours  

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

Female 



Male 

 

 
We are currently 8th highest 

for females and 9th highest for 
males 

 

Reduce the 

proportion of five-
year-old children 

with experience of 

visually obvious 
dental decay 

Bi-Annual  26.0  

Last 
updated in 

Nov 2020; 
expect 
20/21 

update in 
Winter 
2022. 

To join the 
lowest 

three of our 
statistical 
neighbours 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
n/a 

This data is not available at 

Ward level. There is clear and 
consistent evidence for a 

social gradient in the 

prevalence of dental decay in 
England.  

P
age 182



 

To become the lowest of our 
statistical neighbours (we are 

currently 5th lowest) 

 

R
e

d
u

c
in

g
 H

e
a

lt
h

 I
n

e
q

u
a

li
ti
e

s
 

Definition Frequency 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target for 

21/22 

Q2 

21/22 
actual 

Q3 21/22 
actual 

Q4 21/22 
Actual 

Direction 
of travel

Comments 

Reduce the 
depression 

(recorded 
prevalence age 

18+) 

Annual 13.9 14.8 15.4 

To halt the 
increase in 
depression 

prevalence 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
 

To move into the bottom half of 

our statistical neighbours (we 
are currently 3rd highest) 

Reduce smoking 
in routine/manual 

(R&M) workers vs 
general population 

(inequality in 

smoking rates) 

Annual  
 

R&M 
26.4% 

(2018) 

R&M 

17.4% 
(2019) 

 

Gen. 
pop. 

13.4% 

R&M 
20.3% 

(2020) 
 

Gen. pop.  

12.9% 

5% 

reduction in 
the 

difference 

between 
routine/man
ual worker 

smoking 
rates and 
general 

population 
smoking 

rates 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
 

A change in data collection 

affects the data for 2020 
meaning the confidence limits 

will be wider for the 2020 

figure. 
Target for a 5% reduction in 

the difference between 

routine/manual worker 
smoking rates and general 
population smoking rates 

 

 
 

 
 
 

  

P
age 183



 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
u

t 
o

f 
p

o
v
e

rt
y

 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 

Q1 
21/22 

Actual 

Q2 21/22 

Actual 

Q3 21/22 

Actual 

Q4 21/22 

Actual 

Direction 

of travel 
Comments 

Percentage 

receiving 
Universal Credit 

(UC) and the 

Claimant Count 
(CC) 

2.3% 
(CC) 
5.1% 

(UC) 

2.5% 
(CC) 
6.4% 

(UC) 

5.3% 
(CC) 

11.8% 

(UC) 

NA 

4.5% 
(CC) 

11.5% 

(UC) 

4%  
(CC) 

11.0% 

(UC) 

 

3.5% 
(CC) 

10.5% 

(UC) 
 

3.4% 
(CC) 

10.3% 

(UC) 

NA 

No target can be set for this 

indicator as in some instances 
an increase could represent less 
people experiencing poverty as 

they are being supported to 
access the right benefits.  

Number of people 
prevented from 

becoming 
homeless 

416 444 303 NA 55 

 

 
51 

(year to 

date 106) 

 

 
76  

(year to 

date 182) 

 

 
128 

(year to 

date 310) 

NA 

There has been a significant 
increase in the number of 

homeless applications received 
during Q4 when compared to 
the previous quarters. This 

increased the number of people 
who required assistance and 

therefore the staff were able to 

prevent more people from 
becoming homeless. 310 total 

for the year is slightly above the 

end of year figure of 303 for the 
previous year.  

Improve the 
number of 

affordable housing 

completions 

82 69 79 100 14 

16 

(year to 
date 30) 

37  

(year to 
date 67) 

11  

(year to 
date 78) 

 

A number of affordable units 
have completed within Q4 

including the scheme in Heath 
Farm in Partington.  78 total for 
the year against a target of 100. 

Added SV as a % 

of contract value 
(activity above the 

value of £50K) 

 
2019/20 
30.5% 

2020/21 
67.10% 

25% per 
annum 

 52% 35.9% 
Not yet 
available 

NA 

These figures are cumulative so 

show progressive improvement 
year on year for Trafford.  

Trafford in 20/21 spike at 67.1% 

as there were a couple of large 
contracts that delivered 

considerable added social value. 

P
age 184



 

Improve number 

of housing 
completions 

953 788 1301 450 132 

137 

(year to 
date 269) 

215  

(year to 
date 484) 

62  

(year to 
date 546) 

 

Although the number in Q4 is 
lower than previous quarters 
the annual target of 450 was 
exceeded with a total of 546 
housing completions for the 
year. There are several big 
developments that will 
complete in 22/23. 

 9 units completed at 
Crossford Court 
development in Sale.  
This site is still under 
development and will 
provide a total of 51 units 
once fully complete.  
 

 29 units completed at 
Heath Farm in Partington, 
11 of which were 
affordable housing. This 
site is still under 
development and will 
provide a total of 148 units 
once fully complete. 

 

 11 units completed on the 
Carrington Village 
development. This site is 
still under development 
and will provide a total of 
277 units once fully 
complete. 

 
 

 

P
age 185



 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
u

t 
o

f 
p

o
v
e

rt
y

 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 

Q1 
21/22 

Actual 

Q2 21/22 

Actual 

Q3 21/22 

Actual 

Q4 21/22 

Actual 

Direction 

of travel
Comments 

Improve the 

number of people 
being re-housed 
(from Trafford’s 

housing waiting 
list) 

229 301 119 400 122 

 
 

85  
(year to 

date 207) 

 
 

97  
(year to 

date 304) 

 
 

142 
(year to 

date 446) 



The Council was offered more 

properties in Q4 from housing 
associations which enabled 

more people to be re-housed 

from the register. The target of 
400 was exceeded by 46. 

Reduction in % of 
children in poverty 

 

12.4% 
 

12.0% 11.4% 

Ongoing 
work to 

determine 
target 

 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

 
No 

quarterly 
data 

NA 

There was a slight decrease in 
the percentage of children in 

poverty and Trafford compares 
similar to statistical neighbours 

average of 12%.  

Maintain the low 
level of 16–17-

year-olds who are 
not in education 

training or 

employment 
(NEET) 

 

2.3% 

(Dec-Feb 
average) 

1.8% 
(Dec-
Feb 

average 

2.3% 

(Dec-Feb 
average) 

1.96% 

 

2.36% 
 

2.35% 1.65% 1.78%  

The very positive figures are the 

result of improved tracking of 
this cohort of young people by 
using the Youth Engagement 

Service. We have gained 
funding via the latest Education 

and Skills Fund for NEET 

contracts which will help 
continue to offer an enhanced 

level of support to NEET and ‘at 

risk of’ NEET young people in 
Trafford. 

Improve the 

percentage of 
primary school 

children achieving 

the expected 
standard in 

reading, writing 

and maths. (KS2) 

77% 
Not 

availabl
e 

Not 

available  

Ongoing 

work to 
determine 

target 

 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

 
No 

quarterly 
data 

 

NA 

Due to no data being available 
for the past two year due to 

Covid disruptions it will not be 
possible to set a target at this 

time. ‘Levelling Up’ White Paper 

mission is 90% of children will 
achieve the expected standard 

by 2030.  

 
 
 

 
 

P
age 186



 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
u

t 
o

f 
p

o
v
e

rt
y

 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 

Q1 

21/22 
Actual 

Q2 21/22 
Actual 

Q3 21/22 
Actual 

Q4 21/22 
Actual 

Direction 
of travel

Comments 

Percentage take 
up of funded 

childcare and 

early education 
places for two-

year-olds 

90% 100% 88% 
 

88% 
 

No data 
available 

No data 
available 

No data 
available  

Spring 
Term 

 
106% 

 

Two-year old uptake has 

increased at borough level. 
Trafford is ranked 2nd nationally 

demonstrating high take up 

particularly with children coming 
from out of area to take up an 

early education place (which is 

why this figure is above 100%). 

Increase the 
percentage take 

up of funded 
childcare and 

early education 

places for 2-year-
olds in North 

Trafford 

 
 
 

 
 

NA NA 

68% 
(Rolling 3 

term 
average in 

2021 
covering 
Autumn 

2020, Spring 
2021, 

Summer 
2021)  

To reduce 
the gap 
between 
take up in 

North 
Trafford 
and the 

rest of the 
Borough 

by 15ppts 

No data 
available 

No data 
available 

No data 
available 

69% 
 

30 ppts 
gap 



 
The average take up rate in the 

other neighbourhoods in 

Trafford has increased (South, 
Central and West) to 99% for 
Spring 2022. Take up in the 

North for this term is 69% with a 
gap between the rest of Trafford 
and that of the North of Trafford 

at 30% percentage points for the 
term. Partnership work with 

Family Information Service, the 

Early Years Service, Health 
Visiting Service is underway to 

explore and collate evidence 

why take up is lower in this area 
of the Borough in order to 

develop appropriate actions 

moving forward. 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 187



 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
u

t 
o

f 
p

o
v
e

rt
y

 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 

Q1 

21/22 
Actual 

Q2 21/22 
Actual 

Q3 21/22 
Actual 

Q4 21/22 
Actual 

Direction 
of travel

Comments 

Increase the 

percentage of 
children at or 

above the 

expected level of 
development at 2 -

2.5 Years 

NA NA NA 
83% 

(England 

average) 

No data 
available 

No data 
available 

No data 
available 

86% 
2021-22 

Quarter 3 data October-

December has been analysed 
with 86% of children in receipt of 

the 2 Year Developmental 

Review at or above the 
expected level of development. 

Reduce % of 
households fuel 

poverty levels 

10.4% 
(2018) 

12.8% 
(2019) 

12.3% 
(2020) 

12.1% 

 
No 

quarterly 
data 

 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
 

 

*New data for 2020 just 
released in Q4- In 2020, 12.3% 
of households in Trafford were 

fuel poor. This masks 
considerable variation between 
small areas within Trafford. In 

Clifford ward, some 19.2% of 
households were living in fuel 

poverty. 

2019 and 2020 fuel poverty 
statistics are based on the new 

Low Income Low Energy 

Efficiency (LILEE) metric as 
opposed to the Low Income 
High Costs (LIHC) metric. 

Additional fuel poor households 
were identified by the LILEE 

metric. 

 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 
 

P
age 188

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/966517/Fuel_Poverty_Factsheet_2019_data.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/966517/Fuel_Poverty_Factsheet_2019_data.pdf


 
S

u
p

p
o

rt
in

g
 p

e
o

p
le

 o
u

t 
o

f 
p

o
v
e

rt
y

 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 

Q1 
21/22 

Actual 

Q2 21/22 

Actual 

Q3 21/22 

Actual 

Q4 21/22 

Actual 

Direction 

of travel
Comments 

Improve overall 

employment rate 
(aged 16-64) (%) 

77% 79.8% 76.5% 77% 76.2% 76% 76.3% 
Not yet 

published  

20/21 showed a considerable 

decrease compared to 19/20 
largely due to the impact of 

Covid. Quarterly figures 

(representing the 12 months up 
to the end of the quarter) have 
slipped slightly below this level 

and are still below target. 
 

Improve 

employees paid 
at/above the real 

living wage 

77.4% 77.1% 80.7% 83% 
No 

quarterly 
data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

 
No 

quarterly 
data 

 

NA 

We are progressing towards 
RLW Accreditation as a Council 

and engaging with our suppliers 
alongside considering the 

financial impact of this ambition. 

Though the increase is positive, 
Trafford is still 3.2% below the 
mean of statistical neighbours. 

 

P
age 189



 

 

A
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

c
li
m

a
te

 c
ri

s
is

 

 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 

Q1 
21/22 

Actual 

Q2 21/22 
Actual 

Q3 21/22 
Actual 

Q4 21/22 
Actual 

Direction 
of travel 

Comments 

Percentage of 
household waste 

which is collected 
for recycling 

57.3% 56.9% 53.3% 54.6% 57.60% 57.70% 56.3% 55.5%  

The recycling rate is 0.9% above 
the target forecasted to GMCA. 

for the year, and 2.2% higher 
than in 2020/21. 

Recycling has dropped slightly 

in Q4, due to the annual trend of 
decreasing green waste during 

the autumn and winter. 

The changes in Covid guidelines 
and home working practices 
made accurate forecasting 

difficult, and we have seen some 
variances against the original 

tonnage predictions, particularly 

in household and co-mingled 
waste tonnages. 

The recycling rate is yet to be 

confirmed upon WasteDataFlow 
entry and we anticipate a one-off 

increase in recycling due to a 

clearance of stock balances held 
by GMCA. 

Household waste 
collected not sent 

for recycling 

(Tonnes) 

25,525 26,399 31,109 28,861 
7,504 
(-14%) 

14,856 
(-7%) 

22,159 
(-5%) 

29,523 
(-5%)  

Although the total tonnage of 
household waste collected in 

2021/22 was 5% below the 
tonnage collected in 2020/21, it 
was 2% (660 tonnes) above 

forecast levels.  
The forecast tonnages were 
submitted to GMCA in 

November 2020, and it was very 
difficult to forecast tonnages 
during the pandemic. 

P
age 190



 

The tonnage of collected in Q4 
was only 74 tonnes (1%) above 
forecast levels. 

The One Trafford Partnership is 
monitoring the continuing impact 

of the pandemic on the waste 

we collect and is working to 
develop action plans to increase 
the volumes of waste recycled 

and decrease residual waste.  

Reduce borough 
wide CO2 
emissions 

(Kilotonnes) 

1,507.0 
(2018) 

1,467.6 
(2019) 

Not yet 
published 

1,271.0 
No 

quarterly 
data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
NA 

No data has been published 

since 2019. Awaiting next 
publication of data.  

Corporate CO2 

emissions 
(tonnes) 

17,433 17,134 15,205 11,087 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 


*New data for 20/21. This figure 
includes emissions reported 
under scope 1 (direct emissions- 

fossil fuels burned directly by the 
Council), scope 2 (indirect 
emissions- imported electricity), 

and scope 3 (other indirect 
emissions from products and 
services). 

 

 
 
 

A
d

d
re

s
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

c
li
m

a
te

 

c
ri

s
is

 

Definition Frequency 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 

Q1 

21/22 
actual 

Q2 21/22 
actual 

Q3 21/22 
Actual 

Direction of 
travel 

Comments Comments 

Improve 
proportion of 

Energy 
Performance 

Certificates (EPC) 

registered to 
Trafford 

addresses that 

are A, B or C 

Annual 
31.2% 
(2010-

2019) 

32.0% 
(2011-

2020) 

33.4% 
(2012-

2021) 

36.2% 
No 

quarterly 
data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
 

The Committee on Climate Crisis 

states that all homes will need to 
be EPC C or above to reach Net 

Zero. 

P
age 191



 

Reduce vehicle 

miles travelled on 
roads in Trafford 

(millions) 

Annual 
1,034.4 
(2018) 

1,084.7 
(2019) 

886.6 
(2020) 

Ongoing 
work to 

determine 

target 
 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
NA 

Decrease in 20/21 largely due to 
the impact of covid, lockdowns 

and remote working. 

Reduce number 
of licenced 

vehicles with 
Trafford 

addresses 

Annual 
130,076 
(2018) 

131,133 
(2019) 

129,116 
(2020) 

Ongoing 
work to 

determine 

target 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
NA 

This is less compared to similar 
statistical neighbours (202,502) 

Increase 
percentage of 

licenced Ultra 
Low Emission 
Vehicles with 

Trafford 
addresses 
[Number 

registered at year 
end] 

Annual 
0.37% 
[476] 
(2018) 

0.52% 
[684] 
(2019) 

0.81% 
[1,042] 
(2020) 

3.73% 

 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
 

Targets for Proportion of licenced 

Ultra Low Emission Vehicles and 
Proportion of Energy Performance 
Certificates are based on a linear 

reduction rate from current levels 
to 100% by 2038. To reach Net 
Zero, all vehicles – including 

heavy-goods vehicles (HGVs) – 
must be fossil fuel free.  
 

 

Increase number 
of electric 

charging points 

per 100,000 
population 
(Absolute) 

Annual 

(April) 

 
21.6 (51) 

(2020) 

 
19 (45) 
(2021) 

 
24.4 (58) 

(2022) 
92 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 
 

*New data - The data reflects 
devices which report as 
operational at the end of each 

quarter. Between July 2021 and 
January 2022 Trafford’s rate, 
although much lower, was 

increasing at a faster rate than its 
comparators. However the rate 
has fallen again in the last quarter 

to 24.4 devices per 100K 
compared with 42.3 for the 
average of similar LAs and 45.8 

for England.  The Council has 
agreed in the phase one of the 
plan to install 92 new charging 

points across the borough in the 
first three months of next year.  
 

 

 

P
age 192



 
A

d
d

re
s
s
in

g
 o

u
r 

c
li
m

a
te

 c
ri

s
is

 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 

Q1 
21/22 

Actual 

Q2 21/22 

Actual 

Q3 21/22 

Actual 

Q4 21/22 

Actual 

Direction 

of travel 
Comments 

Reduction in 

annual mean 
concentration of 

particulate matter 

(PM10) µg/m3  
(MP = Moss Park, 

A56 = A56 

Chester Road) 
 

MP:14.5 

A56:16.8 
(2019) 

MP:13.1 
A56:14.

1 

(2020) 

MP:13.2 

A56:14.4 
(2021) 

MP: 13.1 
A56:14.1 

No data 
available 

No data 
available 

No data 
available 

 

 
 

MP: 21.5 

A56: 20.1  

The annual mean is reported from 
01 January to 31 December. The 

Q4 figure is the quarterly mean 
from 01 January to 31 March. 
After a reduction in 2020 there 

has been a slight increase in 
2021. The Q4 figures indicate a 
further sizable increase for 2022. 

Reduction in 
annual mean 

concentration of 
nitrogen dioxide 

(NO2) µg/m3 

(MP = Moss Park, 
A56 = A56 

Chester Road, 

WA = Wellacre) 

MP:19 

A56:30 
WA:15.5 

(2019) 

MP:14 

A56:21 
WA:11.4 

(2020) 

MP:15 

A56:23.1 
WA:13.3 
(2021) 

MP: 14 
A56: 21 

WA: 11.4 

No data 
available 

No data 
available 

No data 
available 

MP: 18.5 
A56: 22.5 

WA: 14.7 
 

The annual mean is reported from 
01 January to 31 December. The 

Q4 figure is the quarterly mean 
from 01 January to 31 March. 
After a reduction in 2020 there 

has been an increase in 2021 but 
still below pre-Covid levels. 

However, the Q4 data is 

indicating a return to 2019 levels 
with the exception of the A56 

readings. 

 

Increase 
proportion of 

adults who do any 

walking or cycling, 
for any purpose, 

five times per 

week 

33.5 

 

34.5 
 

No data 

available 
 

36.1 
No 

quarterly 
data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data 

No 
quarterly 

data
NA 

Trafford rate of 34.5% is similar to 
statistical neighbour’s average of 
34.2%.  Stockport performs the 

best in GM at 36.1.  

Increase of the 

number of school 
streets in the 

borough 

0 0 0 8 
No data 
available 

No data 
available 

No data 
available 0 NA 

5 school streets have agreed 
funding from TfGM and 3 are in 

process of being established 

using local resources. Delivery is 
planned for Q1 of 22/23. 

 

 
 

P
age 193



 

Improve number 
of staff trained in 

carbon literacy 

NA NA 20 165 
No data 
available 

No data 
available 75 

 
 

11 

(year to 
date 86) 

 

Of the 86 staff trained 46 are 
certified as Carbon Literate. 
Carbon Literacy training for 

Council leaders and senior 
managers (as well as those from 

key strategic partner 

organisations) was commissioned 
for around 125 people (based on 

the actual numbers of staff in 

these groups). Uptake of this 
training was lower than expected, 

given that the training was 

mandated for this group of staff, 
with a number of training slots 
being unused. For generic staff 

training, a focus for this year has 
been on training additional 

trainers in order to build capacity 

to roll the training out across the 
organisation in 2022-23. 

 
 

 
  

P
age 194



 

Council Service Performance Table: 
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 
Q1 21/22 
Actual 

Q2 
21/22 

Actual 

Q3 21/22 
Actual 

Q4 21/22 
Actual 

Direction 
of travel 

Comments 

Libraries loans 

(physical) 
522,977 518,820 104,389 310,000 59,528 

98,659  
(year to 

date 
158,187) 

93,495 
(year to 

date 
251,682) 

101,391 
(year to 

date 
353,073) 

 

It has been a challenging period 
as libraries were only open for 

click and collect for 3 months of 
last year. However, it’s 
encouraging that customers are 

starting to use libraries again and 
the number of physical books 
borrowed is increasing beyond 

initial expectations, but not yet at 
pre-pandemic levels.  Over 
353,073 books were borrowed for 

the year so the annual target was 
exceeded. 

Libraries loans 
(digital) 

80,219 160,718 311,710 250,000 72,134 

 
62,660 

(year to 
date 

134,794) 

 
67,362 

(year to 
date 

202,156) 

 
70,204 

(year to 
date 

272,360) 

 

It is interesting that digital book 
borrowing is still quite high, 

although not at the levels of 20/21 
when libraries were closed for 
long periods. Even with the 

number of physical books being 
borrowed increasing, e-books are 
still higher than pre-pandemic. 

Over 272,360 e-books were loans 
so the annual target was 
exceeded. 

Shifting 
enquiries to 

online self-
service (reduce 

call volume) 

22,686 36,406 45,922 47,000 14,446 

16,509 
(year to 

date 

30,955) 

14,170 
(year to 

date 

45,125) 

16,074 
(year to 

date 

61,199) 

 

There was an increase in Q4 and 

the whole year total is a 
significant increase on previous 
years.  A total of 61,199 for the 

year compared to 45,922 in the 
previous year.  

P
age 195



 

Timeliness of 
FOI requests 

84% 83.40% 67.10% 95% 74% 62% 55% 63%  

The IG Team has undertaken 
work to help address service 
teams that are failing to meet 

timescale requirements and plans 
have been drawn together with 
corporate directors to improve 

performance. 

 
 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target for 

21/22 

Q1 21/22 

Actual 

Q2 
21/22 

Actual 

Q3 
21/22 

Actual 

Q4 21/22 

Actual 

Direction 

of travel 
Comments 

Improve 

residents' digital 
access via 

device lending 

scheme 

NA NA NA 400 110 

117 
(year to 

date 
227) 

109 
(year to 

date 
336) 

199 
(year to 

date 535) 
 

Nearly double the previous 
quarter, this could be due to 
promotional leaflet included in 

Council Tax mailing. Reflects a 
greater need/demand for the 
scheme now word has spread 

more widely to those who might 
be digitally excluded. Highest 
proportion of loans is in M16 

postcodes. 535 for the year 
exceeding the target of 400. 
 

Percentage of 

council tax 
collected 

98.10% 97.80% 97.20% 97% 29.50% 57.09% 84.87% 97.5%  

We continue to recover high 

levels of council tax and early 
signs are showing that we are 
beginning to return to pre-Covid 

collection rates. 
 

Percentage of 
major planning 

applications 
processed 

within 

timescales 

100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100% 100%  

Performance continues to 
remain exceptional. Total 

number decided within the year 
35 and 13 within the quarter. 
 

P
age 196



 

More adopted 
streets and 

paths scored at 

grade B or 
higher (road 
cleanliness) 

83.3% 88% 93.80% 88% 98.50% 96.60% 97.4% 96.6%  

Cleanliness scores continued to 
be well above target. There was 
a slight decline in performance 

in Q4, as mop up from the leaf 
clearance programme in Q3 ran 
into January, with teams 

clearing approximately 1,300 
tonnes of leaves. 
 

 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 

Target 

for 
21/22 

Q1 

21/22 
Actual 

Q2 21/22 
Actual 

Q3 

21/22 
Actual 

Q4 21/22 
Actual 

Directio

n of 
travel 

Comments 

Maintain 

Percentage of 
Highway defects 

rectified in 

accordance with 
the ‘Reactive 
Maintenance 

Procedure’ 
timescales 

93.5% 92.9% 98.7% 95% 98.75% 98.53% 97.88% 97.9%  

Performance is significantly above 

the annual target. The Q4 score 
has remained at the same level 
as Q3, despite a slight decrease 

in the number of repairs being 
completed within SLA timescales 
in January. This was due to 

increased absence in the 
Highways service area, caused by 
Covid-related sickness and 

isolations. 
 

Improve the 
number of 

apprenticeships 

in the Council 

 274 71 

117 (56 
Council, 

61 

Schools). 
Quarterly 

target 

29.5 

17 
starts 

12 starts 

(year to 
date 28) 

24 starts 

(year to 
date 53) 

7 starts 

(year to date 
60) 



We achieved 50 out of the target 
of 56 apprenticeship starts for the 

Council during the year 21/22. We 
however only managed 10 out of 
61 for schools.  
An apprenticeship paper is being 

prepared for corporate leadership 
which includes an apprenticeship 
first approach to all vacancies 

band 3 and below. In terms of 
increasing the school 
apprenticeship starts we will 

continue to proactively work with 

P
age 197



 

schools and review what other 
LA’s are achieving and what 
strategies they are deploying to 

encourage take up. 
 

 
 

 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 
Q1 21/22 
Actual 

Q2 

21/22 
Actual 

Q3 21/22 
Actual 

Q4 21/22 
Actual 

Directio

n of 
travel 

Comments 

Reduce sickness 
absence from 
previous year 

 3.85% 3.56% 3.83% 4.01% 4.68% 5.89% 5.14%  

Normal season variations tend to 

follow this pattern of sickness 
increasing over the autumn and 
winter quarters. These 

seasonable increases have been 
further impacted by the COVID-19 
absence and also other 

respiratory infections which may 
be affecting people more, further 
to a long period without exposure. 

Also, the legacy of the pandemic 
pressures which staff appear to 
have coped with initially has 

impacted staff resulting in more 
sickness. There has been a 
reduction this quarter further to 

Q3. The sickness for 2021/22 is 
4.96% so above target for the 
year for the reasons detailed 

above. 

Maintain rate of 

admissions to 
permanent 

residential nursing 

in over 65+ 

539.5 684.8 543 530 126.3 291.4 422.5 614.3  

Bearing in mind that lower is 
better for this indicator, we have 
not managed to come in within 

the year-end target of 530 
permanent admissions.  
 

P
age 198



 

We have continued to work 
collaboratively as a locality to 
support patients to return home, 

where appropriate, with the 
support they require. As a system 
we continue to work across all 

areas to ensure that timely 
assessment is undertaken either 
within hospital or within a 

Discharge to Assess (D2A) bed.  
 
The D2A beds have had further 

support through the alignment of 
Primary care to individual homes 
to ensure that patients are 

receiving the right levels of 
medical input where appropriate 
and avoiding further 

deconditioning and potential 
readmission.  

Maintain older 

people still at 
home 91 days 
after discharge 

from hospital into 
reablement 

services 

93% 91.6% 88.9% 91% 78.7% 86.2% 92.6% 93.3%  

We have exceeded our year-end 
target for this indicator and are 

over 8% ahead of the regional 
and national out-turns.  
We have commissioned a new 

suite of service responses to 
enable people to be discharged 
home with enhanced levels of 

support where required. 
 
We are continuously reviewing 

this and enhancing our low-level 
response and identifying how we 
can maximise the targeted use of 

enhance support together with 
therapy to further support the 
person and prevent the likelihood 

of hospital admission. 

P
age 199



 

Improve the 
proportion of 

clients 

receiving commun
ity-based services 

with direct 

payments 

26.8% 28% 24.9% 25% 19.6% 23.8% 24.2% 22.6%  

We still have a lower rate of Direct 
Payments than previous years 
and regional comparators, and 

have come in below our year-end 
target of 25% 

 Improve the 
success of short-
term services in 

Adult Social Care 
(ST Max) 

45.1% 44.1% 46.5% 47% 41.1% 40.0% 50.8% 56.6%  

We have exceeded our year-end 
target for this indicator.   

 

 

 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

              

C
o

u
n

c
il
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 
Q1 21/22 
Actual 

Q2 
21/22 

Actual 

Q3 21/22 
Actual 

Q4 21/22 
Actual 

Directio
n of 

travel 

Comments 

Children in 
Need cases 

open over 12 
months (all 

open referrals) 

903 804 732 750 739 753 752 716  

The number is the lowest reported 

this year but is not significantly 
different to that seen last year. 
The number had been steady 

through the year, although there 
has been reduction over time. 
68% of these are Cared For or 

Care Experienced young people. 
 

Proportion of 
referrals that 

were re-
referrals to 
Children's 

Social Care 
Services 

(within last 12 

months) 

26.9% 31.8% 17.2% 20% 19.7% 19.9% 20.7% 21.4%  

The proportion has been nudging 
upwards through the year, but 

performance remains good, 
particularly given where we were 
two years ago. We need to 

continue to monitor over the 
coming year. National and 
Statistical Neighbours reported 

around 22-23%. 

P
age 200



 

Early Help 
Assessments 

completed by a 

partner agency 
(Number of 

EHA's initiated 

by partner 
agencies 

(families)) 

  170 180 50 

44 

(year to 
date 94) 

27  

(year to 
date 121) 

49 

(year to date 
170) 

 

170 in-year total. This is below the 
target for the year and similar to 
the figures reported last year. 229 

completed by in-house services. 
The number has been very steady 
through the year, except for Q3. 

Proportion of 

After Care 
Young People 
in touch with a 

social workers 
or care worker 
within last 8 

weeks (17–21-
year-olds) 

19% 38% 83% 85% 74% 77% 90% 

 

83% 
 

 

This measure can significantly 

vary quarter to quarter. The 
outturn is the same as that 
recorded last year for this 

variation of ‘in-touch’ data. There 
is no comparable data for this 
measure. 

 

 

C
o

u
n

c
il
 S

e
rv

ic
e

s
 

Definition 18/19 19/20 20/21 
Target 

for 21/22 

Q1 21/22 

Actual 

Q2 
21/22 

Actual 

Q3 21/22 

Actual 

Q4 21/22 

Actual 

Directio
n of 

travel
Comments 

Improve 
Education Heal

th Care Plan 

(EHCP) timelin
ess 

(% of EHCPs 

issued within 
20 weeks 
requests 

agreed) 

61.8% 81.8% 78.3% 75% 69.5% 79.9% 40.4% 56.4%  

Following on from the reduction in 
Q3, Q4 recorded a further 
significant dip in the proportion of 

EHCPs issued within 20 weeks. It 
largely relates to capacity within 
the Educational Psychology 

service. Prior to that, performance 
had been excellent. Proportion for 
the year, at 56.4%, remains 

above last published data for 
England and Statistical 
Neighbours. 

 

P
age 201



 

Decrease the 
proportion of 

pupils at 

‘Trafford 
schools that 

are Persistent 

Absentees’ 

NA NA 7.36% 10% NA NA NA 9.84%  

A Persistent Absentee is defined 
as a pupil who misses more than 
10% of their possible 

attendances. The latest published 
data puts the England level at 
12.1%. 

Maintain 
percentage of 
schools that 

provide good 
or outstanding 

levels of 

education 

 93.5% 93.5% 93% 93.5% 93.5% 93.4% 93.4%  

There has been 1 published 
inspection in Spring, but it actually 
took place in Autumn. Judgement 

was maintained.  The slight 
reduction in proportion in Q3 is 
due to the amalgamation of an 

Infant and Junior school. 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

P
age 202



TRAFFORD COUNCIL
OUR TRAFFORD, OUR FUTURE 
Quarter 4 Performance 
January - March 2022

Page 203



    

Foreword by the Leader

It seems only right to begin with the biggest shock to world events 
and something that has saddened us all for the last few months – 

I’m of course referring to the war in Ukraine.

The situation has been dominating the news which continues 
to deliver daily updates of the horrific reality facing the 
Ukrainian people. We are doing everything we can to help, 
including offering the necessary support to those Trafford 

residents among the many thousands of people who have 
responded to the ‘Homes for Ukraine’ scheme. Our thoughts 

continue to be with the people of Ukraine and the hope of a peaceful 
solution.

At home, agreeing our Council budget for 2022/23 has been a focus for this 
quarter. We have committed millions of pounds to our schools, roads, towns, 
businesses, social care and leisure centres. This will ensure there is solid 
investment to help drive our recovery following the pandemic.

Getting residents excited about sport and exercise is so important. To help 
achieve this we’ve approved a multi-million pound investment in our borough’s 
leisure centres. This will hopefully benefit the physical and mental health of all 
our residents for years to come.

We’re seeing a difference being made at move Urmston already, which finally 
officially opened in March. It is an impressive facility which offers amazing 
opportunities around health and wellbeing. Its membership numbers are 
at an all-time high and its success story is one we will be looking to recreate 
elsewhere. 

It’s also a time of transformation for our town centres. This quarter, outline 
planning approval was granted for the Stretford town centre masterplan. 
Meanwhile, Altrincham town centre will receive significant investment as we 
continue to help our high streets do more than survive; we want to see them 
thrive.

Councillor Andrew Western

Leader of Trafford Council

Foreword by the Chief Exec

After a seemingly never-ending period of being restricted by Covid, it 
feels like we’re finally starting to gather some momentum and see 
changes in the borough for the better. Unfortunately, though, the 
impact of the pandemic on many of our residents, young people, 
businesses and communities, as well as for some of our services, 
may continue for some time to come.

Another global concern that cannot go unmentioned is the war 
in Ukraine and the terrible plight of its people. Thank you to the 
many of you who have already responded to the call for help and have 
offered up both your homes and your hearts by signing up to the ‘Homes 
for Ukraine’ scheme.

The first few months of 2022 have certainly been eventful. It’s hard to believe 
that it’s only since the start of the year that we began working towards our three 
new corporate priorities. One of these is Addressing our Climate Crisis. As part 
of this, we’re increasing both our electric vehicle charging points and the use of 
electric vehicles to save nearly 21 tonnes of carbon per year from polluting the 
atmosphere. This is a significant step that will also help to improve the health and 
wellbeing of our residents in the long term.

Making sure we do the best for our young people in Trafford is something 
I’m passionate about – they are the future of our borough. So it gives me 
great pleasure to share the news that in February staff on our specialist Youth 
Engagement team were awarded a top-class assessment.

The Youth Engagement Service passed the Matrix Assessment, which is a 
nationally recognised quality mark - and were most importantly given a massive 
thumbs up by the young people they work so hard to help.

I’ll finish with this positive note and look forward to sharing more good news in 
the next quarter as the great work being done across the borough continues.

Sara Todd

Chief Executive of Trafford Council 

P
age 204



Our vision, outcomes and 
priorities

The corporate plan, “Our Trafford, Our 
Future” describes Trafford Council’s 
strategic vision, outcomes and priorities 
for the borough, with the priorities 
being key to its delivery. It includes an 
overview of what the council will do and 
how we will work with our residents, 
communities, businesses and other 
partners to deliver change to Trafford in 
line with these commitments.

This plan is a refresh on the previous 
2018 corporate plan and has been 
developed to set out the most critical 
things that we need to do over the 
coming years to recover from Covid-19, 
deliver public services, and work with 
communities, businesses and other 
partners. It reflects the ambition of 
Trafford’s leadership and the values 
and aims of the Council to provide a 
blueprint for improving Trafford.

As an overarching plan, it will shape 
activity within the council, help 
prioritise resources and assist our 
financial planning. Importantly, the 
success of the plan can be monitored 
through target setting and outcomes 
that can be measured.

It is also intended as a guide for our 
partner organisations to help identify 
shared objectives so we can work 
together more effectively to achieve far 
more for Trafford than we ever could 
working alone.

Through our new vision we will meet 
the opportunities and challenges that lie 
ahead and work together to deliver for 
our residents, communities, businesses 
and partners.

To achieve this we are focused on three 
outcomes: 

1. All our residents will have access to 
quality learning, training and jobs 

2. All our communities will be happy, 
healthy and safe

3. All our businesses and town centres 
will be supported to recover and 
flourish in an inclusive way

Our vision
Trafford - where all our residents, 
communities & businesses prosper

This focus on outcomes, rather than just 
on the services we provide, will help the 
Council and our partners work together 
towards shared goals, rather than as 
individual service providers.

We will focus on three priorities to 
help us achieve these outcomes, these 
priorities set out our ambitions for our 
people, place and communities.

Supporting people out of poverty

Reducing health inequalities

Addressing our climate crisis

P
age 205



Reducing health inequalities

 Priority 1 

Case Study
Children and young people living in 
more disadvantaged communities are 
less likely to be a healthy weight, which 
can have a big impact on their physical 
and mental wellbeing. However, it is not 
a simple case of exercising more and 
eating less, there are lots of different 
factors involved.

In a new approach – between the public, 
private and third sector - Foundation 92 
recently developed a Family Wellbeing 
Programme focusing on support around 
physical activity, diet and mental 
wellbeing for the whole family. 

46 families were referred to the 
programme which improved their levels 
of physical activity, decision making, 
coping mechanisms and their sense of 
wellbeing among other things.

One participant, who we’ll call Nicola, 
gave her feedback, saying: “Taking part 
in the family wellbeing programme was 
fun, interactive and I finally learnt how to 
skip, so that’s good! I got a head start on 
starting boxing, which was fun.

“It’s impacted my mental and physical 
health – before I started this I’d been 
quite strong in    
brute strength 
but now I have 
more agility 
and faster 
movements 
instead of 
just brute 
strength.

“I’ve started 
cooking 
healthy food 
with my mum too – 
we made turkey bacon 
which is both healthy 
and delicious, with a 
side of boiled eggs, 
mushrooms and 
potatoes – best meal 
in the world.”

1. Prevent poor health in children and 
promote good mental and physical 
health.

2. Ensure Trafford’s mental health 
services are resilient, accessible and fit 
for purpose.

3. Ensure more people are in good 
health for longer.

4. Focus on areas of deprivation and 
with the highest rates of illness, and 
reduce the impact of deprivation. 

5. Work with partners to improve how 
services are delivered, and to help 
reduce health inequalities.

6. Provide effective and sustainable 
physical activity and sport 
opportunities for our communities.

 Our track record so far...

Residents received vaccinations at the 
Limelight Health and Wellbeing Hub

Percentage of 10-11 year olds who are 
very overweight by deprivation

Child overweight prevalence shows a close 
association with socioeconomic deprivation. 
The prevalence of very overweight children 
living in the most deprived areas of the country 
is more than double that of children living in 
the least deprived of areas. In Trafford, 
the percentage of 10 to 11 year olds 
who are very overweight is almost 
the double in the most deprived 
areas (LSOAs) with 24.6% when 
compared with the least 
deprived areas that have a 
12.7%. The North and West of 
Trafford have a concentration 
of second most deprived and 
most deprived areas along 
with a higher percentage of 
overweight children.

Davyhulme East

Altrincham

Ashton upon
Mersey

Bowdon

Broadheath

Brooklands

Bucklow-St
Martins

Davyhulme West

Flixton

Gorse Hill

Hale Barns
Hale Central

Longford

Priory

St Mary's Sale Moor

Stretford

Timperley

Urmston

Village

24.6%

21.9%

19.5%

15.2%

12.7%

Most deprived

Second most deprived

Average deprived

Second least deprived

Least deprived

Trafford LSOAs, 2015/16 - 2019/20

Source: NHS Digital, National Child Measurement Programme
Contains Ordnance Survey data © Crown copyright and database right 2021

P
age 206



Supporting people out of poverty

 Priority 2 

Case Study
The first properties which have been 
built to help solve the housing crisis 
in Trafford open earlier this year – and 
already they are fully occupied.

The new state-of-the-art social 
housing development in Timperley, 
Bowker Court – named after the late 
local Councillor Ray Bowker who was 
heavily involved in the project – is 
made up of 30 one and two bed flats 
in a three-storey building on Carrfield 
Avenue.

Built in partnership between Trafford 
Council and Trafford Housing Trust, it 
is the first new-build socially rented 
housing in the borough in over ten 
years.

The scheme is in a fantastic location 
and has lots of other benefits: at a 
time when fuel prices are dramatically 
increasing, Bowker Court is entirely 
powered by electricity and is tripled 
glazed – making it low energy and 
sustainable.

Trafford, like many other areas, is 
desperately short of new homes 
that people can afford to live in and 
providing them is a key priority for 
the Council. 

These superb new social housing 
units are the first of many the 
Council plans to open as part of its 
commitment to give people a helping 
hand onto the housing ladder and to 
support them out of poverty.

Bowker Court

1. Support children out of poverty and 
to have the best start in life.

2. Give people skills and opportunities 
to enable them to get out of poverty.

3. Prioritise support for people to avert 
poverty, and improve the situation for 
people experiencing poverty.

4. Ensure agencies work well together 
to minimise the risk of individuals 
becoming homeless and to support 
those who are experiencing 
homelessness.

5. Give people the power to maximise 
their household income.

 Our track record so far...

Trafford Homeless Team

Affordability ratios are calculated by dividing median house prices by median gross 
annual workplace-based earnings. Higher ratios tend to indicate less affordable 

housing. Since 2013 Trafford has maintained a higher affordability ratio when 
compared to England and the average of similar local authorities. Trafford’s 

affordability ratio for 2021 was 10.3 which means that the median house 
price is more than ten times the median annual 

earnings for the borough. That was more than 
one point higher that England’s ratio at 9.05, 

and more than two points higher than the 
average of similar local authorities which 

had a ratio of 8.

Ratio of median house prices to median earnings

0

2

4

6

8

10

20
10

20
11

20
12

20
13

20
14

20
15

20
16

20
17

20
18

20
19

20
20

20
21

R
at

io

*Mean of the 15 Trafford's CIPFA nearest neighbours
Source: ONS

Trafford Similar Local Authorities* England

P
age 207



Case Study
The option to ‘go electric’ - as far as 
vehicles are concerned - is being 
thoroughly explored in Trafford as we 
look for significant solutions to the 
climate crisis.

As part of this, our plans to speed up 
the roll-out of electric vehicle charging 
points have now been given the go-
ahead.

The scheme – aimed at helping the 
transition from using fuel to electric 
vehicles following the approval of the 
Greater Manchester Clean Air Plan 
last year - will see 150 points installed 
across the borough, making it quicker 
and easier for residents to keep their 
electric vehicles running.

A mixture of fast, rapid and ultra-rapid 
charging options are being introduced 
in Altrincham, Ashton on Mersey, 
Bucklow St Martins, Flixton, Hale, 
Longford, Sale, Stretford, Timperley 
and Urmston.

But the love for electric doesn’t stop 
there – in addition, the One Trafford 
Partnership, a collaboration between 
the Council and Amey, is introducing 
16 new electric vehicles to its fleet. 

This will save nearly 21 tonnes of 
carbon per year – and an estimated 
143.17 tonnes over the next seven 
years - from polluting the atmosphere.

These are big strides forwards in our 
commitment to decarbonising the 
borough and helping improve the 
health and wellbeing of our residents.

Read more about Trafford’s Climate 
Emergency at www.trafford.gov.uk/
climatechange.

Addressing our climate crisis

 Priority 3: 

1. Reduce our carbon footprint and 
increase the amount we  
re-use, repurpose and recycle.

2. Ensure that new housing 
developments are adaptable, 
sustainable and low-energy use, while 
working with partners to increase the 
energy efficiency in our homes.

3. Reduce the amount of food waste in 
our borough and encourage surplus 
food to be donated to foodbanks.

4. Promote and increase 
environmentally friendly travel, such 
as walking and cycling.

5. Put in place the measures in the GM 
Clean Air Plan and develop our leisure 
offer, parks and green spaces.

6. Promote sustainable, healthy and 
lower-carbon diets, such as locally 
grown and seasonal food.

 Our track record so far...

Trafford had 24.4 electric vehicle (EV) charging 
devices (at all speeds) per 100,000 population 
available to the public on 1st of April 2022. 
The average of similar authorities was 42.3 
per 100,000 population, almost the double 
of Trafford’s figure. Milton Keynes had 
almost 6 times more charging points 
per 100,000 population than Trafford 
which is behind 11 out of 15 similar 
authorities on availability of EV 
charging devices.

Public EV charging points - all speeds
Trafford and similar authorities, April 2022

En
gl

an
d

Si
m

ila
ra

ut
ho

rit
ie

s
av

er
ag

e*

Bury

Stockport

Telford and Wrekin

Thurrock

Trafford

Darlington

Derby

Cheshire West and Chester

Swindon

Peterborough

Warrington

York

South Gloucestershire

Solihull

Bedford

Milton Keynes

02 55 07 5 100 125
per 100,000 population

*Mean of the 15 Trafford's CIPFA nearest neighbours
Source: Department for Transport

P
age 208



www.trafford.gov.uk

Hale Barns

Hale

Bowdon

Altrincham

Dunham 
Warburton

Partington

Carrington Sale

Stretford
Urmston

Trafford Park

Old Trafford

Flixton

Timperley

Page 209



This page is intentionally left blank



TRAFFORD COUNCIL
OUR TRAFFORD, OUR FUTURE 
Annual Report 2021/22

Page 211



    

Foreword by the Leader

Little did I expect 12 months ago that the coronavirus pandemic 
would still be playing such a massive role in our lives.

During the last year we had more restrictions, more heartache 
and pain for tens of thousands of people and business in the 
borough. However,S once again I was proud of the response 
of everyone in Trafford to the challenges we faced as people 
worked together to support those in need.

Despite the major difficulties we faced, we also managed some 
impressive achievements. We saw the first new social housing 

development in the borough for many years, we officially opened the 
redeveloped the leisure centre in Urmston and earmarked millions of pounds 
of investment in our other leisure centres, we fed our children in the school 
holidays, secured laptops for pupils to learn at home and worked with health 
partners to deliver the vaccine rollout.

So we can be rightly proud of the work we have done and continue to do with 
our partners to improve the lives of people in the borough. To help us focus on 
this we decided it was an ideal opportunity to have a look at our priorities as a 
council and whether they were the right ones to help us recover and make life 
better for residents and businesses in Trafford.

We identified reducing health inequalities, supporting people out of poverty 
and tackling the climate crisis as key aims for the borough.

To support our aims we have committed millions of pounds to our schools, 
roads, towns, businesses and social care and I look forward to delivering on our 
promises during the next 12 months. 

Councillor Andrew Western

Leader of Trafford Council

Foreword by the Chief Exec

Delivering frontline services to our residents and businesses 
remained a real challenge for us during the last year because of the 
pandemic.

However, working with our partners, we made sure we delivered 
the right services at the right time across a wide range of areas 
including mental health, homelessness, town centre regeneration, 
business support, library and leisure services.

It meant that young people were able to receive thousands of meals 
and hundreds of hours of free sport, local businesses were given much 
needed grants, more residents were able to get online, more affordable homes 
were built and people in debt were helped to get their lives back on track.

It was also the right time to refresh our corporate priorities to help us recover 
from the pandemic. Reducing health inequalities, supporting people out 
of poverty and addressing our climate crisis are our focus. Examples of us 
delivering on these priorities include improving carbon reduction in publicly 
owned buildings, winter warmer packs were provided to older members of our 
communities and the launch of the Poverty Truth Commission.

The last part of the year saw the terrible events in Ukraine unfold, but once again 
the people of Trafford showed the willingness to help by coming forward in their 
hundreds to offer support to those fleeing the Russian invasion. I really hope 
this time next year peace will have returned to the war torn country but in the 
meantime I know everyone will continue to support those refugees who have 
made Trafford their home.

We still face many challenges in the coming months but I am confident that the 
plans we have in the place, the great staff we employ and the fantastic partners 
we have, will allow us to deliver our priorities to improve life for everyone in 
Trafford.

Sara Todd

Chief Executive of Trafford Council 

P
age 212



Our vision, outcomes and 
priorities

The corporate plan, “Our Trafford, Our 
Future” describes Trafford Council’s 
strategic vision, outcomes and priorities 
for the borough, with the priorities 
being key to its delivery. It includes an 
overview of what the council will do and 
how we will work with our residents, 
communities, businesses and other 
partners to deliver change to Trafford in 
line with these commitments.

This plan is a refresh on the previous 
2018 corporate plan and has been 
developed to set out the most critical 
things that we need to do over the 
coming years to recover from Covid-19, 
deliver public services, and work with 
communities, businesses and other 
partners. It reflects the ambition of 
Trafford’s leadership and the values 
and aims of the Council to provide a 
blueprint for improving Trafford.

As an overarching plan, it will shape 
activity within the council, help 
prioritise resources and assist our 
financial planning. Importantly, the 
success of the plan can be monitored 
through target setting and outcomes 
that can be measured.

It is also intended as a guide for our 
partner organisations to help identify 
shared objectives so we can work 
together more effectively to achieve far 
more for Trafford than we ever could 
working alone.

Through our new vision we will meet 
the opportunities and challenges that lie 
ahead and work together to deliver for 
our residents, communities, businesses 
and partners.

To achieve this we are focused on three 
outcomes: 

1. All our residents will have access to 
quality learning, training and jobs 

2. All our communities will be happy, 
healthy and safe

3. All our businesses and town centres 
will be supported to recover and 
flourish in an inclusive way

Our vision
Trafford - where all our residents, 
communities & businesses prosper

This focus on outcomes, rather than just 
on the services we provide, will help the 
Council and our partners work together 
towards shared goals, rather than as 
individual service providers.

We will focus on three priorities to 
help us achieve these outcomes, these 
priorities set out our ambitions for our 
people, place and communities.

Supporting people out of poverty

Reducing health inequalities

Addressing our climate crisis

P
age 213



Reducing health inequalities

 Priority 1 

Trafford is one of the most polarised 
boroughs in England based on the 
distribution of most and least deprived 
lower super output areas (LSOA s) in 
the borough.  This is illustrated by the 
map below. People who live in the most 
deprived areas tend to have a lower 
healthy life expectancy than those living 
in the least deprived areas, with those 
in the most deprived areas more at 
risk of certain health conditions. These 
inequalities are largely preventable. 

Reducing these inequalities across 
Trafford will improve quality of life, 
reduce service demand, improve health 
outcomes, and create a fairer, healthy, 
economically flourishing environment. 
Our Health and Wellbeing Strategy has 
been designed to deliver this, and our 
emerging Locality Board shares these 
same goals. Achieving these goals is 
urgent. It got a lot harder for many 
people to stay physically and mentally 
healthy during the pandemic.  

We have a 16 year difference in healthy 
life expectancy and a 8.5-year difference 
for males and 7.4 year difference for 
females in life expectancy between our 
most affluent and most deprived areas 
and the pandemic has laid bare these 
inequalities. 

Nationally, new inequalities have 
emerged and existing inequalities 
have intensified. We are responding to 
these changes in order to reduce these 
inequalities so all our residents can live 
long and healthy lives.

 Key Highlights
. Covid response targeted vaccination campaigns.

. Health and Wellbeing Strategy.

. Equality and Safety Survey was launched to discuss potential measures to protect 
women and girls in the borough alongside a workshop with Trafford Carers 
Centre, with over 100 people responding to the survey.

. Winter Warmer Packs were provided to older members of our communities 
to keep well at home, with 5,000 special packs containing blankets, gloves, 
information on exercising at home and eating healthily.

. Trafford Moving physical activity strategy agreed, as well as multi-million pound 
investment for refurbishing Altrincham, Sale and Stretford Leisure Centres.

. Breastfeeding Rates have been increasing in every area except the South (which 
has the highest rates) since 2018/19. There is still a gap between the South at 
69% and the West at 56%, though it is promising that the gap has narrowed.

. Diabetes Services working with National Diabetes Prevention Programme with 
641 referrals between 1st April 2019 and 30th November 2021. To support 
people to change their diet and physical activity habits in order to reduce 
their risk of developing diabetes, especially people at high risk 
of developing type 2 diabetes. We are now working with 
local community groups to increase uptake in our more 
deprived communities. 

P
age 214



Supporting people out of poverty

 Priority 2  Key Highlights

Trafford Homeless Team

This priority focuses on both tackling the 
root causes of poverty and on helping 
to raise people out of poverty. To do 
this, we must provide the necessary 
opportunities, information and advice 
to give residents the power to make 
choices.

Trafford Council is committed to directly 
supporting people experiencing 
challenges and by raising awareness of 
the support available. Established last 
year in 2021, Trafford’s Poverty Action 
Group monitored the delivery of the 
Trafford Poverty Strategy 2021-22 whilst 
working in partnership to develop a 
three year Partnership Strategy to tackle 
poverty in our communities. Living 
in poverty can prevent people from 
reaching their potential and can impact 
people’s health and wellbeing. Whilst the 
rising costs of living cannot be directly 
influenced by Trafford’s organisations, 
we can work together locally to support 
residents who are experiencing poverty. 

These are challenging times residents of  
Trafford with rising Cost of Living: ONS 
survey highlighted nearly 9 in 10 adults 
are impacted by the cost of living.

Recent data from OPN showed that 
87% of adults reported that their cost of 
living had increased; this is an increase 
from 62% when this measure was first 
recorded in November 2021. 

The most common reasons reported 
were an increase in

(1) the price of food (88%)
(2) gas or electricity bills (83%)
(3) the price of fuel (77%)
Food prices being the main reason 
closely followed by energy and fuel.

We are committed to working 
together to focus on fuel poverty, food 
poverty, welfare rights and digital 
access. The 2022-25 Poverty Strategy 
will be interlinked and connected 
to strategies already published or 
currently in development including the 
Trafford VCFSE Strategy and Trafford’s 
Homelessness Strategy 2019-2024. 

We are passionate about understanding 
lived experience of poverty and this is 
why we are delivering a Poverty Truth 
Commission in Trafford. The Trafford 
Poverty Truth Commission brings 
together residents with lived experience 
of poverty, and leaders in the public, 
private and third sectors to develop 
ideas and proposals to tackle poverty. 
We started this process in October 
2021 with an initial launch and have 
formally launched with our Community 
Commissioners and Civic Commissioners 
meeting together for the first time. As the 
findings from the Trafford Poverty Truth 
Commission will be of such significant 
importance, we will review our three-year 
Trafford Poverty Strategy in Spring 2023 
to ensure it reflects and supports the 
recommendations from the Commission. 

. Breathing Space and Breathing Space Mental Health Crisis Debt schemes 
launched with Citizens Advice Trafford to help residents struggling with problem 
debts with a 60-day break.

. Go with The Flow launched to support our residents to access free sanitary 
products; over 100 people completed surveys at launch events and 40 schools 
have signed up to the campaign.

. Holiday Activity Fund provision delivered 5,700 meals and over 500 hours 
of sport for young people and engaging 3,000 children during the summer 
holidays.

. Credit Union and Bee Smart scheme actively promoted through awareness days

. Citizens Advice are offering face to face support in each of our Community Hubs 
and in 2021/22 Trafford’s Welfare Rights team have supported residents to secure 
a total of £1million in income that they were entitled to.

. Poverty Truth Commission launched, jointly sponsored with Trafford Housing 
Trust and led by Stretford Public Hall, to bring together residents with experience 
of living in poverty with leaders from the private, public and voluntary sectors.

. Engage Trafford Mentoring Scheme an early intervention programme to work 
with Young People aged 8-18 and up to 25 for SEND, providing mentoring 
sessions and place-based group work.

. Trafford Job Fair attended by over 200 people, with 27 businesses, training 
providers and VCFSE sector organisations involved.

. Brown Street Affordable Housing development and community car park opened 
in Hale providing 12 affordable shared ownership apartments and ten town 
houses.

P
age 215



. City of Trees delivered Tree Planting projects to improve green spaces and 
biodiversity, along with £100,000 funding being invested into the Wellacre 
Country Park. 

. Public Buildings Decarbonisation schemes in place, with 14 sites including 
school buildings, to work towards improving carbon reduction in publicly owned 
buildings.

. Energyworks scheme promoted to help residents to change energy providers, 
access grants for new boilers and insulation and offers free energy efficiency 
equipment.

. Electric Vehicle Charging Points with £500,000 invested into 92 new electric 
vehicle charging bays across the borough.

. Citizens’ Panel on Climate Crisis first part event with 
25 local residents from different equality groups to 
represent Trafford and feedback on key climate issues 
and priorities.  

In October 2018, the UN 
Intergovernmental Panel on Climate 
Change (IPCC) published a report 
warning that the risk of catastrophic 
climate change including extreme 
heat, drought, flooding and climate-
related poverty would significantly 
increase unless global warming 
could be kept to a maximum of 1.5°C 
compared to pre-industrial levels. The 
report stated that global warming is 
likely to reach 1.5°C between 2030 and 
2052. 

Impacts are already being felt here 
in Trafford, with a greater frequency 
of extreme weather events such as 
February’s Storm Franklin leading to 
road closures and flood warnings up 
and down the Mersey valley. It is clear 
urgent action is needed.

Given that the majority of emissions 
occurring within the borough are 
beyond the Council’s direct control 
(See Figure 1), there is a clear need 
to co-ordinate action in this sphere, 
meaning that every individual and 
organisation present within the 
borough has a role to play if we are 
to successfully reduce emissions and 
achieve carbon neutrality.

Trafford Council was one of the first 
local authorities to declare a climate 
emergency in November 2018, whilst 
Greater Manchester has committed to 
being carbon neutral by 2038 through 
the Greater Manchester Combined 
Authority. 

Across the council and in partnerships 
across Trafford, we are continuing to 
make progress with measures that 
will support the borough as well as 
reducing our own operational carbon 
footprint - putting us on a pathway to 
carbon neutrality by 2038. In doing 
so, we will help to improve the health 
and wellbeing of our communities, 
our environment and our economy. 
The impact of climate change affects 
us all but the most disadvantaged 
communities are often those that are 
most vulnerable and most severely 
impacted. 

Addressing our climate crisis

 Priority 3: 

Tree Planting

 Our track record so far...

Local Produce, Altrincham Market

Cycle to Work 
Scheme

P
age 216



www.trafford.gov.uk

Hale Barns

Hale

Bowdon

Altrincham

Dunham 
Warburton

Partington

Carrington Sale

Stretford
Urmston

Trafford Park

Old Trafford

Flixton

Timperley

Page 217



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	4 MINUTES
	5a Gypsy, Roma, and Traveller Visits - Scrutiny Task and Finish Group Report
	GRT Appendix interim report

	6 DRUG AND ALCOHOL SERVICES
	7 LEVELLING UP FUND ROUND 2 BIDS
	Appendix-A-Watling-Gate-Architects-Brief
	Appendix-B-Sale-Strategy-Review

	8 COUNCIL TAX DISCRETIONARY SCHEMES - PROPOSAL TO CONSULT ON CHANGES
	9 BUDGET MONITORING 2021/22 - PERIOD 12 YEAR END OUTTURN (APRIL 2021 TO MARCH 2022)
	10 CORPORATE PLAN 2021/22 QUARTER 4 AND ANNUAL REPORT
	Corporate Plan Q4 Report 2021-22
	Trafford Annual Report 2021-22




